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SMSC is a global, fabless semiconducter company serving a d-iveﬁr;sif'ied set of applications in the coﬁ-
sumer electronics, autor‘noti:.re infotainment, computing and industrial markets. The Company develops
semi-custom and-application specific standard products that allow users to accéss or transfer their digital
assets with convenience and speed. SMSC has developed leadership positions in providing analog/
mixed-signal solutions to many of the world’s leading OEMs and ODMs, through products employing one
or more of the following technologies: Ethernet, ARCNET, MOST® and Hi-Speed USB. Products include
USB 2.0 hubs and mass storage devices, embedded controliers, sensors and companion devices, Ethernet
and embedded networking devices, netwaorking muItimedia'prdcessing engines and in-vehicle network

interface controllers aptimized to deliver high bandwidth entertainment and navigation content.,
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FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS




KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

[in thousands, except per share data)

As of February 28 or 28, and for the fiscal years then ended 2008 2007 2006
Operating Results

Total sales and revenues $377.849 | $370,694 $319,118
Operating income 37,648 30,327 12,676
Net income $ 32906 | £ 27,015 % 12,030
Diluted net income per share $ 139|% 116 $ 055
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 23,623 23,259 21,998
Balance Sheet and Other Data

Cash, short-term and long-term investments {at fair value)* $186,110 | $160.023 $155,033
Total assets $539,476 | $493,639 $449,694
Book value per common share $ 1914 | 8§ 1714 § 15.18

*For a more datailed description of SMSC's long-term investments, see pages 37, 38 and 51 of the attached Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 25, 2008. Compiete

financial statements are also available in the Company's Form 10-K.
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Non-GAAP measures exclude impact of stock based aption/SAR-related compensation expense and acquisition related charges. See reconciliation fo GAAP measures on page 05.
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TO MY FELLOW Sk +REHOLDERS:

" | am pleased to report another year of outstanding
performance by SMSC in fiscal 2008, highlighted by
strong growth in earnings, solidly higher margins and
record semiconductor revenues for the fifth consecutive
year. We also delivered on the promises made in last
year's annual report, a further iﬁdication that our strategy

is working as anticipated.

Promises Made

Four or five quarters ago, we predicted that fiscal 2008
revenues would be flat from 2007 because of our planned
exit from certain low-margin, non-strategic business. We
said that gross margins would rise by 3-5 percentage
points, that operating expenses would be level in the first
half of the year and up only slightly in the second ha'f, and
that non-GAAP* operating margins would reach 15% for
the fuli year and 17-18% when we reached an annual run

rate of $400 million.

These objectives were ambitious, particularly given the
uncertain economic environment, But having laid the
groundwork in previcus years, we believed that we
could achieve those objectives if we executed properly.
And we did.

In fact, fiscal 2008 revenues were better than predicted,
increasing 2% to $377.8 million despite the ~8% portfolio
pruning, solid performance in a year when the semicon-
ductor industry as a whole grew by approximately 3.2%,

according to the Semiconductor Industry Association.

Non-GAAP net income increased by 25% to $45.4 mil-
lion, and GAAP net income gained 22% to $32.9 million.

Earnings were $1.92 per diluted share on a non-GAAP
basis, a gain of 23%, and $1.39 per diluted share on a
GAAP basis, up 20%.

Gross margins in 2008 rose by approximately 4.5 percent-
age points, at the upper end of our origina! predicted
range. We met our operating expense objectives. Our full
year non-GAAP operating margin increased to 15.1% and
we exceeded 19% in the third quarter. GAAP operating
margin for the full year was 10%.

Cash from operations, projected at $50 million, actually
came in at $61 million, reflecting our growing profitability.
And the sum of our cash and short-term and long-term
investments increased during fiscal year 2008 from
$160.0 million last year to $186.1 million,

xmorive Marke - Penetra a0
We also predicted that three Asian automakers would
adopt our Media Oriented Systems Transport (MOST®)
technology in four car models during fiscal 2008. In fact,
manufacturers—Toyota, Kia and

four Hyundai,

SsangYong—adopted MOST in five models.

We view our MOST product line as one of SMSC’s impor-
tant potential growth areas, and expect to launch produc-

_tion with additional models in fiscal 2009. Further, the

newest MOST speed grade, MOST150, has already been
gaining excellent traction for next-generation infotainment
systems, particularly those systemns featuring extensive
digital video and |P-based applications.

chagani U Ys Ty
Networking and USB protocols are increasingly ubigui-
tous. Few companies have SMSC’s in-depth expertise in

*A reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP financial measures appears on page 05,




Ethernet, MOST and USB technology, which we apply to

develop innovative connectivity solutions that can deliver
data quickly and efficiently. The automotive market is a
natural focus for these solutions, which can transfer multi-
media content between consumer devices and a MOST
infotainment network, or send diagnostic data from the
vehicle 10 a service bay. SMSC's Ethernet product portfolio
is also a virtual One-Stop-Shap for embedded, consumer
electronics and industrial customers. We differentiate
ourselves by the breadth of our produqt line, the diversity of
the system architectures that we support and the quality
and longevity of the support that we provide worldwide.

Growth in HPA Products

SMSC's expanding portfolio of High Perforrance Analeg
(HPA} products, which serve both the consumer electron-
ics and PC markets, represents another key potential
growth area for the Company. We leverage our knowl-
edge of high-speed transceivers, fan control and thermal
management to engineer technologically leading HPA
products, sales of which we expect to double this year
and grow to approximately 15% of total company revenue
in fiscal 2009.

Amang our HPA products, USB transceiver products for
portable devices and advanced thermal sensing sclutions
for notebooks are enjoying accelerated growth. We are
increasingly designing these with smaller geometries to
deliver efficiency and performance in such applications
as PCs, servers, printers and flat screen television sets.
Cur products are glso being chosen for reference designs
targeting many of the industry's influential consumer

electronics designers.

Strategy and Results

SMSC’s 2008 results reflect the strategy we have put in
place over the past half decade. We shed unprofitable
operations, and created of acquired businesses with tech-
nologies that would enable us to penetrate high-potential
niche markets. We focused our engineering skills on
designing proprietary products through which we estab-
lished leadership positions in five vertical markets. We
have and continue 1o invest for the long-term and empha-

size operational excellence.

Our success in building leadership positions among our
target markets has provided desirable diversity in our
business. As the chart below depicts, we now have nearly

optimal exposure with multiple avenues of growth.

REVENUE CONTRIBUTIONS
{Fiscal 2008)

luauueioymt

“We now have nearly optimal exposure to multiple avenues
of growth, and the synergies derived from our core
mixed-signal expertise afford us increasing opportunities
to cross-sell our technology across product platforms.”
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15.17%

“Gross margins in 2008 rose by approximately 4.5 percentage points. Our full year non-GAAP operating margin increased
to 15.1% and we exceeded 19% in the third quarter. GAAP operating margin for the full year was 10%."

Increasingly, we have leveraged the synergies derived
from our core mixed-signal expertise across market seg-
ments, developing successful, increasingly complex prod-
ucts that address the specific needs of target customers.
These products command prices that reflect their quality,
high value and proprietary content. A focus of fiscal 2008
was to capture margin improvements that a combination
of impraving product mix and growing volume should
produce, and thereby increase profits for the benefit of

our shareholders.

Stock Repurchases

Capital structure management is a vital element of SMSC's
strategy to provide superior returns to shareholders. In
fiscal 2008, we took advantage of opportunities to reinvest
some of SMSC's free cash flow in the repurchase of
shares of SMSC stock, leaving fewer shares outstanding
at year-end than at the start. Our stock price, which has
outperformed the NASDAQ Composite and Philadelphia
Semiconductor indices over the past five years, reached
a record $39.95 before falling back in the broad semicon-
ductor market sell-off in early calendar 2008.

04 ANNUAL REPCRT 2008

A Positive Outlook

Although the economic outlook remains ¢cloudy, we are
optimistic that, assuming reasonable stability prevails, the
positive trends of fiscal 2008 will continue. We maintain
strong positions in growing niche markets, and we con-
tinue to invest to keep our technological edge. SMS5C's
financial strength, coupled with the diversity of its end
markets, should help us weather the semiconductor

industry’s traditional cyclicality.

Growing acceptance of our products, particularly in the
Automotive and HPA markets, should enable us to
increase sales this year in line with overall industry growth
estimates and achieve healthy growth in non-GAAP

garnings.

In closing, | want to thank our talented and dedcicated
employees, our loyal customers, and our supportive
shareholders. We look forward to another solid year of

execution against our strategic goals in fiscal 2009.

Steven J. Bilodeau
Chairman of the Board. President and Chief Executive Officer

April 17, 2008




SUPPLEMENTAL RECONCILIATION OF GAAP RESULTS TO NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

{in thousands, except per share amounts}

Twelve Months Ended February 28 or 28, 2008 2007 2006
Income {loss) from operations—GAAP basis® $37,648 $30,327 $12,676
Non-GAAP adjustrments:
Stock-based compensation included in:®
Costs of goods sold ' 1,198 357 630
Research and development o~ ) 5903 3.249 2,757
Selling, general and administrative ' 5,728 3,288 8.013
, 12,829 6,894 11,400
FMV adjustment—OASIS opening inventory's ‘ — — 1,652
Amortization of intangible assets® ‘ 6,707 6,364 5,802
In-process research and development'® ‘ — — 895
Income from operations — non-GAAF basis® $57,184 $43,586 $32,425
Net income-—GAAP basis 32,906 27,015 12,030
Non-GAAP adjustments {as scheduled above) 19,536 13,258 19,749
Tax effect of non-GAAP adjustments® {7.033) {4,0865) {7,121)
Net income—non-GAAP basis $45,409 $36,208 $24,658
GAAP net income per share—diluted $ 1.39 $ 116 $ 055
Non-GAAP net income per share—diluted™ ’ v $ 192 % 156 $ 112
Operating Margins—GAAP basis 10.0% 8.2% 4.0%
Operating Margins—non-GAAP basis . 15.1% 11.8%  10.2%

Management believes that non-GAAP financial measuras assist it in evaluating operational trends, financial performance, and cash generating

capacity. Managemaent believes these non-GAAP measuras allow investors ta evaluate SMSC's financial performance using soma of the same

measures as management. However, the non-GAAP financial measures should not be regarded as a replacement for corresponding, simifarly
captioned, GAAP measures.

(a) 10.0%, 8.2% and 4.0% of total sales and revenues, respectively.

(b) Ta eliminate compensatian expense for Stock Appraciation Rights {“SARs") and stack options as recorded under GAAP applicable in each
period presented. Cash paid in connection with exercises of SARs totaled $6,593 in the twelve month period ended February 29, 2008. The
Company does not include charges related to restricted stock awards in these non-GAAP adjustments, as they are issued primarily in connection
with the Company's annual employee incentive compensation program.

{c) Ta eliminate tha impact an costs of goods sold of the writa up ta fair value of invantory from the OASIS SiticonSystems Holding AG {“0OASIS”)
acquisition, to the extent such inventory was sold in the twelve-month period ended February 28, 2007,

{d) To eliminate the amortization of intangible assets acquired in the fiscal 2006 acquisition of OASIS and the fiscal 2003 acquisition of Gain
Technology Corporation. )

(a} To eliminate the charge for in-process research and development, expensad immaediately upon completion of the Qasis acquisition on
March 30, 2005.

{f) 15.1%, 11.8% and 10.2% of total sales and revenues, respectively.

(g} To adjust the provision for income taxes related to the adjustments described in notes (b), (c), (d) and (e} above, based on applicable incremental
tax rates.

{h) Computed using average number of GAAP-equivalent diluted shares outstanding for each period presented.
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PART 1

Item 1. — Business
General Description of the Business

Standard Microsystems Corporation (the “Company” or “SMSC”) a Delaware corporation founded in 1971,
designs and sells a wide variety of silicon-based integrated circuits that are primarily utilizing analog or mixed-
signal technologies. The Company's integrated circuits and systems provide a wide variety of signal processing
attributes that are incorporated by its globally diverse customers into end products in the Consumer Electronics &
Infotainment, the Mobile & Desktop PC, and Industrial & Other markets. These products generally provide
connectivity, networking, or input/output control solutions for a variety of high-speed communication, computer
and related peripheral, consumer electronics, industrial control system, or auto infotainment applications. The
market for these solutions is increasingly diverse, and the Company’s various technologies are increasingly used in
various combinations and in alternative applications. : ‘ . .

' ' * : . . . . ) .
SMSC’s integrated circuits and systems provnde numerous signal processing attributes that are incorporated by
its globally diverse customers into a range of end products in the consumer electronics and mfolamment mobile and
desktop personal computer (“PC™") and industrial markets.

SMSC’s semiconductor products generally enable the transfer or networking of data and multimedia content,
embedded control of power and wake/sléep functions, and environmental sensing, fan control and human interface
solutions for a variety of computing, consumer electronics, industrial, or automotive infotainment applications.

SMSC has what is commonly referred to as a “fabless” business model, meaning that the Company does not
own the manufacturing assets to make the silicon wafer-based integrated circuits or to package them, but rather has
these manufactured by other comp'anies to its specifications and incorporaling its designs. The Company performs a
large portlon of its product testing at its Hauppauge New York facility (on all products except for testing of its
automotive infotainment products).

.

SMSC’s business is based on substantial intangible intellectual property assets consisting of patented
technology, or access to market peer technology, as well as extensive experience in integrating designs into
systems, the ability to work closely with customers to solve technology application challenges, to develop products
that satisfy market needs and the ability to efficiently manage its global nétwork of suppliers. These attributes allow
SMSC to provide technical performance, cost, or time-to-market advantages to its customers and to develop
leadership positions in several technologies and markets.

SMSC has operations in the United States, Germany, Japan, China, Korea, Singapore, and Taiwan, Major
engineering design centers are located in Arizona, New York, Texas and Germany. Refer to Part I — Item 1.A. —
Risk Factors-and Part [ — Item 7.A. — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures’ About Market Risk for further
discussion regarding risks associated with foreign operations.

Available Information

SMSC’s website address is www.smsc.com. Through the Investor Relations section of our website we make
available, free of charge, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™), as well as any filings made pursuant 10 Section 16 of the Exchange
Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the
1J.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™). Our Internet website and the information contained
therein or incorporated therein are not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

You may also read and copy materials that we have filed with the SEC at its Public Reference Room located at
100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for
further information on the Public Reference Room. In addition, the Commission maintains an Internet site that




contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically
at www.sec.gov .

Principal Markets and Products of the Company

SMSC develops its products to serve applications in three principal vertical markets: Consumer Electronics &
Infotainment; Mobile & Desktop PCs; and Industrial & Other. Most of the Company's products or technologies are
sold into multiple end markets, and its product technologies, intellectual property and proprietary processes are
increasingly being re-used and may be combined into new solutions that can be sold into these markets. Its products
are manufactured using industry standard processes and all are sold through a unified direct sales force that also
manages global relationships with independent, third party sales representatives and distributors.

The flexibility of SMSC'’s products to address multiple end market applications and the convergence of
multimedia technologies is creating new market opportunities. For example, computer makers are supplying

_devices that address entertainment needs, traditional manufacturers of consumer entertainment goods are address-

ing computing needs and automotive manufacturers and system integrators are seeking ways to deliver increasing
multimedia content into the automobile. As a result of substantial investment in research and development over the
past several years, the functionality of SMSC's products has been greatly enhanced, and the portfolio of products in
computing, connectivity afid nétworking has broadened considerably, enabling increased presence in many other
vertical applications using these technologies. This strategic thrust to link available technologies into new
applications and invest in new technologies capable of serving different aspects of these converging markets is
expected to result in increased product diversity and broader sales and marketing opportunities. . .

The Company has substantial expertise in Universal Serial Bus (“USB”) technology, which enables the
transfer of data between devices or hosts. This technology is being adopted in a large number of consumer and
industrial applications, as well as on computer motherboards, expansion circuit boards and in peripheral devices.
SMSC is regarded as an industry leader in providing semiconductors that incorporate the common industry USB
standard specification, referred to in the industry as USB 2.0 or “Hi-Speed USB™. USB 2.0’s high data transfer rate
supports the high bandwidth and speed requirements of consumer multimedia technologies, and because of its
ease-of-use and broad and growing acceptance it has become the leading standard by which interoperability and
connectivity is provided between diverse systems platforms.such as consumer electronics, multimedia computing
and mobile storage applications. Designers are attracted to USB 2.0’s speed, “plug-and-play” features and its
predictable software development requirements. The ubiquity of USB 2.0 silicon and software makes it a cost-
effective choice for designers to add a high-speed serial data pipe for transferring media content.

SMSC’s products are positioned in several areas within the USB connectivity market and include:

« USB 2.0 hub controllers, including solutions for 2-port, 3-port, 4-port, 7-port and combination hub/ flash
memory card reader products. ‘ - '

» USB 2.0 flash membry card reader products, including controllers 'supponing Secure Digital™ (SD),
MultiMediaCard™ (MMC), Memory Stick™ (MS), PRO-HG™, SmartMedia™ (SM), xD-Picture Card ™
(xD) and Compact Flash® (CF) memory and Compact Flash-UDMA card families.

+ Standalone USB 2.0 physical layer transceiver (“PHY") products supporting industry standard interfaces,
well suited for portable handheld electronics devices such as cellular or smart phones, portable media
players, set-top boxes and GPS navigation systems, among others.

In additlion, SMSC has extensive expertise in designing embedded Ethernet products. Ethernet has emerged as
a ubiquiioq_s, versatile networking technology found in home, business and industrial environments. The
Company’s Ethernet products can be designed into applications that may or may not support Peripheral Component
Interconnect (“PCI”) interfaces. PCI is a high-speed connection technology common in computers, but is not
typically found in coﬁspmer electronics and embedded industrial applications. Much of SMSC’s networking growth
is currently being derived from consumer electronics design wins for platforms and applications such as digital
televisions, set-top boxes and digital video recorders that transfer multimedia content via Ethernet technology.
These devices are increasingly adding networking capabilities to broaden their features and attractiveness to the end
consumer. Also, in both business and industrial environments, such as office buildings, or factory floors, there
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continues to be a'rapidly expanding demand for computers machmcry, appliances and other applications to be
networked together.. - ‘

SMSC also serves the embedded market with other networkmg technologies, such ,as ARCNET and
CircLink™, an ARCNET derivative. By replacing traditionally slow, wire intensive, hard-to- usc senial commu-
nications, these solutions allow designers to reduce wiring and microcontroller costs, and create a more flexible and
modular systems architecture. These products target networkmg applications requmng a high level of predictable
behavior, throughput, and ease of implementation such as telecom equipment, robotics, digital copiers and printers,
and tra_nsportatioh systems. '

. .
i 0 0

SMSC’s networking products include:

* 10 Mbps and 100 Mbps Ethernet controllers and transceivers targeting consumer electronics and industrial
applications.

» Network multimedia processing engines supporting multiple high-definition audio/video streams, software
protocol] stack management and secunty, through PCI or non-PCI mterfaces

* Embedded communications products for wireless base stations, copiers, bu11dmg automation, robotics,
gaming machines and industrial applications.

» Embedded Ethernet switches with two and three-port switching technology to solve network connectivity
requirements using both 16 and 32 bit non-PCl and MII interfaces.

« USB to Ethernet controtlers allowing developcrs to deliver Ethernet connectmty while leveraging the
proliferation of USB 2.0.

The Company also markets High Performance Analog (“HPA™) products, which serve both the consumer
electronics and PC markets. Leveraging its expertise in high-speed transceivers, fan control and thermal man-
agement, SMSC engineers technologically leading HPA products for applications such as portable devices and
notebook computers that require a high level of precision and speed.

SMSC is a leading global supplier of embedded controller and analog thermal sensor technology. for
computing applications supplied by major original equipment manufacturers (*OEMs”), original design manu-
facturers (“ODMs"”} and motherboard manufacturers. The Company’s embedded controller solutions offer pro-
grammable, mixed-signal features that allow for feature customization, SMSC also offers a set of companion chips
which offer additional system features such as general purpose inputfoutput (“GPIO") expansion, temperature and
voltage sensing, fan control and consumer infrared remote control. The Company’s broad product portfolio also
provides a variety of integration choices for demgners with unique configurations of serial ports, parallcl ports,
keyboard controllers, infrared ports, GPIO pins, ]oglc mtegranon and power management.

SMSC’s computing platform products also cxtend 1nt0 the x86-based server market. Advanced /O products
for server applications build on SMSC'’s broad /O and system management expertise and include timers, flash
memory interfaces, thermal management and other server requirements.

The Company’s computing products include:

+ Embedded controllers.

. Analog products addressing thermal management, ha.rdware monitoring and voltage supervisory soluuons
for small form factor, high-heat systems such as PCs, servers and other embedded devices.

Hl

» Mixed-signal system controllers that integrate various analog capabilities such as temperature monitoring.

» Advanced /O controllers.
+ x86-based server solutions offering timers, flash memory interfaces and thermal management capabilities.

SMSC is also a supplier of products for the autoinotive market based on its market-leading Media Oriented
Systems Transport (“MOST®”) technology. MOST is a networking standard which enables the transport of high-
bandwidth digital audio, video and packet-based data, along with' control information. MOST-enabled network
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interface controllers (“NICs”) are being designed into automotive networks to transfer high-performance multi-
media content among devices such as radios, navigation systems, digital video displays, microphones and CD-
players quickly and without electrostatic disruption. The Company also markets a chip interconnect technology
known ‘as Media Local Bus (MediaLB™), enabling consumer applications to easily connect to SMSC’s new
network interface controllers for MOST. The MOST technology is a de facto industry standard for high bandwidth
automotive multimedia networking deployed by virtually every major European automobile manufacturer and,
more recently, by Asian manufacturers. SMSC also believes it has the potential to expand its solutions into other
geographic areas and non-automotive markets. The Company also sells related system design and diagnostic tool
products to customers who need to build or maintain MOST compliant systems. These products were added as a
result of the acquisition of OASIS SiliconSystems Holding AG (“OASIS”) on March 30, 2005, as further discussed
below.

Seasonality

The Company’s business his;torically has been subject to repeated seasonality, with the first and last quarters of
each fiscal year tending to be weaker than the second and third. See Part [ Item 1.A. — Risk Factors — Seasonality
of the Business, for further discussion.

Competition

The Company competes in the semiconductor industry, sefvicing and providing solutions for various
applications. Many of the Company’s larger customers conduct business in the PC and related peripheral devices
markets. Intense competition, rapid technological change, cyclical market patterns, price erosion and periods of
mismatched supply and demand have historically characterized these industries. See Part 1 ltem 1.A. — Risk
Factors, for a more detailed discussion of these market characteristics and associated risks,

The Company faces competition from several semiconductor companies, some of which have greater size and
financial resources than the Company. The Company’s principal competitors in the computing market include eNe,
Integrated Technology Express, Inc. (“ITE"), Renesas Technology (“Renesas”™) and Winbond Electronics Corpo-
ration. Principal competitors in SMSC’s other markets include Cypress Semiconductor, Renesas, Davicom
Semiconductor Inc, Genesys Logic, Inc, ASIX Electrohics*Corp, Realtek Semiconductor Corp., NXP Semicon-
ductors, Alcor Micro Corp., and Micrel Semiconductor, Inc. As SMSC continues to broaden its product offerings, it
will likely face new competitors. Many of the Company’s potential COmpctitors'have greater financial resources and
the ability to invest larger dollar amounts into research and develdpment. Some have their own manufacturing
facilities, which may give them a cost advantage on large volume products and increased certainty of supply.

The principal methods employed by the Company to compete effectively include introducing innovative new
products, providing superior product quality and customer service, adding new features to its products, improving
product performance and reducing manufacturing costs. SMSC also cultivates strategic relationships with certain
key customers who are technology leaders in its target markets, aid who provide insight into market trends and
opportunities for the Company to better support those customers’ current and future needs.’

The Company believes that it currently competes effectively in the areas discussed above to the extent they are
within its control. However, given the pace at which change occurs in the semiconductor, personal computer,
automotive and other high-technology industries, SMSC's current competitive capabilities are not a guarantee of
future success. In addition, reductions in the growth rates of these industries, or other competitive developments,
could adversely affect its future financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Research and Development

.
t

. The semiconductor industry and the individual markets that the Company currently serves are highly
competitive, and the Company believes that continued investment in research and development (“R&D") is
essential to maintaining and improving its competitive position. In fiscal years,2008, 2007 and 2006 the Company
spent approximately $71.7 million, $66.6 million and $58.3 million, respectively, on R&D. SMSC has strategic
relationships with many of its customers and often-tailors its solutions to these specific customers’ needs. Serving a




wide array of world class OEMs and ODMs, the Company’s continued success will be based, among other things,
on its ability to meet the individual needs of these customers and to help them speed their own products to market.

-
! ’

SMSC’s R&D activities are performed by highly-skilled engineers and technicians, and are primarily directed
towards the design of integrated circuits in both mainstream and emerging technologies, the development of
software drivers, firmware and design tools and intellectual property (“IP”), as well as ongmng cost reducnons and
performance lmprovemems in existing producls

.
i ‘

Over the past several years, SMSC has evolved from an organization having strength primarily in digital
design, to one with broad engineering and design expertise in digital, analog and mixed-signal solutions. Electronic
signals fall into one of two categories — analog or digital. Digital signals are used to represent the “ones” and
“zeros” of binary arithmetic, and are either on or off. Analog, or lingar, signals represent real-world phenomena,
such as temperature, pressure, sound, speed and motion. These stgnals can be detected and measured using analog
sensors, which represent real-world phenomena by generating varying voltages and currents. Mixed-signal
products combine digital and analog circuitry into a single device. Mixed-signal solutions can significantly reduce
board space by integrating system mterfaces reducing external component requirements and lowering power
consumption, all of which reduce system costs.

SMSC employs engineers with a wide range of experience in software, digital, mixed-signal and analog circuit
design, from experienced industry veterans to new engineers recently graduated from universities. Their activities
are supported by high tech hardware, software and other product design tools procured from leading global
suppliers. The Company’s major engineering design centers are strategically locatéd in New York, Texas, Arizona
and Karlsruhe, Germany to take fujl advantage of the technological expertise found in each region, and to closely
cater {0 its customer base. .

Manufacturing . . . ' ) )

- SMSC provides semiconductor products using a “fabless” manufacturing model, common in the semicon-
ductor industry. Third party contract foundries and -package assemblers are engaged to fabricate the Company’s
products onto silicon wafers, cut these wafers into die and assemble the die into finished packages. This strategy
allows the Company to focus its resources on product design and development, marketing, test and quality
assurance. It also reduces fixed costs and capital requirements and provides the Company access to some of the most
advanced manufacturing capabilities. See Part 1 Item 1.A. — Risk Factors — Reliance upon Subcontract Manu-
facturmg, for further discussion. The Company also faces certain risks as a result of doing business in Asia, where
many of the Company’s subcontractors conduct business. See Part I [tem LLA. — Risk Factors ——Busmess
Concentration in Asia, for further dlscusnon

The Company’s primary wafer suppliers, and their headquarters locatioris, are currently Chartered Semicon-
ductor Manufacturing, Ltd. in Singapore, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Ltd. (“TSMC”) in
Taiwan and STMicroelectronics N.V. in Switzerland. The Company may negotiate additionial foundry supply
contracts and establish other sources of wafer supply for its products as such arrangements become useful or
necessary, either economically or technologicaily.

Processed silicon wafers are shipped to various third party assembly suppliers, most of which are located in
Asia, where they are separated into individual chips that are then encapsulated into plastic packages. This enables
the Company to take advantage of these subcontractors’ cost effective high volume manufacturing processes and
package technologies, speed and supply ﬂex1b1hty The Company purchases most of its assembly services from
Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., Amkor Technology, .Inc., ChipMOS Technologies Ltd., Orient
Semiconductor Electromcs Ltd. and STATSChipPac Ltd. See Part I Item 1.A. — Risk Factors — Reliance upon
Subcontract Manufacturmg and Business Concentration in Asia for further discussion.

Following assembly, each of 'the packaged units receives final testing, marking and’ inspection prior to
shipment to customers. Final testing for a large portion of the Company's non-automotive products is performed at
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SMSC’s own testing operation in Hauppauge, New York. Final testing services of independent test suppliers, most
of which occurs in-Asta, are also utilized and afford the Company increasing flexibility to adjust to near-term
flucluauons in product demand and corresponding production requirements.

Customers demand semlconductors of the highest quality and rellablllty for incorporation into their products.
SMSC focuses on product reliability from the initial stages of the design cycle lhrough each specific design process,
including production test design. In addition, to further validate producl performance across process variation and to

"ensure acceptable design margins, designs are typically subject to in-depth circuit simulation at temperature,
voltage and processing extremes before initiating the manufacturing process. The Company prequalifies each of its
assembly, test and wafer foundry subcontractors using a series of industry standard environmental product stress
tests, as well as an audit and analysis of the subcontractor’s quality system and manufacturing capability. Wafer
foundry production and assembly services are monitored to ensure consistent overall quality, reliability and yield
levels.

Raw Materials

As a fabless semiconductor company, SMSC does not directly purchase commeodities used in the manufac-
turing process. However, the Company may be subject to commodity price risk as detailed in Part ] — Item 1.A. —
Risk Factors — Reliance Upon Subcontract Manufacturing and in Part II — Item 7.A — Quantitative and Qual-
itative Disclosures About Market Risk — Commodity Price Risk.

Sales,.Marketing' and Customer Service

The Company’s primary sales and marketing strategy is to achieve design wins with technology leaders and
channel customers in targeted markets by providing superior products, field applications and engineering support.
Sales managers are dedicated to key OEM and ODM customers to achieve high levels of customer service and to
promote close collaboration and communication. Supporting the success of its customers through technological
excellence, innovation and overall product quality are centerpieces of SMSC’s corporate strategy.

The Company also serves its customers with-a worldwide network of field application engineers. These
engineers assist customers in the selection and proper use of its products and are available to answer customer
questions and resolve technical issues. The field application engineers are supported by factory application
engineers, who work with the Company’s factory design and product engineers to develop the requisite support
tools and facilitate the introduction of new products.

The Compahy strives to make the *design-in” of its prdducts as easy as possible for its customers. To facilitate
this, SMSC offers a wide variety of support tools, including evaluation boards, sample firmware diagnostics
programs, sample schematics and printed circuit board layout files, driver programs, data sheets, industry standard
specifications and other documentation. These tools are readily available from the Company’s sales offices and
sales representatives. SMSC’s home page on the World Wide Web (www.smsc.com) provides customers with
immediate access to its latest product information. In addition, the Company maintains online tools resources so
that registered customers can download these items as needed. Customers are also provided with reference platform
designs for many of the Company’s products, which enable easier and faster transitions from initial prototype
designs through final production releases.

SMSC strategically markets and sells all of its products globally through a centrally managed sales network
using various channels in multiple geographic regions. SMSC conducts sales activities in the United States via a
direct sales force, electronics distributors and manufacturers’ representatives. Two independent distributors are
currently engaged to serve the majority of the North American market. Internationally, products are marketed and
sold through regional sales offices located in Germany, Taiwan, China, Korea and Singapore as well as through a
network of independent distributors and representatives. The Company serves the Japanese marketplace primarily
through its Tokyo, Japan-based subsidiary, SMSC Japan, through relationships w1th five leading distributors in that

market.

Consistent with industry practice, most distributors have certain rights of return and price protection privileges
on unsold products. Distributor contracts may generally be terminated by written notice by either party. The
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contracts-specify the terms for the return of inventories. Shipments made by SMSC Japanto d|str|butors in Japan are
made under agreements that permit limited or no stock return or price protection privileges.

. The Company generates'a significant portion of its sales and revenues from international customers. While the
demarnid for the Company’s products is primarily driven by the worldwide demand for Consumer Electronics &
Infotainment, Mobile & Desktop PC and Industrial & Other applications sold by U.S.-based suppliers, a significant
portion of the Company’s products are sold to manufacturing subcontractors of those U.S.-based suppliers, and to
distributors who serve to feed the high technology manufacturing pipeline, located in Asia. The Company expects
that international shipments, particularly to Asian-based customiers, will continue to represent a significant portion
of its sales and revenues. See Part I tem 1.A. — Risk Factors—Busmess Concemranon in As:a, for further
discussion. K

Markets & Strategy

As previously outlmed the Company designs products that address spec1ﬁc apphcanons for end products sold
in three primary “vertical” markets:

! .

* Consumer Electronics & Infotainment °
ot

» Mobile & Desktop PCs Ca s .
» Industrial & Other . l

~ SMSC’s sales and revenues of products across these rvcﬁical" end-markets, as well as iﬁtellectual property
JTevenues {consisting of royalties and similar contractual paymems), are presented in lhe following table for fiscal
2008 and 2007 (dollars in millions): . . . .

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
. Amount Percent Amount Percent
Consumer Electronics & Infotainment .. . ... ................ S1466 39% $143.7 39%
Mobite & Desktop PC ... ... .. ... . ... 1575 .. 42% 157.3 42%
Industrial & Other (including Intellectual Property Revenues). .. ... .. 737 119% 696 _19%
Total Sales and Revenues . . . .. ... . ... .. e, $377.8 100% $370.6 ~ 100%

+ Designs that serve the Consumer Electronics & Infotainment market primarily provide connectivity or
networking functions that allow data transfer or content sharing in consumer or automotive products. For instance,
the Company provides USB 2.0 hub, flash memory card reader and mass storage devices that may be embedded in
LCD monitors, printers, set-top boxes, digital televisions or gaming products to transfer content at high speeds.
SMSC’s Ethernet networking products address system resource limitations and other challenges typical of
embedded consumer electronics systems for applications such as digital televisions, DVD and hard disk drive-
based video recorders and digital media ‘servers and adapters. The Company also designs network multimedia
procéssing engines supporting multiple high definition audio/vidéo streams, software protocol stack management
and security, through PCI or non-PCI interfaces. Lastly, SMSC’s MOST technology enables the networking of
infotainment systems in automobiles, such as a CD changer, radio, global positioring system, mobile telephone or a
DVD player, by providing the means to distribute multimedia entertainment functions among various control

devices in the car. | D .

SMSC serves industry leading_ PC customers in the Mobile & Desktop PC market with embedded controllers,
mixed-signal system controllers, server /O devices, USB 2.0 hubs and analog solutions including fan control,
temperature and voltage ‘sensing and consumer infrared functionality. Appllcauons include mobile and desktop
‘computers, Servers, medla center PCS and docking stations.

Customers in the Industrml & Other markets are pnmanly supported by the Company’s preducts that serve
long life cycle embedded systems and those that require highly accurate signal transfer or industrial-level
temperature montitoring functionality. SMSC provides Ethernet, ARCNET, CircLink™ and Embedded /O
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technology to address applications that include POS terminals, building and factory automation, security systems,
industrial PCs, ATM machines and interactive kiosks. .

The Company uses a highly integrated approach in developing its products, and discrete technologies
developed by the Company are frequently integrated across many of its products and customer-specific applica-
tions. Further, the Company continuously explores and seeks opportunities to introduce new or existing products,
either individually or in combination within systems and end products, for broader application within or across
these “vertical” markets. Strategically, the Company believes that the integration of products and convergence of
applications will be a continuing trend. The Company’s ability to anticipate and capitalize on these trends will be
essential to its long-term success, and hence will continue to be a prime consideration in resource allocation
decisions and the internal evaluation of the Company’s competitive and financial performance.

In executing this strategic approach, the Company is managed in a highly integrated manner, and internal
resources are allocated and corresponding investments are made in a manner that the Company believes will
maximize total returns from product sales both individually (with respect to individual products or product families)
and in the aggregate (a “portfolio” approach). Such returns are measured at the “project” level. As used by the
Company, the concept of “returns” encompasses both “turns” (i.e. pay-back multiple) and net present value metrics,
as well as strategic considerations. Projects consist of either a single product offering (as would be the case for a new
product launch) or a product family, consisting of multipte product variants stemming from an original design. Such
variants can consist of relatively simple modifications to an original design, introduction of “next generation”
capabilities and features and/or strategic integration(s) of new technologies into existing products.

Projected results for each project are evaluated independently for the impact on returns to SMSC as a whole,
and the allocation of resources (particularly engineering and R&D investment) are based on the individual project
economics. While the Company’s internal resources may be augmented or tempered depending on the business
environment, product pipeline and other factors, such decisions are predicated on expected overall project returns
and the corresponding impact on consolidated financial performance.

Given the proliferation of customer demand for products based on convergent technologies, especially among
the Company’s current product offerings and core competencies, the opportunities to improve overall project/
product returns with incremental investments are expected to increase. In addition, we believe that the continuous
focus on such products and opportunities are strategic and key to the future success of the Company.

Ac;]uisition of OASIS

On March 30, 2005, SMSC announced the acquisition of OASIS, a leading provider of MOST technology,
serving a top tier customer base of leading automakers and automotive suppliers. OASIS’ infotainment networking
technology has been deployed by many European luxury and mid-market car brands, including Audi, BMW,
Daimler, Land Rover, Porsche, Saab and Volvo, and more recently, by several Asian vehicle manufacturers.

The initial cost of the acquisition at March 30, 2005 was approximately $118.6 million, including approx-
imately $79.5 million of cash, 2.1 million shares of SMSC common stock, valued at $35.8 million, and an estimated
$3.3 million of direct acquisition costs, including legal, banking, accounting and valuation fees. Included with the
net assets acquired from OASIS were approximately $22.4 million of cash and cash equivalents; therefore SMSC’s
initial net cash outlay for the transaction, including transaction costs, was approximately $60.4 million.

The terms of the agreement also provided the former OASIS shareholders the opportunity to earn up to
$20 million of additional consideration, based upon achieving certain fiscal 2006 performance goals, the amount
earned of which, if any, was indeterminable until February 28, 2006. Based upon fiscal 2006 performance and per
the computation completed and submitted on April 28, 2006, the former OASIS shareholders earned approximately
$16.4 million of additional consideration, consisting of approximately 0.2 million shares of SMSC common stock
'valued for accounting purposes as of May 9, 2006 at $4.0 million, and approximately $12.4 million of cash, all of
which was paid during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. SMSC’s existing cash balances were used to fund the cash
portion of the additional consideration. The fair value of the shares tendered was approximately $1.4 million less at
the settlement date than had been estimated as of February 28, 2006, resulting in a corresponding adjustment to
goodwill in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.
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Geographic Information. . - . -

The information below summanzes sales and revenues to wnaffiliated customers for ﬁscal 2008, 2007 and
2006 by country {in thousands): ¢ . . - ;

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28 2008 ) 2007 2006
THWAD. . e e SRR . 8103661 $132972  $149,153
China. ...... ..o R Leeo. 94200 | 52136 14,423
JADAD. . L0\ L5213 70720 54293
United States . 22700t 34,531 34937 37,390
GEIMANY .« o v ottt e e 35650 46,717 35124
" Other...;..... e e il i 51675 33112 28,735

$377,849  $370,594 $319,118

Product sales to electronic component distributors were reflected in the table above based on the country of
- their respective operations; the geographic locations of end customers may differ.

It is expected that in future periods sales and revenues will increase at a more rapid rate in countries and
geographlc reg1ons outside of the United States.

The Company’s long-lived assets 1nclude net property and eqmpment goodwﬂl and other intangible assets,
deferred income taxes and various long “lived financial mstruments Net property, plant and equnprnent by country is
as follows {in thousands)

As of February 29 and 28, 7 : . 2008 2007

o+ United States . ........... iiian... e e v $59,420 0 $56,854
Germany. . .. ... N P i e e e v 984 693 -

Japan and Other Asia Pacific. . ......... e e L 143 473
SR . - D ' " $60,547  $58,020

* v [ . . ' == l

Intellectual Property '

The Company believes that intellectoal property isa valuable asset that has been, and will continue to be,
lmportant to the Company’s success. The Company has received numerous Umted States and foreign patents, or
‘cross licenses to patents that refate toits technologies and additional patent applications are pending. Thé Company
also has obtained certain domestlc and international trademark registrations for its products and maintains certain
details about its processes products'and strategies as trade secrets. Tt is the Company’s policy to protect these assets
through reasonable means. To protect these dssets, the Company relies upon nondlsclosure agreements contractual
provisions, patent, tradernark, trade secret and copyright laws,

SMSC has patent cross-licensing agreements with more than thirty compahies, including such semiconductor
manufacturers as Intel Corporation, Micron Technology, Samsung Electronics Co., National Semiconductor
Corporation and Toshiba Corporation, providing access to approx1mately 45,000 U.S. patents. Almost all of
the Company s cross-licensing agreements give SMSC the right to use patented intellectual property of the other
companies royalty-free. SMSC also receives related payments from Intel. See Part iV Item 15(a)(1) — Financial
Statements — Note 11, for further discussion on the Company’s’ agreement with Intel. In situations where the
Company needs to acquire strategic intellectual property not covered by cross-licénses, the Company at times will
seek to, and has e'nter'ed into agreerents t0 purchase or license, the required intellectual property. ™ :

Backlog and Customers S - -

The Company’s business is characterized by short-term order and sh1pment schedules, rather than long-term
volume purchase contracts. The Company schedules production, the cycle for which is typically several months
long, based generally upon a forecast of demand for its products, recognizing that subcontract manufacturers
require long lead times to manufacture and deliver the Company’s final products. The Company modifies and
rebalances its production schedules to'actual demand as required. Sales are made primarily pursuant to purchase
orders generally requiring delivery within one month, and at times, several months. Typical of industry practice,
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orders placed with the Company may be canceled or rescheduled by the customer on short notice without significant
penalty. In addition, incoming orders and resulting backlog-can fluctuate considerably during periods of perceived
or actual semiconductor supply shortages or overages. As a result, the Company’s-backlog may not be a reliable
indicator of future sales and can fluctuate considerably.

a ¥
From period to penod several key customers can account for a srgnlﬂcant portion of the Company s sales and
tevenues. Sales and revenues from significant customers for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, stated as percentages of
total sales and revenues, are summarized as follows:

For Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 23, ‘ 2008 2007 2006
Yosun Industrial & Sertek ... ..............oo.oo.. S 249wk
Yosun Industrial ........ e e e e *E * 10%
Sertek . ... ... N *r * 15%
-Tech-Com Computer . . . .. e e e e e 11% * *

Wintech ........ A Y i R L 11%

* Less than 10%
** Not applicable

The Company’s contracting sales counterparty may vary as a result of the manner in Wthh it goes to market
the structure of the semiconductor market, 1ndustry consohdatlon and customer preferences In many cases the
Company 5 products will be designed into an end product by an OEM customer who will then contract to have the
product manufactured by an ODM. In such cases, the Company will sell its products directly to the selected ODM,
who becomes the Company’s contracting counterparty for the sale. In other cases, the OEM or. ODM may design the
product and be the contracting counterparty. In some cases the Company or the ODM may wish to have a distributor
as the direct sales counterparty. As a result of changing relationships and shifting market practices and preferences,
the mix of customers can change from period to period and over time.

Two customers accounted for more than 10% of total sales each, and jointly a combmed 35% of total sales and
revenues for fiscal 2008. In addition to the above factors, this was partly a result of the acquisition of one large
distributor (Sertek) by another large distributor (Yosun) in March 2007.

All of the customers listed in the table above are drstnbutors of SMSC products in Asra and in turn resel] the
Company’s products to many different end users.

The Company continues. to expect that a small number of larger customers, w111 continue to account for a
significant portion of its sales and revenues in ﬁscal 2009 and for the foreseeable future. The Company does not
believe that the chan; ge in ldennty of the customers from 2006-2008 represents a fundamental change in its business,
rather the chan 1ge in top customers in part, is due to the shrflmg nature of OEM preferences for where they have their
product de31gns manufactured, industry consolidation or ODM customers changmg the distributor from whom they
purchase the Company’s products.

‘Employees

At February 29, 2008 the Company employed 838 1ndmduals including 177 in sales, marketmg and customer
support, 218 in manufacturmg and manufacturmg support, 350 in research and product development and 143 in
administrative support and facility maintenance activities.

The Company’s future success depends in large part on the continued servrce of key technical and management |

personnel and on its ability to continue to attract and retain qualified cmployees, particularly highly skilled design,
product and test engineers involved in manufacturrng existing products and the development of new products. The
competition for such personne! is intense.

- The Company has never had a work stoppage. Noné of SMSC’s employees are represented by labor
orgamzanons and the Company consrders its ernployee relatlons to be positive. ° :
_Item 1. A - "
+ Readers of this Annua] Report on Form 10-K (“Report”) should carefully consrder the I'lSkS described below, in
addition to the other information contained in this Report and in the Company’s other reports filed or furnished with

T E -
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the SEC, including thie Company's prior and subsequent.reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K, in connection with any
evaluauon ‘of the Company s financial position, fesults of operations and cash flows.

The risks arid uncertainties described below are not the only ones facmg the Company. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known or those that are currently deemed immaterial may also affect the Company’s
operations. Any of the risks, uncertainties, events or circumstances-described below could cause the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations to be adversely affected. :

THE COMPANY COMPETES IN COMPET[TIVE INDUSTRIES HAS EXPERIENCED SIGNIFICANT
VOLATILITY IN ITS STOCK PRICE; AND FACES A CHALLENGING MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The Semiconductor Industry — The Company competes in the semiconductor industry, which has historically
been characterized by intense competition, rapid technological change, eyclical 'market patterns, price erosion,
periods of mismatched supply and demand and high volatility of résults. The semiconductor industry has
experienced significant economic downturns at various times in the past, characterized by diminished product
demand and accelerated erosion of selling prices. In addmon many of the Company’s competitors in the
semiconductor mdustry are larger and have mgmﬁcant!y greater financial and other resources than the Company.
General conditions i in the semiconductor mdustry, and actlo‘ns of specific competitors, could adversely affect the
Company’s results In parucular ‘the semlconductor industry demand is currently experiencing an uncertain near
term outlook lmked 10 Macroeconomic conditions affecting the, credit market and housing values, which may in turn
effect consumption of producls with electronics content. The Company s business plans for fiscal year 2009 assume
that conditions in the sem:conduclor industry will i 1mprove in the second half of calendar year 2008 and in calendar
year 2009. The Company s results may be adversely affected 1f demand in the semiconductor industry does not
improve as anticipated, or declmes even further,

" The subprime credit crisis has also led to deterioration in capital market liquidity that has adversely affected
general business conditions outside of the banking and financial services sectors. The recent failure of the auction
rate securities markets has also calsed the Company to reclassify its investments in auction rate securities from
short-term to long-term. If the issuers of the Company’s auction rate securities suffer a material decline in their
creditworthiness, the value of the'Company’s auction rate securities could be impaired. The Company’s results may
also be adversely affected if these'and other events in the financial markets, or other macroeconomic events, lead to
a recession or otherwise result in decreased demand for the Company’s products.

The semiconductor industry, including its supply chain, is maturing, and has been undergoing consolidation
through mergers and acquisitions. In addition; there have been a number of ownership changes through the purchase
of previously public companies, in part due to an influx of capital led by private equity firms, As.a result of this
consolidation and the ownership changes, the Company may experience changes in its relationships in the supply
chain and may have feweér soutces of supply for wafer production, assembly services, or other products or services it
needs to procure which conld impair sourcing flexibility or increase costs. The Company may also face fewer and
larger, more capable, better financed competitors. Consolidation and ownership changes within the semiconductor

industry could adversely affect the Company’s results, \

The Personal Compurer (“PC”) Industry — Demand for many of the Company's products depends largely on
sales of personal computers and’ peripheral devices, Reduouons in the rate of growth of the PC market could
adversely affect the Company $ operating results In addition, as a component supplier to PC manufacturers the
Company may experience greater demand fluctuation than its customers themselves expenence

The PC industry is characterized by ongoing product changes and improvements, much of which is driven by
several large companies whose own business str.ltegles play :ngmﬁcam roles in detenmnmg PC archntcctures
Future shifts in PC architectures may n not always be anticipated or be consistent w1th the Company’s producl dest gn

roadmapq

The Company has a business strategy that involves ma:kenng and selling new products and technologles
directly to market-leading companies (although resultant sales are often made to third-party intermediaries such as
ODM:s). If the market performance of any of these companies declines materially, or if they order fewer products
from the Company than forecasted, the Company’s revenues and profitability could be adversely affected. These
large companies also possess significant leverage in negotiating the terms and conditions of supply as a result of
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their market power. The Company may be forced in certain circumstances to accept potential liability exceeding the
purchase price of the products sold by the Company, or various forms of potential consequential damages to avoid
losing business to competitors. Such terms and conditions could adverse]y impact the revenues and margins earned
by the Company ‘ _ )

The Company during fiscal year 2007 also adjusted its strategy and eliminated certain low margin products to
try to improve its profitability. Although the Company believes this strategy was successful in fiscal year 2008, the
Company’s results may be adversely affected in the future if it cannot replace lost revenue from low margin products
with higher margin products. In addition, the Company s business plan for fiscal year 2009 is predicated on revenue
growth in specific products and techiologies, in partrcu!ar ‘the Company’s high performance analog (“HPA™)
products, and on a number of new product introductions planned for the second and third quarters of fiscal year
2009. If this growth in HPA and other new or enhanced products does not materialize as expected, or the Company

fails to meet its schedule for product introductions, the Company’s results could be adversely affected.

Volatility of Stock Price — The volatility of the semiconductor irdustry has also been reflected historically in
the market price of the Company s common stock. The market price of the Company’s conimon stock can fluctuate
significantly on the basis of such factors as the Company” s or its competitors’ introductions of new products,
quarterly fluctuations in the Company’s financial results, announcements by the Company or its competitors of
significant technical innovations, acqu1S|t10ns strategic partnershrps joint ventures or capital commitments;
introduction of technologies or product enhancements that reduce the need for the Company’s products; the loss
of, or decrease in sales to, one or more key custorers; a large sale of stock by a significant shareholder; dilution
from the issuance of the Company s stock in connection with acquisitions; the addition or removal of our stock to or
from a stock index fund; departures of key personnel; the required expensing of stock options or Stock Appreciation
Rights (“SARs"); quarterly fluctuations in the Company’s guidance or in the financial results of other semicon-
ductor companies or personal computer companies; changes in the expectations of market analysts or investors, or
general conditions in the semiconductor industry or financial markets. In addition, stock markets in general have
experienced extreme price and volume volatility in recent years. This volatility has often had a significant impact on
the stock prices of high technology companies, at times for reasons that appear unrelated to business performance.
The Company’s stock price experienced significant volatility in fiscal year,2008, particularly in its fiscal fourth
quarter, and the Company’s stock price may continue to experience significant volatility in the future.

The volatility of the stock price itself can impact the Company’s eamnings because volatility is one
measurement that is used in calculating the value of stock based compensation to employees. In particular
changes in stock price can materially affect the periodic compensation expense associated with SARs, which is
remeasured quarterly. -

THE COMPANY HAS LARGE CONCENTRATED CUSTOMERS AND MUST SATISFY DEMANDING
PRICE, TECHNOLOGY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

Product Development, Quality and Technological Change — The Company s growth is hlgh!y dependent
upon the successful development and timely introduction of new products at competitive prices and performance
levels, with acceptable margins. The success of new products depends on various factors, including timely
completion of product development programs, the availability of third party intellectual property on reasonable
terms and conditions, market acceptance of the Company’s and its customers’ new products, achieving acceptable
yields, securing sufficient capacity at a reasonable cost for the Company’s products and the Company’s ability to
offer these new products at competitive prices. ' )

The Company’s products are generally designed into its customers’ products through a competitive process
that evaluates the Company’s product features, price, and many other considerations. In order to succeed in having
the Company’s products incorporated into new products being designed by its customers, the Company seeks to
anticipate market trends and meet performance, quality and functionality requirements of such customers and seeks
to successfully develop and manufacture products that adhere to these requirements. In addition, the. Company is
expected to meet the timing and price requirements of its customers and must make such products available in
sufficient quantities. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to identify market trends or new
product opportunities, develop and market new products, achieve design wins or respond effectrvely to new
technological changes or product announcements by others. - :
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Although the Company has significant processes and procedures in place in an attempt to guarantee the quality
of its products, there can also be no assurance that the Company will not suffer unexpected yield or quality issues
that could materially affect its operating results. The Company’s products are complex and may contain errors,
particularly when first introduced or.as new versions are released. The Company relies primarily on its in-house
testing and quality personnel to design test operations and procedures to detect any errors prior to'delivery of its
products to its customers, Should problems occur in the operation or performance of the Company’s 1Cs, it may
experience delays in meeting key introduction dates or scheduled delivery dates to its customers. These errors also
could cause the Company to incur significant re-engineering costs, divert the attention of its engineering personnel
from its product development efforts and cause significant customer relations and businéss reputation problems.
Furthermore, a supply interruption or quality issue could result in claims by customers for recalls or rework of
finished goods containing components supplied by the Company. Such claims can far exceed the revenues received
by the Company for the sale of such products. Although the Company attempts to mitigate such risks via insurance,
contractual terms; and maintaining buffer stocks of inventory, there can be no assurancé that the Company will not
receive such claims in the future, or that the Company will be able to maintain its customers if it refuses to be
responsible for some portion of these claims. K

As part of its product development cycle, the Company often is requ1red to make significant investments well
before'it can expect to receive revenue from those investments. For example, mvestmenls to produce semicon-
ductors for automotlve companies, even if successful, may not result in"a product appcanng in an‘automobile and
associated revenue until many years later. The long lead-time between investment and revenue may increase the risk
associated with such investments. The Company’s operating results may be adversely affected if the product
development cycle is delayed, or if the Company chooses the wrong products to invest in, or if product development
costs exceed budgets. ' b B '

N C :

The Company’s future growth will depend, among other things, upon its ability to continue to expand its
products into new markets. To the extent that the Company attempts to compete in new markets, it may face
.competmon from supphers that have well-established market positions and products that have already been proven
to be technologically and economically competmve There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful
in displacing these suppllers in the targeted applications.

Price Erosion — The semiconductor indthry is characterized by intense competition. Historically, average
selling prices in the semiconductor industry generally, and for the Company’s products in particular, have declined
significantly over the life of each product While the Company expects to reduce the average prices of its products
over time as it aChICVCS manufacturmg cost reductions, competitive and other pressures may require the reduction of
selling prices more quickly than such cost reductions can be achieved. If not offset by reductions in manufacturing
costs or by a shift'in the mix of products sold toward higher-margin products declines in the average selling prices
could reduce profit margins. '

S:ra!eg:c Relanonshrps wnh Cusmmers-—The Company’s future success depends in significant part on
strategic relationships with certain of i its customers. If these relationships are not maintained, or if these customers
develop their own solutions, adopt a compemor s so]uuon or choose to discontinue thelr rclatlonshlps with SMSC,
the Company’s operating results could be adversely aﬁ'ected '

In the past, the Company has relied on its stra'tegic relationships with certain customers who are technology
leaders in its target markets. The Company intends to pursue and continue to form these strategic relationships in the
future. These relationships often require the Company to develop new products that typically involve significant
technological challenges. These customers frequently place considerable pressure on the Company to meet their
tight development schedules. Accordingly, the Company may have to devote a substantial portion of its resources to
these strategic relationships, which could detract from or delay. completion of other important development
projects. ‘ ,

Some of the Coinpany’s important end user customers are relying more heavily on original design manu-
facturers (“ODMSs”} to make decisions asto which components are incorporated into their products. The Company’s

results may be adversely affected if it fails to maintain effective relationships with these ODMs.
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Customer Concentration and- Shipments to- Distributors — A ‘limited number of customers account for a
significant portion of the Company’s sales'and revenues. The Company’s sales and revenues:from any one customer
can fluctuate from period to period depending upon market demand for that customer’s products, the customer’s
inventory management of the Company’s products and the overall financial condition of the customer. Loss of an
important customer, or detenoratmg results from an 1mportant customer, could adversely 1mpact the Company's
operating results. :

+.  A_significant portion of the Company’s product sales are made through distributors.  The Company’s
distributors generally offer products from several different suppliers, including products that may be competitive
with the Company’s products. Accordingly, there is risk that these distributors may give higher priority to products
of other suppliers, thus reducing their efforts to sell the Company’s products. In addition, the Company’s
agreements with its distributors are generally terminable at the distributor’s option, No assurance can be given
that future sales by distributors will continue at curreat levels or that the Company will be able to retain its current
distributors on acceptable terms. A reduction in sales efforts by one or more of the Company’s current distributors or
a termination of any distributor’s relationship with the Company could have an adverse effect on the Company’s
operating results,

The Company does not have long-term purchase contracts or commitments from its customers, and substan-
tially all of ‘the Company 5 sales are made on a purchase order basis. Therefore, customers may decide to
significantly alter their purchasmg patlems without penalty and w1th little advance notice. As a result, substantlally
all of our sales are being made on a purchase order basis, which permits our customers to cancel, change or delay
producl purchase commitments with little or no notice o us and without penalty. Also we do not generally obtain
letters of credit, credit insurance, or other security for payment from customers or distributors. Accordingly, we are
typically not protected against accounts receivable default or bankruptcy by these entities. Qur ten largest customers
or distributors represent a substantial majority of our accounts receivable. If any such customer or distributor were
to become insolvent or otherwnse not satisfy its obligations to us, we could be matenally harmed.

Sales and revenues dnd associatéd gross profit from shlpments to the Company s distributors, other than to
distributors in Japan, are deferred until the distributors resell the products. Shipments to d1§tnbutors other than to
distributors in Japan, are made under agreements allowing pricé protection and limited rights to return unsold
merchandise. The Company’s revenue recognition is therefore highly dependent upon receiving pertinent, accurate
and nmely data from jts distributors, Distributors routinely provide the Company with product, price, quantity and
end customer data when products are resold, as well as report the quantities of the Company’s products that are still
in their inventories. In determmmg the appropnale amount of revenue to recognize, the Company uses this data and
applies judgment in reconciling any differences between the dlslnbulors reported inventories and shipment
activities. Although this information is reviewed and verified for accuracy, any errors or omissions made by the
Company’s distributors and not detected by the Company, if material, could affect reported operating resuits.

Shipments to ODMs and Other lmegrators — As part of its strategy, the Company is attempting to sell more
products directly to certain significant ODMs. Some of these ODMs previously purchased the Company's produets
through distributors. The Company is makmg this change becatise it believes it can better sérvice its customers, and
more efficiently manage its business, as a result. The Company’s $ales and margins may be adversely affected if the
Company does not properly execute the transition from indirect to direct 'sales for the designated ODMs. It is also
possible that the Company’s sales via its distributors may suffer as a result of this strategy.

As a component manufacturer, the overwhelming majority of products made by the Company are shipped to
third parties for integration with or into other products. The third parties then sell their product, containing the
Company’s components, to other integratots or to the ultimate. commercial custamer. If these third party integrators
experience delays in developing or manufacturing their products,-quality problems, or are unable to satisfy their
customer’s demand for any 'reason, demand for the Comipany’s products will be’adversely affected. This could
materially affect the Company’s revenues and profitability.

Seasonality of the Business — The Company’s business historicaily has been subject to repeated seasonality,
with 'the first and last quarters of each fiscal year tending to be wéaker than the second and third quarters. The
seasonality of the Company’s business may adversely impact the Company’s stock.price and result in additional
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volatility in its results of operations. Because-the Company expects a certain degree of seasonality in its results, it
may fail to recognize an actual downturn in its business, and continuc to make investments or other business
decisions that adversely afféct its business in the future. (- L 1

Crea'u lssues—The Company attempts to mitigate its credit risk by doing busmess only w1th creditworthy
entities and by managing the amount of credit extended to its customers. However, the Company may choose to
extend credit to certain entities because it is necessary to support the requirements of an important customer or for
other reasons. in the past the Company has had to take certain charges against earnings as a result of the mablllty of
certain of its cuslomers to pay for goods received. There can be no assurance that the Company will not incur similar
charges in the future.

THE COMPANY'S ‘FABLESS BUSINESS MODEL 1S HEAVILY CONCENTRATED IN ASIA AND
DEPENDENT ON A SMALL NUMBER OF WAFER AND ASSEMBLY COMPANIES WHO POSSESS
NEGOTIATING LEVERAGE. THE COMPANY IS QFTEN REQUIRED TO COMMIT TO CERTAIN PUR-
CHASE QUANTITIES TO SECURE CAPACITY, AND IS SUBJECT TO FLUCTUATIONS IN COMMODITY
PRICES AND AVAILABILITY ' ' -

Business Concentration in ASIG —A mgmﬁcant number of the Company’s foundries and subcontractors are -

located in Asia. Many of the Company’s customers also manufacture in Asia or subcontract to Asian companies. A
significant portion of the world’s, personal computer component and circuit board manufacturing, as well as
personal computer assembly, occurs in Asia, and many of the Company’s euppliers and customers are based in, or
do significant business in, Talwan In addition, many companies are expandmg their operations in Asiain an attempt
to reduce their costs, and the Company is also explonng relanonshlps with compames in Asia as part of its ongoing
efforts to make its supply chain more efficient. This concentration of manufacturing and sellmg activity in Asia, and
in Tanwan in pamcular poses risks that could affect the supply and cost of the Company’s products, mcludmg
currency exchange rate fluctuations, economic and trade policies and the political environment in Taiwan, China
and other Asian communities. For example, legislation in the Umted States restricting or adding tanffs to imported
goods could adversely affect the Company’s operating results.

The risk of earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacific Rim region is s1gmﬁcant due to the proximity of major
earthquake fault lines in the area. We are not currently covered by insurance against business disruption caused by
earthquakes as such insurance is not curréntly available on terms thatywe believe are commercially reasonable.
Earthquakes, fire, flooding, lack of water or other natural disasters in Taiwan or the Pacific Rim region, or an
epidemic, political unrest, war, labor strike or work stoppage in countries where our semiconductor manufacturers,
assemblers and test subcontractors are located, likely would result in the disruption of our foundry, assembly or test
capacity. There can be no assurance that alternate capacity could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms, if
at all. o "

Reliance upon Subconrract Manufacturmg — The vast majority of the Company 3 produets are manufactured
and assembled by 1ndependent foundries and subconlract manufacturers under a “fabless’) model. This reliance
upon foundries and subcontractors involves certam risKs, including potential lack of manufacmrmg avallabrhty,
reduced control over dellvery schedules the availability of advanced process technologies, changes in manufac-
turing yields, dislocation, éxpense and delay caused by decisions to relocate manufacturing facilities or processes,
and potential cost fluctuations. During downturns in the semiconductor economic cycle, reduction in overall
demand for semiconductor products could financially stress certain of the Company’s subcontractors. If the
financial resources of such independent subcontractors are stressed, the Company may experience future product
shortages, quality assurance problems mcreased manufacturing costs or other supply chain dlsruptrons

During upturns in the semiconductor cycle, it is not always possible to adequately respond to unexpected
increases in customer demand due to capacity constraints. The Company may be unable to obtain adequate foundry,
assembly or test capacity from third-party subcontractors o meet customers’ delivery requirements even if the
Company adequately forecasts customer demand. Alternatively, the Company may have to incur unexpected costs
to expedite orders in order to meet unforecasted customer demand. The Company typically does not have supply
contracts with its third-party vendors that obligate the vendor to perform services and supply products for a specific
-period, in specific quantities, and at ‘specific prices. 'The Company’s third-party foundry, assembly and test
subcontractors typically do not guarantee that adequate capacity will be available within the time required to meet
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customer demand for products. In the event that these vendors fail to meet required demand for whatever reason, the
Company expects that it would take. up to twelve months to transition performance of these services to new
providers. Such a transition may also require qualification of the new providers by the Company’s customers or their
end customers, which would take additional time, The requalification process for the entire supply chain including
the end customer could take several years for certain of the Company ] products

In the past, the Compan'y received several dnéxpected price increases from several entities that assemble or
package products. In' the past there have been periods of shortage of capac1ty among companies that supply
assembly services. In the latter part of fiscal year 2008 the Company’s margins were adversely impacted because of
the extraordinary rise in the price of gold, a component of certain semiconductor packages. The Company’s
contracts ‘generally do not protect it from price increases in certain base commodities used in the semiconductor
manufacturing process. Although the Company resists attempts by suppliers to increase prices, there can be no
assurance that the Company’s margins will not be impacted in fiscal year 2009 or other future periods as aresult of a
shortage of capacity, changes in commodity prices, or price increases in assembly or other services. Because at
various times the capacity of either wafer producers or assemblers can been limited, the Company may be unable to
satisfy the demand of its customers, or may have to accept price 1ncreases or other compensanon anangernents that
increase its operating expenses ‘and erode its margms

Forecasts of Product Demand — The Company generally must order inventory to be built by its foundries and
subcontract manufacturers well in advance of product shipments. Production is oftén based upon either internal or
customet-supplied forecasts of demand, which can be highly unpredictable and subject to substantial fluctuations.
Because of the volatility'in the Company’s markets, there is risk that the Company may forecast incorrectly and
produce excess or insufficient inventories. This inventory risk is increased by the trend for customers to place orders
w1th shorter lead times and the customers’ ability to cancel or reschedule existing orders. In addition, the Company
is sometimes the only suppher of a particular part to a customer. The value of the product line usmg the Company's
product may far exceed the value of the particular product sold by the Company to its customer. The Company may
be forced to carry additional inventory of certain products to'insure that its customers avoid production interruptions
and to avoid claims being made by its customers for supply, shortages. .

Prior to purchasing the Company’s products, customers require that products undergo an extensive quali .-
cation process, which involves testing of the products in the customer’s system as well as rigorous reliability testing.
This qualification process may continve for six months or longer. However, qualification of aproduct by a customer
does not ensure any sales of the product to that customer. Even after successful qualification and sales of a product
to a customer, a subsequent revision to the integrated circuit or software, changes in the integrated circuit’s
manufacturing process or the selection of a new supplier by us may require a new qualification process, which may
result in delays and in us holding excess or obsolete inventory. After products are qualiﬁed it can take an additional
six months or more before the customer commences volume production of components or devices that incorporate
these products. Despite these uncertainties, the Company devotes substantial resources, including design, engi-
neering, sales, marketing and management efforts, toward quallfymg its producls Wwith customers in anticipation of
sales. If the Company is unsuccessful or delayed in qualifying any products with a customer, such failure or delay
would preclude or delay sales of such product to the customer, which may |mpede the Company § growth and cause
its business to suffer. .

The Company also mvested in fiscal year 2007 and 2008 in new test equ1pment to reduce costs. If volumes in
fiscal year 2009 are insufficient to utilize this new test capacity, then costs may be higher than planned As a result,
the Company could be less competitive than anticipated, which could adversely affect return on investment and
profitability. -

THE COMPANY HAS GLOBAL OPERATIONS THAT SUBIJ ECT US TORISKS THAT MAY HARM OUR
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Global Operations Risks — We have sales, R&D, dnd operations facilities in many countries, and as a result,
we are subject to.risks associated with doing business globally. Our global operations may be subject to risks that
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may limit our ability to build product, design, develop, or sell products in particular countries, which could, in turn,
harm our results of operations and financial condition, including; . I .

» Security concerns, such as armed conflict and civil or military unrest, crime, political instability, and terrorist
activity;

« Acts of nature, such as typhoons, tsunamis or earthquakes; .

L i
+ Infrastructure disruptions, such as large-scale outages or interruptions of service from utilities or telecom-
munications providers, could in turn cause supply chain interruptions; : .
* Regulatory requirements and prohibitions that differ between jurisdictions; and

* Restrictions on our operations by governments seeking to support local ‘industries, nationalization of our
- operations, and restrictions on our ability to repatriate earnings. . .

[n addition, although most of our products are priced and paid for in U.S. dollars, a significant amount of certain
types of expenses, such as payroll, utilities, tax, and marketmg expenses, are paid in local currencies, and therefore
fluctuations in exchange rates could harm our business operating results and financial ¢ondition. In addition,
changes in tariff, export and import regulations, and U.S. and non-U.S. monetary policies, may harm our operating
results and financial condition by increasing our expenses and reducing our revenue. Varying tax rates in different
jurisdictions could harm our operating results and financial condition by increasing our overall tax rate.

THE COMPANY'S SUCCESS DEPENDS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF ITS ACQUISITIONS, RETAIN-
ING AND INTEGRATING KEY PERSONNEL, AND MANAGING INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RISKS AND
GROWTH

Strategic Business Acquisitions — The Company has made strategic acquisitions of complementary busi-
nesses, products and technologies in the past, including the’OASIS acquisition in 2005, and may continue to pursue
such acquisitions in the future as business conditions warrant. Business acquisitions can involve numerous risks,
including: unantlclpated costs and expenses; risks associated with entering new markets in which the Company has
little or no prior experience; diversion of management’s attention from its existing businesses; potentlal loss of key
employees, particularly those of the acquired business; differences between the culture of the acquired company
and the Company, difficulties in integrating the new business into the Company's existing businesses, potential
dilution of future earnings; and future impairment and write-offs of purchased goodwill, other intangible assets and
fixed assets due to unforeseen events and circumstances. Although the Company believes it has managed the OASIS
acquisition well 1o date, there is no guarantee that the OASIS or other acqulsmons in the future will produce the
benefits intended. Future acquisitions also could cause the Company to incur debt or contingent liabilities or cause
the Company to issue equity securities that cou]d negauvely impact the ownership percentages of exnslmg
shareholders.

Protection of Intellectual Property — The Company has historically devoted signiﬁcant resources to research
and development activities and believes that the intellectual property derived from such research and development
is a valuable asset that has been, and will continue to be, important to.the Company’s success. The Company relies
upon nondisclosure agreements, contractual provisions and patent and copyright laws to protect its proprietary
rights. No assurance can be given that the steps taken by the Company will adequately protect its proprietary rights,
or that competitors will be prevented from using the Company’s intellectual propetty. During its history, the
Company has executed patent cross-licensing agreements with many of the world’s largest semiconductor
suppliers, under which the Company receives and conveys various intellectual property rights. Many of these
agreements are still effective. The Company could be adversely affected should circumstances arise that result in the
early termination of these agreements. In addition, the Company also frequently licenses intellectual property from
third parties to meet specific needs as it develops its product portfolio. The Company’s competitive position and its
results could be adversely affected if it is unable to license desired intellectual property at all, oron cornmerc1ally
reasonable terms.

Infringement and Other Claims — Companies in the semiconductor industry often aggressively protect and
pursue their intellectual property rights. From time to time, the Company has received, and expects to continue to
receive notices claiming that-the Company has infringed upon or misused other parties’ proprietary rights, or claims
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from its customers for indemnification for intellectual property natters. The Company has also in the past received,
and may again in the futuze receive, notices of claims related to business transactions conducted with third parties,
including asset sales and other divestitures.

If it is determined that the Company’s or its customer’s products or processes were to infringe on other parties’
intellectual property rights, a court might enjoin the Company or its customer from further manufacture and/or sale
of the affected products. The Company would then need to obtain a license from the holders of the rights and/or
reengineer-its products or processes in such a way as to avoid the alleged infringement. There can be no assurance
that the Company would be able to obtain any necessary license on commercially reasonable terms acceptable to the
Company or that the Company would be able to reengineer its products or processes to avoid infringement. An
adverse result in litigation arising from such'a claim could involve the assessment of a substantial monetary award
for damages related to past product sales that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s résults of
operations and financial condition. In addition, even if claims against the Company are not valid or successfully
asserted, defense against the claims could result in significant costs and a diversion of management and resources.
"The Company might atso be forced to ‘settle such a claim even if not valid as a result of pressure from its customers,
because of the expense of defense, or because the risk of contesting such a claim is simply too great. Such
settlements could adversely affect the Company’s profitability. '

L]
,

Dependence on Key Personne[ -~ The success of the Company is dependent in large part on the contmued
service of its key management, engineering, marketing, sales and support employees. Competition for qualified
personnel is intense in the semiconductor industry, and the loss of current key employees, or the inability of the
Company to attract other qualifiéd personnel, including the inability to offer competitive stock-based and other
‘compensation, could hinder the Company’s product development and ability to manufacture, market and sell its
products. We believe that our future success will be dependent on retaining the services of our key personnel,
developing.their successors and certain internal processes to reduce our reliance on specific individuals, and on
properly managing the transition.of key roles when they occur. .

Risks fmm Continued Growth — The Company s revenues have grown from apprommately $156 million in
fiscal year "2003 to approximately $378 million in fiscal year 2008. The increase in revenues has also been
accompanied by a dramatic increase in the number of units of product the Company must produce to achieve these
revenues. The Company may be unable to meet future revenue and profitability goals if it does not successfully
create and manage the infrastructure, computer systems and processes necessary for continued “top line” and
“bottomn line” growth. The Company plans to make a significant investment in information technology in fiscal year
2009 in order to create the base for conunued growth and to help it manage the growth that has already occurred.
The Company s results could be materially affected if the information technology investments are not implemented
effectively or otherwise fa:l to accomplish planned objectives.

THE COMPANY'S RESULTS COULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED FROM FAILURE TO COMPLY
WITH LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting — Séction 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires the
Company to evaluate the effectiveness of its system of internal controls over financial reporting as of the end of each
fiscal year, beginning with fiscal 2005, and to include a report by management assessing the effectiveness of is
system of internal controls over financial reportmg within its annual report. -

The Company’s management does not expect that its system of internal controls over financial reporting will
prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives y will be met. Further, the design of a control
system must recognize that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered Telative to
their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all comrol systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any, mvo]vmg the Company have been, or will be,
detected. These inherent limitations include faulty judgments in decision-making and breakdowns that may occur
because of simple error or mistake. Countrols can also be circumvented by individual acts, by collusion of two or
more people, or by management ‘override of the'controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on
certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and the Company cannot provide a$surance that any
design will succeed in.achieving its stated goals under all' potential future conditions! Over time, controls may
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become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or
procedures. In addition, because of the Company’s revenue recognition policies, the accuracy of the Company’s
financial statements is dependent on data received from thlrd party distributors (refer to Part I Item 7. —
Management's Diicussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, for further dlqcussmn)
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected.

Although the, Company’s management has concluded that its system of .internal controls over financial
reporting was effective as of February 29, 2008, there can be no assurance that the Company or its independent
registered public accounfing firm will not identify a material weakness in the system of internal controls over
financial reporting in the future. A material weakness in the Company’s system of internal controls over financial
reporting would require management and/or the Compan'y’s independent registered public accounting firm to
evaluate the Company’s system'of internal controls as ineffective.' This in turn could lead 1o a loss of publlc
confidence, Wthh could adversely affect the Company s business and the price of its common stock.

Corporate Governance — In recent years, the NASDAQ Global Select Market, on which the Company’s
common stock is listed, has adopted comprehensive rules and regulations relating to corporate governance. These
laws, rules and regulations have increased, and may continue to increase, the scope, complexity and cost of the
Company’s corporate governance, reporting and disclosure practices. Failure to comply with these rules and
regulations could adversely affect the Company, and in a worst case, result in the delisting of its stock. As a result of
these rules, the Company’s board members, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other corporate
officers could also face increased risks of personal liability in connection with the performance of their duties, As a
result, the Company may have difficulty attracting and re'taining qualified board members and officers, which
would adversely affect its business.” Further, these developmenls could affect the Company's ability to secure
desired levels of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, requiring the Company to accept réduced insurance
coverage or 1o incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. :

Changes in Accounting for Equity Compensation — The Company has historically used stock options and
SARs as a key component of employee compensation in order to align employees’ interests with the interests of its
stockholders, encourage employee retention, and provide competitive compensation packages. The Financial
Accouriting Standards Board (“FASB") recently adopted changes to ‘generally accepted accounting principles
known as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment (revised 2004)
(“SFAS 123(R)”) requiring a charge to earnings for employee stock option grants and other equity incentives which
became effective beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. To the extent that this or other new regulations make it
more difficult or expensive to grant options to employees, the Company may consider changes to its equity
compensation strategy. To the extent that such changes might limit the Company’s use of equity-based compen-
sation, it might become more difficult to attract, retain and motivate employees. Any of these results could
materially and édversely affect the Company’s business.

Environmental Regulation — Environmental regulations and standards are established worldwide to control
discharges, emissions, and solid wastes from manufacturing processes. Within the United States, federal, state and
local agencies establish these regulations. Qutside of the United States, individual countries and local governments
establish their own individual standards. The Company believes that its activities conform to present environmental
regulations and historically the effects of this compliance have not had a material effect on the Company’s capital
expenditures, operating results, or competitive position. Future environmental compliance requirements, as well as
amendments to or the adoption of new environmental regulations or the occurrence of an unforeseen circumstance
could subject the Company to fines or require the Company to acquire expensive remediation equipment or to incur
other expenses to comply with environmental regulations. In addition, many of the Company s customers belong to
trade groups or other similar bodies that are creating their own private governance, health, safety and environmental
standards. Some of these customers are mandating that the Company comply with these standards as a condition to
selling product to these customers. The Company’s sales and profitability may suffer it is unable to satisfy these
private standards, or if complying with these standards imposes significant costs on the Company.
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Item 1.B. — Unresolved Staff Comments : " o

"The Company has received no written comments from the SEC staff regardtng its penodlc or current reports as
filed under the Securities Exchange Actof 1934, nor on any filings made pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, that
remain unadgdressed or unresolved as of the fi Img date of this Report .

1 .t

Item 2. — Properties

SMSC’s headquarters facility is located in Hauppauge, New York, where it owns a 200,000 square foot
building and conducts research, development, product testmg, warehousmg, shlppmg, marketing, selling and
administrative activities (the “HQ facility”™). .

" In the first quarter of ﬁscal 2007, the Company completed an expansion {from approximately 80,000 square
feet to the present fully utilized 200,000 square feet) and renovation of the HQ facility. During fiscal 2006, while the
current HQ facility was under construction, the Company leased (until May 31, 2006) a separate 50,000 square foot
facility, also located in Hauppauge, New York, which was vacated shortly after the HQ facility was completed and
operations were consolidated. The final cost of the HQ facility expansion and renovation was $24.4 million.

In addition, the Company maintains offices in leased facilities as follows:

‘ Approximate
Location Activities Square Footage Lease Expiration
Austin, Texas .. .............. Marketing, Engineering, Logistics & Sales 54,000  April 2019
Austin, Texas , . . ... U _Marketing, Engincering & Sales 27,036 January 2009
Austin, TeXaS oo oo Marketing, Engineering & Sales 16,200 August 2008
Karlsruhe, Germany ........... Marketing, Engineering, Logistics & Sales 38,700  June 2013
Gothenburg, Sweden . . .. ....... Marketing & Engincering . 2,000 December 2008
Rosenheim, Germany .......... Sales ;2,400 March 2011
Phoenix, Arizona ............. Marketing & Engineering 17,227 November 2012
Tucson, Arizona . ............. Marketing, Engineering & Sales 10,871 June 2010
Tokyo, Japan. . ....... PR ‘Marketing, Engineering, Logistics & Salés * 8,592  September 2008
Osaka-Shi Osaka, Japan .. ... ... Marketing & Engineering . , 326  July 2008
Taipei, Taiwan, Republic of China. . Marketing, Logistics & Sales | ~ 5900 February 2009
San Jose, California ........... Marketing & Sales o v 3,358 May 2008
Seoul, South Korea . ... ... I Sales . . . 2,539 December 2008
Singapore . .. ................ Sales Co 194 October 2008
Singapore . .. .. ... .. .. ..... Logistics ' o ' 276 Month to Month
Shanghai, China ... ........... Sales : 3,700  July 2009
Shenzhen, China.............. Sales 992 June 2008
Hong Kong, China ............ Sales, . ' 480  March 2009
Beijjing, China. . .............. Sales — ‘ . 176 February 2009
Lake Oswego, Oregon. . ........ Sales - . . 400  January 2009
Durham, North Carolina ... ....: Sales b 170+ March 2009
Houston, Texas . .............. Sales ' 130 January 2009

The Company beheves that all of its facilities are in good condition, adequate for mtended use and sufficient
for its immediate needs. The Company has recently entered into a new one hundred and twenty five (125) month
lease agreement, expiring in April 2019, for a. 54,000 square foot facility in northern Austin, Texas, and will
consolidate operations at the existing two leased. facilities as these leases expire | in fiscal 2009 (August 2008 and
January 2009).

The Company currently expects to either renew existing leases or identify suitable alternative leased space for
all leases expiring in fiscal 2009, except the for the two Austin, Texas facilities as previously noted. It is not certain
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whether the Company will negotiate new leases on its other facilities as such leases expire in fiscal 2010 and
beyond. Such determinations will be made as those leases approach expiration and will be based on an assessment
of requirements and market conditions at that time. Further, management believes that additional space can be
readily obtained, if necessary, based on prior experience and current and expected real estate market condmons

Item 3. — Legal Proceedings

From time to time as a normal consequence of doing business, various claims and litigation may be asserted or
commenced against the Company. In particular, the Company in the ordinary course of business may receive claims
that its products infringe the intellectual property of third parties, or that customers have suffered damage as a result
of defective products allegedly supplied by the Company. Due to uncertainties inherent in litigation and other
claims, the Company can give no assurance that it will prevail in any such matiers, which could subject the
Company to significant liability for damages and/or invalidate its proprietary rights. Any lawsuits, regardless of
their success, would likely be time-consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert management s time and
attention, and an adverse outcome of any sngmﬁcant matter could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated results of operatxons or cash flows in the quarter or annual perlod n Wthh one or more of these matters
are resolved. '

On July 3, 2007, OPTI, Inc. (“OPT1") filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District
of Texas against the Company, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., Atme} Corporation, Broadcom Corporation, Renesas
Technology America, Inc., Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., STMicroelectronics, Inc., and Via Technology, Inc.
OPTi’s Complaint alleges that the Company’s Low Pin Count products infringe two patents and seeks unspecified
damages (including treble damages for willful infringement), attorneys fees and injunctive relief. On September 5,
2007, the Company answered the Complaint, denying OPTi's allegations and agserting counterclaims for declar-
atory judgments of invalidity, unenforceability and noninfringement of the two patents-in-suit. The Court has set a
claim construction hearing for July 30, 2009, and a trial to begin on November 2, 2009. The Company intends to
vigorously defend against the allegations of OPTi’s Complaint.

s [

Item 4. — Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2008.

"PART II

x

Item 5. — Market for Registrant’s Comman Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information and Holders

The Company’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market under the NASDAQ symbol SMSC.
Trading is reported in the NASDAQ Giobal Select Market. There were approximately 1,007 holders of record of the
Company’s common stock at February 29, 2008.

The following table sets forth the high and low trading prices, for the periods indicated, for SMSC’s common
stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
High Low High Low
First QUAMEr . . o .o oo $3525  $27.31 $33.93  $20.4!
Second Quarter .. ... ... ... ... $37.95 %3037 $28.19 $20.36
Third QUATET . . .« o e o e eee e e e $39.95 $33.13  $33.00 $27.35
Fourth QUArter. . . . ..o vt e e e $39.60 $28.22  $32.32  $26.95




Dividend Pollcy

The present pollcy of the Company is to retain earmngs to provnde funds for the operation and expansmn of its
business. The Company has never paid a cash dividend and does not currently expect to pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information,” appearing in the 2008 Proxy
Statement related to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2008 Proxy Statement’),~is hereby incor-
porated by reference. For additional information on the Company 5 stock based compensatron plans refer to Part IV
Item IS(a)(l) — Financial Statements — Note 12

[

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In 0ctober 1998, the Company s Board of Directors approved a common stock repurchase program allowmg
the Company to repurchase up to one million shares of its common stock on the open market or in private
transactions. The Board of Director authorized the repurchase of additional shares in one million share increments
in July 2000, July 2002 and November 2007, bringing the total authorized repurchases to four million shares as of
February 29, 2008. On April 22, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors further authorized the repurchase of upto
an additional one million.shares, bringing the total authorized to five million shares at present.

 Asof February 29, 2008, the Company has repurchased approx1mately 3.4 million shares of its common stock
at a cost of $72,7 miilion under this program, including 1,165,911 shares repurchased at a cost of $40.6 million in
fiscal 2008, 253,300 shares repurchased at a cost of $6.1 mllllon in ﬁscal 2007 and 150 200 shares repurchased ata
cost of $2. 2 million rn fiscal 2006.

: o ;
Share repurchase activity for the fourth quaner of ﬁscal 2008 was as follows

R ) . L Total
Number of
Shares Maximum
) Total Purchased as- Number of
Number of Average ' Partof Publicly  Shares that
Shares Price per Announced May Yet Be
s ' . Purchased Share : . - Plans Purchased
Period '
December 2007 . . ... ... e e 30,495 $35.26 30,495 965,421
January 2008 . . ... ... ... 307741 $32.42 307,741 657,680
February 2008 . .. .. ... ..o 68,675 $29.30 68.675 589,005
Total .. ....... e e, 415911 $32.17 .. 415911
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Stock Performance Graph !

The line graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with the
curmulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Philadelphia Semiconductor Index for the five
fiscal years ended February 29, 2008. The graph and table assume that $100 was invested on February 28, 2003 (the
last day of trading for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2003) in each of our common stock, the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the Philadelphia Semiconductor Index, and that all dividends were reinvested.

" COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Standard Microsystems Corporation, The NASDA(Q) Composite Index
And The Philadelphia Semiconductor Index

300

—{} Standard Microsystems Corporation
250 A~ 'NASDAQ Composite

-0 Phlladelphla Semiconductor

l

200

'DOLLARS

n . . ¥

S50 & T ‘ T — T _ - T : e
2003 2004 2005 2006 . 20‘07‘. 2008

* $100 invested on 2/28/03 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending February 28 or 29.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Standard Microsystems Corporation 100.00 | 206.09 | 11990 | 222.44 | 19542 | 193.9]
NASDAQ Composite , - 100.00 | 153.46° | 156.50 (. 17547 18848 | 177.40
Philadelphia Semiconductor 100.00 | 172,58 | 148.65"| 160.32 [“154.77- |’ 138:27
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Item 6. — Selected Financial Data

Standard Micresystems Corporation and Subsidiaries
' SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

As of February 29 and 28, and for the Fiscal Years Then Ended 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except per share data)

Operating Resuits 1 . ‘
Productsales ................ L $365,671 $359,010 $308,345 $197,803 $191,969

Intellectual property revenues . ... ................ 12,178 11,584 10,773 11,012 23,904
Total sales and revenues . ... ................. .. 377849 370,594 319,118 208815 215,873
Costsof goodssold ........................... 181,067 193,497 172309 114,066 106,236
Research and development ...................... 71,660 66,585 58,274 42,988 38,793
Selling, general and administrative . .. ............. 80,767 73,821 69,162 49,661 43,657
Amortization of intangible assets . ................ 6,707 6,364 5,802 1,113 1,311
In-process research and development. . ... .......... — — 895 — —
Gains on real estate transactions . . . ... ........... — — — (1,017)  (1,444)
Settlement charge. . . . .. P ) — — - — 6,000 —
Operating income (10SS) . . . .. ... oo oooereenn, . 37648 30327 12,676 (3.996) 27,320
Otherincome . .. ... .......c.oueiieianon.. . 5690 . 4,950 3.866 3,331 2,460
Income from continuing operations. .. ............. 32,906 27,015 12,030 1,602 21,542
Net loss from discontinued operations. . ............ — — — — (24)
NELINCOME - . o v et et e ettt e e e 326806 27,015 12,030 1,602 21,518
Gain on redemption of preferred stock of subsidiary ... — — — —_ 6,685
Net income applicable to commor shareholders. . .. ... $ 32906 $ 27,015 $ 12,030 $ 1,602 § 28203
Diluted net income per share )
Income from continuing operations . .. ............. '$ 139% 116 $ 0558 008 % L17
Netincome ...........oouireiieenenennn. .... % 1393% 116 % 0553% 0083 116
Net income applicable to commen shareholders. . . .. .. $ 139 % 116 % 055 3% 008 % 153
Diluted weighted average common shares - 0

outstanding . . . ............. ... ... S - 23,623 23,259 21,998 - 19,318 18479
Balance Sheet and Other Data
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. . . . . $ 61,641 $160,023 $155,033 $172,645 $173,897
Long-term investments . . .. .................c..us $124,469 § — § — $ — 8 —
Working capital . .. ...... ... .. i $120,030 $212,226 $172,710 $214,655 §191,199
Total assets .. ... ...t $539,476 $493,639 $449.694 $319.895 $310,623
Long-term obligations . ................ .. ...... $ 15992 % 16,850 $ 17,330 $ 12,326 § 12,104
Shareholders’ equity . .. ... ... ... i $436,089 $391,942 $333,969 $269,849 $262,102
Book value per common share . . ................. $ 1914 § 17.14 $ 1518 § 1444 § 1427
Capital expenditures . . ... ......... i, $ 13,263 § 26,995 §$ 23,750 $ 8432 § 10,380
Depreciation and amortization ................... $ 20,370 $ 19316 $ 16,654 $ 11,534 § 9,984

This selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the financial statements as set forth in Part IV
Item 15(a)(1) — Financial Statements and Part 1. ltem 7. — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
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The operating results presented above reflect: ST

+ The receipts of $12.0 miltion, $1'1.3 million, $10.3 million, $10.0 million and $22.5 million of special
intellectual property payments in fiscal 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecnvely as more fully
descnbed in Part IV Item 15(a)(1) — Financiai Statements — Note 11,

. Sales of real estate in fiscal 2005 and 2004, as more fully described in Part IV Item 15(a)(1) — Financial
--Statements — Note 10 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28,
2007, as filed with the SEC on April 30, 2007 (the “FY2007 Form 10-K)."

* A litigation settlement charge of $6.0 million in fiscal 2005 as more fully _describet_:l in Part 1V
Item 15(a){1) — Financial Statements — Note 14 of the Company’s FY2007 Form 10-K.

* The write-off of inventory held by one of the Compart‘y;s distributor‘sduring fiscal 2065, as more fully
described in Part IV Item 15(a)(1) — Financial Statements — Note 2 of the Company’s FY 2007 Form 10-K.

* The Company § acquisition of OASIS SiliconSystems Holdmg AGin ﬁscal 2006, as more fully descnbed in
Part 1V Item 15(a)(1) — Financial Statements —Note

Item 7. — Managerhgnr’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditt‘ons and IRe'sziIts‘ of Operatiorts

GENERAL * " ' ' SR A

L. 0 . B .
L o i 4 - v - s L '

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes, included in Part IV Item 15(a)(1)— Financial Statements, of this Report.

,Forward-Looking Statements

Portions of this Report may contain forward~lool».1ng statements, within the’ meanmg of Secnon 27A of the
Secumles Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 as amended that are
based on management s beliefs and assumptions, current expecmtlons estimates and projections. Such statements
1ncludmg statements relatmg to, the Company’s expectations for future financial performance are not considered
hrstoncal facts and are constdered forward- lookmg statements under thé federal securities laws. Words such as
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate” and similar éxpressions 1dent1fy forward- lookmg statements. These risks and
related uncertainties may cause the Company s actual future results to be materta]ly dlfferent from thiose discussed
in forward-looking statements The Company $ risks and uncertalntles include the timely development and market
acceptance of new products the impact of competitive products ‘and piicing; the Company’s ability to procure
capacity from suppliers and the timely performance of their obligations, commodity prices, the effects of changmg
economic conditions domesncally and internationally and on its customers; relationships with and dependence on
customers and growth rates‘in the personal computer, consumer electromcs and embedded and automotive markets
and within the Company’ stsales channel; changes in customer order pattems meludmg order cancellattons or
reduced bookmgs the effects of tariff, import and currency regulation; potentlal or actual litigation; and excess of
obsolete inventory and variations in inventory valuation, among others. In addition, SMSC competes it the
semiconductor industry, which has historically been.characterized by intense competition, rapid technological
change, cyclical market patterns, price erosion and periods of mismatched supply and demand.

1 \ .

The Company s forward looking statéments are qualrﬁed in thelr enttrety by, the inherent risks and uncer-
tainties surrounding future expectations and may not reflect the potentla] impact of any future acquisitions, mergers
or divestitures. Alt forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof and are based upon the information
available to SMSC at this time. Such statements are subject to change, and the Company does not undertake to
update such statements, except to the extent required under applicable law and regulation; These and other risks and
uncertainties, including potential liability resulting from pending or future litigation, are detailed from time to time
in the Company’s periodic and current reports.as filed with the SEC. Readers are advised to review other sections of
this Report, including Part I Item 1.A. — Risk Factors,for a more complete discussion of these and other risks and
uncertainties. Other cautionary statements and risks and uncertainties may also appear elsewhere in this Report.

[y
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Description of Business . S

Standard Microsystems Corporation (the “Company” or “SMSC") designs and sells a wide variety of silicon-
based integrated circuits that are primarily utilizing analog or mixed-signal technologies. The Company’s inte-
grated circuits and systems provide a wide variety of signal processing attributes that are incorporated by its
globally diverse customers into a wide variety of end products in the Consumer Electronics & Infotainment, the
Mobile & Desktop PC, and Industrial & Other markets. These products generally provide connectivity, networking,
or input/output control solutions for a variety of high-speed communication, computer and related peripheral,
consumer electronics, industrial control systems or auto infotainment applications. The market for these solutions is
increasingly diverse, and the Company ] vanous technologies are increasingly used in various combinations and in
alternative apphcatlons

. ' '
+

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES & ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted ‘accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumpuons that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at thé date of the financial statements and the reported amount of sales
and revenues and expenses during the reporting petiod.

SMSC believes the following critical accounting policies and estimates are important to the portrayal of the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and require critical management judgments
and estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain, Although management believes that its judgments and
estimates are appropriate and reasonable, actual future results may differ from these estimates, and to the extent that
such differences are material, future reported operating resuits may be affected.

Revenue Recognition

Sales and revenues and associated gross profit from shipments to the Company’s distributors, other than to
distributors in Japan, are deferred untll the distributors resell the products. Shipments to distributors, other than to
distributors in Japan are made under agreements allowing price protection and limited rights to return unsold
merchandise. In addition, SMSC’s shipments to its distributors may be subject from time to time to short-term
fluctuations as distributors manage their inventories to current levels of end-user demand. Therefore, SMSC
considers the policy of deferring revenue on shipments to distributors to be a more méaningful presentation of the
Company’s operating results, as it allows investors to better understand end-user demand for the products that
SMSC sells through distribution channels, and it better focuses the Company on end-user demand. This policy is a
common practice within the’ semiconductor industry. The Company’s revenue recognition is therefore highly
dependent upon receiving pertinent, accurate and timely data from its distributors. Distributors roulme]y provide
the Company with product, price, quantity and end customer data when products are resold, as well as report the
quantities of the Company s products that are still in their inventories. In determining the appropriate amount of
revenue to recognize, the Company uses this data in reconc11|ng any differences between the dlsmbutors reponed
inventories and shipment activities. Although this information is reviewed and venfied for accuracy, any errors or
omissions made by the Company s distributors and not detected by the Company, if material, could affect reported
operalmg results

Shlpments made by the Company’s Japanese sub51d1ary to distributors in Japan are made under agreements
that permit limited or no stock return or price protection privileges. SMSC recognizes revenue from product sales to
distributors in Japan, and to original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), as title passes upon delivery, net of
appropriate reserves for ‘product returns and allowances. ' '

f . . - .
. Rl . .

Inventories

The Company’s inventories are comprised of cornplex high technology products that may be subject lo rapid
technological obsolescence and which are sold in a highly competitive industry. Inventories are valued at the lower
of standard cost (which approximates first-in, first-out cost) or market,.and are reviewed for product obsolescence
and impairment in value, based upon assumptions of future demand and market conditions. The Company often
receives orders from customers and distributors requesting delivery of product on relatively short notice and with
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lead times that are shorter than the manufacturing cycle time. In order to provide competitive delivery times to.its
customers, the Company builds and stocks a certain amount of inventory in anticipation of customer demand that
may or may not materialize. Historically, forecasts of customer demand, particularly at a part-number level, are
challenging and can vary significantly from actual future demand. In addition, as is common in the semiconductor
industry, customers may be allowed to cancel orders with minimal advance notice. These dynamics create risks that
the Company may forecast mcorreclly and consequently produce excess or insufficient inventories.

When itis determmed that spec1ﬁc inventory is stated ata hlgher value than that Wthh can be recovered, the
Company writes this mventory down to its estimated reallzable value with a charge to costs of goods sold. While the
Company endeavors to appropnately forecast customer demand and stock commensurate levels of inventory,
unanumpated inventory write-downs may be requ1red in future penods relating to inventory on hand as of any
reported balance sheet. _ .

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has several stock-based compensation plans in effect under which incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock awards (“RSAs”) and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) are granted to
employees and directors. Stock optlons and SARs are granted with cxercnse prices equal to the fair value of the
under]ymg shares on the date of grant. New shares are 1ssued in seutling slock option exercises and restricted stock
awards. .

Effective March 1, 2006 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123 (revised. 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R"):
SFAS 123R supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees
(“APB 25”) and related interpretations and amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. SFAS 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee. stock options; restricted stock units and
employee stock purchase rights, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their respective grant date
fair values and does not allow the previously permitted pro forma disclosure-only method as an alternative to
financial statement recognmon SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recogmzed
compensation cost ‘be reported’ as a ﬁnancmg cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under
previous hterature In March 2005 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB J1077), which provides
guidance regardmg the interaction of SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations. The Company con51dercd
the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS 123R.

The Company elected the modified prospective transition-method as permitted by SFAS 123R. Accordingly,
prior periods have not been revised to reflect the inipact of SFAS 123R. Under this transition method, compensation
cost recognized for fiscal year 2008 includes: (i‘)'cor'npensatio‘n cost for all stock-based payments granted prior to,
but not yet vested as of, February 28, 2007 (based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with'the
ongmal provisions of SEAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123™), and previously
presented in the pro forma footnote disclosures); and (ii) compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted or
modified subsequent to February 28, 2007 (based on fair values estimated in accordance with the new prov1snonq of
SFAS No. 123R).

+ In connection with the implementation of SFAS No. 123R, the Company elected the long form method in
determining our additional paid-in capital pool of windfall benefits and the graded vesting method to amortize
compensation expense over the service period. The estimated value of thé Company’s stock-based awards
(including stock options, restrictéd stock awards and stock appreciation rights), less expecied forfeitures, is
amortized over the awards’ respective requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, on a straight-
line basis.

. r 3
T 1f

Share-based compensation recognized in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007-as a result of the-adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R), as well as pro forma disclosures according to the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 for
periods prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), use the Black-Scholes option pricing model for estimating the fair
value of options and SARs granted. The Black-Scholes model requires certain assumptions, judgements and
estimates by the Company to determine fair value, including expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate
and expected life. The Company based the expected volatility on historical volatility. Additionally, the Company
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based the expected life of options, RSAs and SARs granted on an ‘actuarial model. Share-based compensation
related to RSAs is calculated based on the market price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant. There
were no dividends expected to be paid on the Company’s common stock over the expected lives estimated.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
its customers to make required payments. These estimated losses are based upon historical bad debts, specific
customer creditworthiness and current ‘economic’ trends. The Company regularly performs credit evaluations
consisting primarily of reviews of its customers’ financial condition, using information provided by the customers
as well as publicly available information, if any. If the financial condition of an individual customer or group of
customers deteriorates, resulting in such customers’ inability to make payments within approved credit terms,
additional allowances may be required.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets . .

Long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, are monitored and reviewed
for impairment in value whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrymg amount of any such
asset may not be recoverable. The determination of recoverability is based on an estimate of undiscounted cash
flows expected to result from the use of the related asset and its eventual disposition. The estimated cash flows are
based upon, among other things, certain assumptions about expected future operating performance, growth rates
and other factors. Estimates of undiscounted.cash flows may differ from actual cash flows due to factors such as
technological changes, economic conditions, and changes in the Company’s business model or -operating perfor-
mance. [f at the time of such evaluation the sum of expected undiscounted cash flows (excluding interest) is below
the carrying value, an impairment loss is recogmzed which is measured as the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the asset. .

Goodwill is tested for impairment in value annually, as well as when an event or circumstance occurs
indicating a possible impairment in value. The Company completed its most recent annual goodwill 1mpamnenl
review during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, during which no impairment in value was identified. Unless ‘an
indicator of impairment is identified earher the next goodwill lmpalrment rev1ew will be performed in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009.

Marketable and non-marketable long-term equity investments are also monitored for indications of impair-
ment in value, The Company records an impairmenl charge against these investments when the investment is judged
to have experienced a decline in value -that is other than temporary. Judgments regarding the value of non-
marketable equity investments are subjective and dependent upon management’s assessment of the performance of
the investee and its prospects for future success. As of February 29, 2008, the Company had no significant long-term
equity investments, '

Income Taxes

Accounting for income tax obligations requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the tax
effects of differences between the book and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities as well as tax attributes such
as net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets resulting from these differences must be
reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. :

The Company regularly evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its forecasts of future
taxable income and reviewing available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the deferred tax
assets. At February 29, 2008; the Company had $33.7 million of deferred tax assets net of a valuation allowance of
$2.0 million and $12.8 million of deferred tax liabilities. Factors that may affect the Company’s ability to achieve
sufficient future taxable income for purposes of realizing its deferred tax assets include declines in sales and
revenues or gross profit, increased competition and loss of market share, delays in product availability, and
technological cbsolescence.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN'") No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"}, which for SMSC, became effective as of
March 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). FIN 48
requires that all tax positions be evaluated using a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Differences
between tax positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements are recorded as
adjustments to income taxes payable or receivable, or adjustments to deferred taxes, or both. The Company adopted
FIN 48 on March 1, 2007. As a result of the adoption of this accounting pronouncement, the Company recognized
$1.5 miltion of previously unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as an increase to the opening balance
of retained earnings. At adoption the company’s total unrecogmzed tax benefits was stated at $3.3 million which
included $0.6 mllllon of interest.

Legal Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, including claims of alleged
infringement of patents and other intellectual property rights and other claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. These contingencies require management to assess the likelihood and possible cost of adverse judgments
or outcomes. Liabilities for legal coniingencies are actrued when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and
the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. There can be no assurance that any third-party assertions
against the Company will be resolved without costly litigation, in'a manner that is not adverse to its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, the resolution of any future intellectual property litigation
may subject the Company to royalty obligations, product redesigns or discontinuance of products, any of which
could adversely impact future profitability. - o

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued -SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting pronounce-
ments that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute, Accordingly, this Statement does not require
any new fair value measurements. [n February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 157-1, Application
of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair
Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13 (“FSP 157-1") and
FSP 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157" (“FSP 157-2"). FSP 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to remove
certain leasing transactions from its scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), vntil the beginning of the first quarter of SMSC's fiscal year
beginning March 1, 2009. The measurement and disclosure requirements related to financial assets and financial
liabilities are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we plan to adopt beginning in the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our
consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2009 and in fiscal 2010 when it is applied to non-financial assels and non-
financial liabilities.

In 'Fcbruaxy 2007. the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 permits companies to choose 10 measure certain financial instruments and
other items at fair value. The standard requires that unrealized gains and losses are reported in earnings for items
measured using the fair value option. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007
(SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March 1, 2008). The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the
adoption of SFAS 159 will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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In'December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations, (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS 141R
establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer shall recognize and measure in its financial statements
the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and goodwill
acquired in the business combination. SFAS 141R is effective for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008
(SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March 1, 2009). The Company is currently determmmg the impact of implementing
SFAS 141R on' our Consolidated Flnancml Statements.

In December 2007 the FASB lssued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrollmg Interests in Consolidated Fmancra[
Statements — an Amendment ofAccauntmg Research Bulletin or ARB No. 51, (“SFAS 160™). SFAS 160 establishes
and expands accountmg and reporting standards for the nonconlrollmg interest in a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is
effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008 (SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March i, 2009). The
Company is currently determining the impact of implementing SFAS 160 on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On March 30, 2005, SMSC annocunced the acquisition of QASIS SiliconSystems Holding AG (*OASIS™), a
leading provider of Media Oriented Systems Transport (“MOST®” or “MOST"”) technology, serving a top tier
customer base of leading automakers and automotive suppliers. OASIS’ infotainment networking technology has
been deployed by many European luxury and mid-market car brands, including Audi, BMW, Daimler, Land Rover,
Porsche, Saab and Volvo and more recently, by Asian vehicle manufacturers.

The initial cost of the acquisition at March 30, 2005 was approximately $118.6 million, including approx-
imately $79.5 million of cash, 2.1 million shares of SMSC common stock, valued at $35.8 million, and an estimated
$3.3 million of direct acquisition costs, including legal, banking, accounting and valuation fees. Included with the
net assets acquired from OASIS were approximately $22.4 million of cash and cash equivalents; therefore SMSC’s
initial net cash outlay for the transaction, including transaction costs, was approximately $60.4 million.

The terms of the’ agreement also provided the former QASIS shareholders the opportunity to earn up to
$20 million of additional consideration, based upon achieving certain fiscal 2006 performance goals, the amount
earned of which was indeterminable until February 28, 2006. Based upon fiscal 2006 performance and per the
computation completed and submitted on April 28, 2006, the former OASIS shareholders earned approximately
$16:4 million of additional consideration, consisting of approximately 0.2 million shares of SMSC common stock
valued for accounting purposes as of May 9, 2006 at $4.0 million, and approximately $12.4 million of cash, all of
which was tendered and paid during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. SMSC’s existing cash balances were used to
fund the cash portion of the additional consideration. The fair value of the shares tendered was approximately
$1.4 million less at the setttement date than had been estimated as of February 28, 2006, resulting in a corresponding
adjustment to Goodwill in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Refer to Part 1V Item 15(2)(i) — Financial Statements
— Note 5, for additional information on the final computation and settlement of this obligation.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS® X
Fiscal Year Ended February 29, 2008 Compared to Fi:scal Year Ended February 28, 2007
Sales and Revenues ' l B

The Company’s sales and revenues for fiscal 2008 were $377.8 million, consisting of $365.7 million of product
sales and $12.2 million of intellectual property revenues, compared to fiscal 2007 sales and revenues of
$370.6 million, consisting of $359.0 million of product sales and $11.6 million of intellectual property revenues.
This 2% increase for the company as a whole came from modest increases in mobile computing, networking, USB
and automotive products. During thecalendar year of 2008 the Company executed a strategy to reduce less
profitable sales, by disengaging from sales efforts to certain customers and markets and by declining to accept
some lower margin business. : )
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Intellectual property revenues include. $12.0 million and $11.3 million in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively,
received from Intel Corporation pursuant to the terms of a September 2003 business agreement. Intellectual
property revenues for fiscal 2008 include payments under this agreement of $3.0 million in the first, second, third
and fourth quarters.-Fiscal 2007 results include the payments of $2.8 million in the first, second and third quarters
and $3.0 million in the fourth quarter. Payments pursuant to this agreement cease in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Sales and revenues by country for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 were as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal
‘ 2008 ° L 2007

 Taiwan . ..... e $103,661 $132972 |
CChINA - e S 94,200 52,136
Japan ... e e 52,132 70,720
United States. . ......... U e 34,531 34,937
Germany . .. ... 35650 46,717

oS S 57,675 33,112

' ' B $377.849  $370,504°

Product sales to electronic component distributors were reflected in the table above based on the counuy of
their respecuve operations; the geographic locations' of end customers may differ.

Intellectual property revenues received from Intel are included within the United States.

The Company expects international shipments to Asia to continue to represent a significant portion of its sales
and revenues for the foreseeable future. A significant portion of the world’s high technology manufacturing and
assembly ‘activity occurs in Asia, where many of the Company’s significant customers conduct business. In
addition, many of the Company’s customers are-establishing new lower cost operations in China, and a growing
amount of the Company’s shipments are now being made to that country.

r

L -‘

Cosrs of Goods Sold . '

a
3

Costs of goods sold include: the purchase cost of ﬁmshed silicon wafers manufactured by independent
foundries (including mask and tooling costs); costs of assembly, packaging and mechanical and electrical testing;
manufacturing overhead; quality assurance and other support overhead (including costs of personnel and equipment
associated with manufacturing support); royalties paid to developers of intellectual property incorporated into the
Company’s products; and adjustments for excess, slow-moving or obsolete inventories.

Costs of goods sold for fiscal 2008 were $181.1 million, or 47.9% of sales and revenues, compared to
$193.5 million, or 52.2% of sales and revenues, in fiscal 2007. Excluding intelleétial property revenues, costs of
goods sold were 49.5% of product sales in fiscal 2008, as compared to 53.9% in fiscal 2007.. .

The reduction in costs of goods sold on a percentage basis in the current-year period compared to the prior-year
results has resulted primarily from the Company’s strategy, beginning in the latter half of fiscal 2007, to discontinue
sales of certain lower profit generating legacy computing products, as well as successfully achieving material cost
savings and production and test efficiencies. The Company routinely assesses its stock positions and evaluates for
potential defective; excess. or obsolete inventory. Lower of cost or market (“LCM”) adjustments are made as
required. In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded approximately $1.8 millien of net LCM adjustments, as compared
with $3.2 million in fiscal 2007. The reduction in net LCM charges is primarily attributable to a reduction in quality
related issues, which were somewhat higher than usual in fiscat 2007, as the Company has recently increased its
investment in quality assurance capabilities and can now more closely monitor and control quality performance at
the fabless supply chain partner level.
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In addition, in the latter half of fiscal 2008 and particularly in the fourth quarter; the Company incurred an
additional $0.4 million in surcharges from assembly service providers to compensate for the recent rise in gold
prices. Expenses of $1.4 miilion relating to stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R are included in the
current year, compared to $0.5 million related to-stock-based compensation in the prior year. Costs of goods sold
include approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 2007 relating to prior periods for certain United States Custoins fees.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development (“R&D") expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs of employees
engaged in research, design and development activities, costs related to engineering design tools and computer
hardware, subcontractor costs and device prototyping costs. The Company’s R&D activities are performed by
highly-skilled and experienced engineers and technicians, and are primarily directed towards the design of new
integrated circuits; the development of new software drivers, firmware and design tools and blocks of logic; and
investment in new product offerings based on converging technoiogy trends, as well as ongoing cost reductions and
performance improvements in existing products.

The Company intends to continue its efforts to develop innovative new products and technologies, and believes
that an ongoing commitment to R&D is essential in order to maintain product leadership and compete effectively.
Therefore, the Company expects to continue to make significant R&D investments in the future.

R&D expenses were $71.7 million and $66.6 million in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively, growing from
approximately 18.0% to 19.0% of sales and revenues. Expenses rose $5.1 million, due to increased investment in
new product development and due to higher expenses relating to stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R,
which grew from $3.9 million in fiscal 2007 to $6.7 million in fiscal 2008. , . N

Selting, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses consist primarily of sales, marketing, finance
(including compliance costs), information technology, legal, human resources management and other executive
and administrative costs. SG&A expenses were $80.8 million, or approximately 21.4% of sales and revenues, for
fiscal 2008, compared to $73.8 million, or approximately 19.9% of sales and revenues, for fiscal 2007. SG&A
expenses increased $7.0 million, primarily due to increased headcount and other infrastructure costs, in support of
business growth. Net charges of $7.0 million relating to stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R are
included in the current year, compared to $4.3 million in charges related to stock-based compensation in the prior
year. SG&A expenses include approximately $0:5 million in fiscal 2007 relating to prior periods: for certain
employee benefits related charges. '

Amortization of Intangible Assels

Amortization expense was $6.7 million and $6.4 million in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively, and represents
the amortization of finite-lived intangible assets associated with the Company’s March 2005 acquisition of QASIS
and June 2002 acquisition of Gain. Amortization expense increased in fiscal 2008 as compared with the prior fiscal
year as a substantial portion of the intangible assets acquired in the OASIS acquisition are denominated in euro,
which appreciated considerably in value during the year against the U.S. dollar. Amortization on euro-based
intangible assets therefore increased in translated U.S. dollar terms, ' >

Interest and Other {Expense) Income

The increase in interest income, from $4.7 million in fiscal 2007 to $7.5'million in fiscal 2008 was the result of
an increase in interest earned on short-term and long-term investments, as well as the impact of higher default rates
on auction rate securities, beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Interest expense remained at $0.3 million in
both fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008. Other expenses in fiscal 2008 consisted primarily of foreign exchange rate losses
on USD transactions of SMSC Europe. Other income in fiscal 2007 included $0.2 million in gains on the sale of
certain fixed assets. :
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Provision for Income Taxes

e N - '
The Company’s effective income tax rate reflects statutory federal, state and foreign tax rates, the impact of
certain permanent differences between the book and tax treatment of certain expenses, and the impact of tax-exempt
income and various income tax credits.

The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2008 was $10 4 million, or an effective income tax rate of 24.1%
against $43.3 million of income before income taxes. This provision included the impact of $1.6 million from
income tax credits, $2.3 million from tax exempt income, a $2.0 million benefit from differences between foreign
and U,S. income tax rates, a reversal of unrecognized tax benefits of $1.1 million and an adjustment to pnor years
taxes for stock options for $1.2 mitlion. '

Legislation was not passed extending the income tax credits related to qualified research and development
expenditures in the U.S. incurring after December 31, 2007. For the first three quarters of fiscal year 2008 the
company has recognized these credits i in its tax provision and is waiting passage of new legislation to recognize the
additional credits.

.The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2007 was $8.3 million, or an effective income tax rate of 23.4%
against $35.3 mllhon of income before income taxes. This provision included the impact of $2.3 million from
income tax credits, $1.5 million from tax exempt income and a $0.7 million provnsnon for differences between
forelgn and U.S, income tax rates.

" The provisions for income taxes from continuing operations have not been reduced for approximately
$6.4 million and $0.5 million of tax benefits in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively, derived from activity in stock-
based compensation plans. These tax benefits have been credited to additional paid-in capital.

" The Company adopted FIN 48 on March 1, 2007 (beginning of fiscal 2008). As a result of the adoption of this
accounting pronouncement, the Company recognized $1.5 million of previously unrecognized tax benefits, which
was accounted for as an increase to the opening balance of retained earnings.

Fiscal Year Ended February 28, 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended February 28, 2006
Sales and Revenues '

The Company’s sales and revenues for fiscal 2007 were $370.6 million, consisting of $359.0 miltion of product
sales and $11.6 million of intellectual property revenues, compared to fiscal 2006 sales and revenues of
$319.1 miltion, consisting of $308.3 million of product sales and $10.8 million of intellectual property revenues.
Product sales include $62.3 million and $52.8 million of sales from shipments of OASIS products subsequent to the
March 30, 2005 acquisition date in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. § :

Intellectual property revenues include $11.3 million and $10.3 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respecuvely,
received from Intel Corporation’ pursuant to the terms of a September 2003 business agreement Intellectual
property revenues for fiscal 2007 include payments under this agreement of $2.8 million in the first, second and
third quarters and $3.0 million in the fourth quarter. Fiscal 2006 results include the payments of $2.5 million in the
first, second and third quarters and $2.8 million in the fourth quarter. ‘ .

Sales and revenues by country for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal
2007 2006
Taiwan . ............. A DS $132,972 ' $149,153
L IO P 70,720. 54,293
Lo 52,136 14,423
GEIMNaANY . . . oo e 46,717 35,124
United SIAtes. . .. oo .ooe e S 34937 37,390

ONE .. e e e S L. 33112 28735
o ' $370,594  $319,118
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Product sales to electronic component distributors were reflected in the table above based on the geographic
location of their respective operations; the geographic locations of the end customers may differ. Intellectual
property revenues received from Intel are included within the Umled States.

Costs of Goods Sold

Costs of goods sold include: the purchase cost of fi mshed silicon wafers manufactured by mdependem
foundries (including mask and tooling costs); costs of assembly, packaging and mechanical and electncal testing;
manufactunng overhead; quality assurance and other support overhead (mcludmg costs of personnel and equnpment
associated with manufactunng support); royalties paid to developers of intellectual property incorporated into the
Company’s products; and adjustments for excess, slow-moving or obsolete inventories.

Costs of goods sold for fiscal 2007 were $193.5 million, or 52.2% of sales and revenues, compared to
$172.3 million, or 54.0% of sales and revenues, in fiscal 2006. Excluding intellectual property revenues, costs of
goods sold were 53.9% of product sales in fiscal 2007, as compared to 55.9% in fiscal 2006. '

The reduction in costs of goods sold on a percentage basis in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 results is
primarily a result of a changed sales mix in favor of higher margin consumer electronics and industrial applications.
In addition, net LCM adjustments increased to $3.2 million in fiscal 2007, up from $0.3 million in fiscal 2006,
primarily as a result of certain producuon quality related issues experienced with product sourced from certain
assembly services suppliers. In fiscal 2006, costs of sales included a $1.7 million’ charge associated with sales of
inventory that was acquired from OASIS and valued in the acquisition above-its historical cost. There were no
corresponding charges in fiscal 2007. Expenses of $0.5 million relating to SARs, RSAs and stock options pursuant
to SFAS 123R are included in fiscal 2007 results, compared to $0.9 million in charges related to SARs and RSAs in
fiscal 2006. Costs of goods sold also 1ncludcs approximately $0.4 million in ﬁscal 2007 relating to prlor penods for
certain United States Customs fees.

’

Research and Development Expenses

R&D expenses ‘were $66.6 million and $58.3 million in-fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, respectively, or
approximately 18.0% of sales and revenues in both periods. Expenses rose $8.3 million, primarily due to increased
investment in new product development, commensurate with the increase in overall product sales. Expenses of
$3.9 million relating to SARs, RSAs and stock options pursuant to SFAS 123R are included in ﬁscal 2007, results,
compared-to $3.8 million in charges related to SARs and RSAs in fiscal 2006. -

’
4 L

Selling, General and Admrmsrrauve Expenses

SG&A expenses were $73.8 million, or approximately 19.9% of salés and revenues, for fiscal 2007, compared
to $69.2 million, or approximately 21.7% of sales and revenues, for fiscal 2006. SG&A expenses increased
$4.7 million, primarily dué to increased headcount and other infrastructure costs, in support of business growth. Net
charges of $4.3 million relating to SARs, RSAs and stock optnons pursuant to SFAS 123R dre included in fiscal 2007
results, compared to $9.8 million in charges related to SARs and RSAs in fiscal 2006. SG&A expenses include
approximately $0.5 million in fiscal 2007 relating to prior penodq,for certain employee benefits related charges. In
fiscal 2006, SG&A expenses include approximately $0.2 million of expenses relating to'prior periods for certain
office lease expenses. .

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense was $6.4 million and $5.8 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively, and represents
the amortization of finite-lived intangible assets associated with the Company’s March 2005 acquisition of OASIS
and June 2002 acquisition of Gain,

In-Process Research and Development

The $0.9 million in-process research and development expense recorded in fiscal 2006 represents the fair value
of in-process technology for OASIS research projects that, as of the March 30, 2005 closing date of the OASIS
acquisition, had not reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future uses. These projects primarily
focused on deployment of certain technology into consumer electronics applications. The estimated fair value of
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this in-process research and development was recorded as an expense as of the OASIS acquisition date, in the fiscal
quarter ended May 31, 2005. _
Interest and Other Income (Expense)

" The increase in interest income, from $3.3 million in fiscal 2006 to $4.7 million in fiscal 20(_)7, primarily
reflects the impact of higher average interest rates during fiscal 2007, Interest expense increased $0.2 million in
fiscal 2007 as the company ook advantage of supplier financing for advanced design tool acquisitions. Other
income in fiscal 2007 included $0.2 million in g,ams on the sale of certain fixed assets. :

Provision Jor lncome Taxes -

- The Company’s effective income tax rate reflects statutory federal, state and foreign tax rates, the impact of °
certain permanent differences between the book and tax treatment of certain expenses, and the impact of tax-exempt’
in¢ome and various income tax credits.

The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2007 was $8.3 million, or an effective income tax rate of 23.4%
against $35.3 millioh of income before income taxes. This provision included the impact of $2.3 million from
income tax credits, $1.5 million from tax exempt income and a $0 7 million’ provision for differences between
foreign and U S. mcome tax rates. .- '

The i mcome tax credits re]ate to qualified research and development expendllures in the U.S., and were not
recognized ‘until the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 Legislation was passed in late December 2006 extendmg the
avallablllty of these credits rclroactwely o] anuary 1, 2006 The Company had claimed thcse credlts in prior fiscal
penods but did not recognize any associated benefits i m its tax prov;s:on for the ﬂrst three quarters in fiscal 2007
pending the passage of this legislation,

The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2006 was $4.5 million, or an effecuve income tax rate of 27.3%
against $16.5 million of income before income taxes. This provision included the lmpact of $1, .7 million from
income tax credits, $0.9 million from tax exempt income and a $l 0 mllhon provision for dlfferences between
fore1gn and U.S. income tax rates.

The provisions for income taxes from continving operations have not been reduced for approxlmately
$0.5 million and $5.7 mllhon of tax benefits in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respecuvely, derived from’ activity in stock-
based compensation plans These tax beneﬁts have been credited to additional paid-in capltal

LIQUIDITY & CAPITAL RESOURCES '

The Company currently finances its operations through a combination of existing working capital resources
and cash generated by operations. The Company had no bank debt during fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006.

. - B . 4

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents, shori-term and long-term investments (including investments in
auction rate securities with maturities in excess of one year) were $186.1 million at February 29, 2008, compared to
$160.0 million at February 28, 2007.

Operatmg activities generated $61 3 million of cash during ﬁscal 2008, compared to $37.0 mllllon of cash
generated in fiscal 2007. Comparative operating cash flows reflect the impact of improved profitability in fiscal
2008, partially offset by an 1ncrease in inventories in support of revenue growth.

Investing activities consumed $14.2 million of cash during ﬁscal 2008, reflectmg a $0,7 million increase of
short-term and long-term investments and $13.3 million in capltal expenditures. Capital expenditures were
significantly lower than the prior. years, primarily due to a relative decrease in expenditures for test and other
related production equipment in fiscal 2008. Investing activities consumed $52.0 million of cash during fiscal 2007,
reflecting a $12.7 million increase of short-term and long-term investments, the $12.6 million setttement of the cash
portion of the QASIS acquisition contingent consideration, and $27.0 million in capital expenditures (mostly for
test equipment).

Long-term investments consist of highly rated auction rate securities {most of which are backed by
U.S. Federal or state and municipal government guarantees). As of November 30, 2007 and prior period-end
dates, these investments were classified as shon-term in nature. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, such
investments became subject to adverse market conditions, and the liquidity typically associated with the financial
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markets for such instruments became restricted as auctions began to fail. Given the underlying terms of these
securities, in most cases where auctions fail, the investor is entitled to higher interest rates to compensate for the lack
of liquidity. At present, the Company is earning higher overall returns on these investments securities as a
consequence of current market conditions. The Company expects such market conditions to be temporary, and has
classified its investments in auction rate securities as long-term in the interim. However, in the event that these
market conditions are not temporary and the Company’s future operating requirements dictated liquidation of these
securities, it is possible they may/or not be liquidated at full book value. Should such need arise and current market
conditions persist, the Company may also be required to record impairment charges on such investments.

Net cash used in financing activities of $23.6 million during fiscal 2008 included $40.6 million of treasury
stock purchases and $2.2 million of payments under supplier financing arrangements, partially offset by $18.4 mil-
lion of proceeds from exercises of stock options and $0.9 million excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation.
Financing activities provided $7.4 million of cash during fiscal 2007, including $14.5 million of proceeds from
exercises of stock options, partially offset by $6.1 million of treasury stock purchases and $1.5 million for payments
under supplier financing arrangements.

Working capital decreased $92.2 million, or 43.4%, to $120. 0 mnlhon in fiscal 2008, This was largely due to
the reclassification of $124.5 million in auction rate securities from short-term to long-term investments on the
balance sheet in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, offset in part by increases in cash and net current assets. Accounts
receivable increased from $48.0 million at February 28, 2007 to $52.9 million at February 29, 2008. The Company’s
inventories increased to $58.9 million at February 29, 2008 compared to $50.9 million at February 28, 2007, in
support of higher sales levels and given the Company’s ‘decision to build inventory in support of anticipated
customer demand, especially for instances where the Company s products are sole-source or custom de51gncd for
major customers’ programs. Total current liabilities increased from'$74.7 million at February 28, 2007 to
$79.5 million at February 29, 2008.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2008 were $13.3 million, primarily for’ test and other related production
equipment. Capital expend:lureq in fiscal 2007 of $27.0 million were primarily for test and other related production
equipment, as well as the completion of the Hauppauge, New York headquarters building expansion, which began
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. -

In addition, the Company also made non- -cash capital investments of $4.1 million in fiscal 2008 for advanced
design tools acquired under supplier ﬁnancmg arrangements. The Company acqurred $6.9 million of advanced
design tools during fiscal 2007 under similar agreéements, for which the vendors also provided extended payment
terms. Payments under these agreements are reported within cash flows from financing activities on the consol-
idated statements of cash flows.

The Company made cash payments for U.S. Federal and state and foreign income taxes of $7 9 million and
$10.7 million in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively. For federal income tax purposes, the Company had
approximately $5.8 million federal net operatmg loss carryforwards as of the fiscal year end 2006 which were fully
utilized in fiscal year 2007. g

In November 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to additional one
million shares, for a total of up to 4 million shares authorized under the common stock repurchase program first
initiated in October 1998.

As of February 29, 2008, the Company has repurchased approximately 3.4 million shares of its common stock
at a cost of $72.7 million under this program, including 1,165,911 shares répurchased at a cost of $40.6 million in
fiscal 2008, and 253,300 shares repurchased at a cost of $6.1 million in fiscal 2007. Subsequent to year-end and
through April 18, 2008 (inclusive), the Company repurchased an additional 199,145 shares at a cost of $5.8 million.




The Company’s contractual payment obligations and purchase commitments as of February 29, 2008 were as
follows: o - Y
. : : : ’ . Payment Obligations by Period

Between Between

" Total ’ Wiihin1year land3Years 3and$ Years Thereafter
, . ‘ : (in thousands) <
Operating leases . .. ................. $20933 - $3425 ° $ 5515 ¢ $4,713 $ 7,280
Other obligations :...... e 15,225 3,745 5558 - 7 1,237 4,685
Reserve for uncertain tax positions . . . . . 3808 ' 422 1,827 - 1,376 183
Inventory and other purchase . ' ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ' ‘
commitments ................... 10,968 10,968 . — — —

Total ... ... oL SRR oo 850,934 $18,560 $12,900 . $7,326 $12,148

Other obligations include accrued officers and directors retirement obligations and supplier financed software
obligations. Inventory and other purchase obligations include purchase commitments for processed silicon wafers
and assembly and test services. The Company depends entirely upon subcontractors to manufacture its silicon
wafers and provide assembly services, as well as for certain of its test services. Due to the length of subcontractor
lead times, the Company orders these matertals and services well in advance, and generally expects to receive and
pay for.these materials and services .within the next six months. :

For purposes of the preceding table, obligations for the purchase of goods or services are defined as agreements
that are énforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum
quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum ‘or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the
transaction. The Company cannot cancel these obligations without incurming cost. Non-cancelable purchase orders
for manufacturing requirefments are typically fulfilled by vendors within short time horizons, generally three
months or less. The Company has additional purchase orders, not included within the table, that represent
authorizations to purchase rather than bmdmg apreements,

The Company has considered in the past, and will continue to consider, various possible transactions to secure
necessary foundry manufacturing capacity, including equity investments in, prepayments to, or deposits with
foundries, in exchange for.guaranteed capacity or other arrangements which address the Company’s manufacturing
requirements. The Company may also consider wilizing cash to acquire or invest in complementary businesses or
products or to obtain the right to use complementary technologies. From time to time, in the ordinary course of
business, the Company may evaluate potential acquisitions of or investments in such businesses, products or
technologies owned by third parties.

Despite the recent trends and factors adversely affecting the markets for auction rate securities and ensuing
lack of liquidity for securities held, the Company expects that its cash, cash equivalents, liquid investments, cash
flows from operations and its borrowing capacity will be sufficient to finance the Company’s operatmg and capital
requirements through the end of fiscal 2009 and the foreseeable future.

Item 7. A, — Quantitative and Qualitative Dlsclosures About Market Risk

[meresr Rate Risk — The Company’s exposure to mterest rate risk relates primarily to its investment portfolio
(i.e. with respect to interest income). The primary objective of SMSC’s investment portfolio management is to
invest available cash while preserving principal and meeting liguidity needs. In accordance with the Company’s
investment policy, investments are placed with high credit-quality issuers .md the amount of credit exposure to any
one issuer is limited. -

As of February 29, 2008, the Company’s $124.5 million of long-term in\"estments consisted primarily of
investments in corporate, government and municipal obligations with maturities of between three and twelve
months at acquisition. If market interest rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10% from levels at
February 29, 2008, the Company estimates that the fair values of these investments would decline by an immaterial
amount. The Company would not expect operating results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by
the effect of a sudden change in market interest rates. .

Equity Price Risk — The Company is not exposed to any equity significant price risks at February 29, 2008.




Foreign Currency Risk — The Company has international sales and expenditures and is, therefore, subject to
certain foreign currency rate exposures, principally the euro and Japanese Yen. In order to reduce the risk from
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates, most of the Company’s product sales and all of its arrangements with its
foundry, test and assembly vendors are denominated igl U.S. dollars.

From time to time, the Company's foreign operating subsidiaries, SMSC Japan and SMSC Europe, have
entered into foreign currency contracts to minimize the exposure of their U.S. dollar denominated transactions,
assets and lLiabilities to currency exchange rate risk. Gains or losses on these contracts are intended to offset the gains
or losses recorded for statutory purposes from the remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities from U.S. dollars
into local currencies. As of February 29, 2008, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary in Japan had two forward
contracts initiated in January 2008 for the delivery of $1.4 million (in exchange for Yen), to cover scheduled
payments on intercompany debt due the U.S. parent company. Although these contracts were not formally
designated as hedges, they were intended to lock in the settlement rate on the underlying obligations and, as such,
effectively mitigate the currency exposure on this intercompany debt. These were the only such contracts initiated
during fiscal 2008. As of February 28, 2007 and during the fiscal year then ended, there were no such contracts
outstanding. '

The Company has never received a cash dividend (repatriation of cash) from SMSC Japan.

Commodity Price Risk — Precious metals are routinely used in the manufacture of our products. Supplies for
such commodities may from time-to-time become restricted, or general market factors and conditions may affect
pricing of such commodities. In the latter part of fiscal 2008, particularly in the fourth quarter, the price of gold
increased precipitously, and certain of our supply chain partners assessed surcharges to compensate for the resultant
increase in manufacturing costs. While the Company is currently evaluating opportunities to control the risk of
similar, increases in commodities-related costs, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to
successfully safeguard against potential short-term and ]ong-term commodities price fluctuations. .

Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required by this item are set forth in Part IV
Item 15(a)(1) — Financial Statements, of this Report.

Item 9. — Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A — Controls and Procedures ‘

Disclosure Contm]s and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the pammpauon of the Company 5 managemem including its Chicf Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of February 29,
2008. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any systemn of disclosure controls and procedures,
including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures.
Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving
their control objectives. Disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed to reasonably
assure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this
Form 10-K, are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the U.S. Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC’s) rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures are also designed to
reasonably assure that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. )

*Based upon this evaluation, th¢ Cornpany's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that, as of February 29, 2008, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to
provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s Exchange Act reports is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC, and that matérial
information relating to SMSC and its consolidated subsidiaries is accumulated and communicated to the
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Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures.

4 .
i

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repdrting g o '

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over
financial reporting. Internal controls over ﬁnancial reporting are defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act as processes designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and
principal financial officers and effected by the Company s board of directors, management and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, together with all applicable rules and regulations of the SEC governing financial reporting requirements,
and include those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and . . )

(3) Provide reasonable assurances regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mis-
statements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. - '

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting as of
February 29, 2008 based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzatlons of the Treadway
Commission in its report entitled Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based upon this assessment, manage-
ment has concluded that, as of February 29, 2008, the Company’s internal controls over ﬁnanc1al repomng are
effective based on those criteria.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule included in this annual report, has also audited the effec-
tiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 29, 2008, as stated in their report
which appears herein,

. C, . .
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting .

No change in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended February 29, 2008 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9.B. — Other Information
None.
PART HI

The information required by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of Part HI of this Report, to the extent not set forth
herein, is incorporated herein by reference from the registrant’s 2008 Proxy Statement relating to the annual
meeting of stockholders to be held in 2008, which definitive proxy statement shail be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Report relates.

The information concerning the Company’s code of ethics as required by Part I1] of this Report is incorporated
herein by reference to the section entitled “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” appearing in the 2008 Proxy
Statement.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of B
Standard Microsystems Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated income statements,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Standard
Microsystems Corporation and its subsidiaries at Fébruary 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years inthe period ended February 29, 2008 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
accompanying financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a){2) presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of February 29, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement
schedule, for maintaining effectwe internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effec-
tiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting appearing under item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal contro! over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for uncertainty in income tax positions in fiscal 2008, the manner in which it accounts for share-based
compensation in fiscal 2007, and the manner in which it accounts for defined benefit pension plans effective
February 28, 2007.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal coatrol over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
April 29, 2008




' -STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of February 29 and 28, ' : 2008 20607

{in thousands, except per
share data)
ASSETS '

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents .. ... ... ... . ... .. ittt iiaiannenns $ 61641 3% 36255

ShOM-term INVESIMENIS. & . o v\ et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — 123,768

Accounts receivablé, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $438 at-February 29, .

2008 and February 28, 2007, respectively .. ... ... ... ..., . 52,871 48,014
VLT 18] o [ e .. 58,885 50,873
Deferred InCOme TaXES . 't ot ot e e e e e e e 17,528 19,312
Other CUMTEDt ASSELS . . . . o vttt et i ettt e i e e s, - B566 8,751
Total current assets . ............ e e e J 199,497 286,973
Property, plant and equipment, net . . ... ... ... . ... ... ... .o L. . 60,547 58,020
Goodwill. . . ... e e, 105,463 98,259
Intangible assets, net . ... .. ... .. ... 36,930 40,256
Long-term investments. . ... . ... ... ... ... .. e 124,469 —
Deferred income taxes . . .. ... ... ... .. i e e e 9,283 7,094
Other assets . . . ... .. e e e 3,287 3,037

TOTAL ASSETS ... . oottt e e e e $539476  $493,639

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable. ., .. ... e e e e $ 29700 $ 25617
Deferred income on shipments to distributors . .. ... ... [ 20,766 12,752
Accrued expenses, income taxes and other liabilities. . ... ...... ... ... ... ..., 29,001 36,378
Total current liabilities. . ... ....... ... ... .. . . 79,467 74,747
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . .. . 7,928 10,100
Other liabilities ... .......... ... . e 15,992 16,850

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, authorized 1,000 shares, none issued. . ... ........ — —

Common stock, $0.10 par value, authorized 83,000 shares, issued 26,193 and
25,113 shares, and outstanding 22,782 and 22,868 shares, as of February 29, 2008

and February 28, 2007, respectively . . ... ... i i e 2,619 2,511
Additional paid-incapital. . .. ... ... 312,499 276,701
Retained earnings . . ... ... ... 174,051 139,657
Treasury stock, 3,411 and 2,245 shares, as of February 29, 2008 and February 28,

2007, respectively, 8t COSE, . ...ttt e e e (72,652) (32,038)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... ... ... .. L i 19,572 5,111
Total shareholders’ equity . ... ... ... it ettt ir e reneras 436,089 391,942

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ................... $539476  $493,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated. financial statements.




STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, 2008 2007 2006

’ . (in thousands, except per share data)
Product Sales . .. ... oo e e e $365,671  $359,010 $308,345
Intellectual property revenues . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... 12,178 11,584 10,773

377,849 370,594 319,118

Operating expenses: _ .
Costs of goods sold (exclusive of amortization shown below}........ 181,067 -+ 193,497 172,309

Research and development ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... .... . 71,660 66,585 58,274
' Selling, general and administrative. . . ... ........... ... ... ..... 80,767 73,821 69,162
Amortization of intangible assets . ... ... ... . o o L, 6,707 6,364 5,802
In-process research and development . . ........................ — —_ 895
Income from operations. . .. ...... ... .. .. i . 37,648 30,327 12,676
IMterest IMCOME . . . . oottt e e e e e 7,499 4,695 3,288
Interest BXpEnSe . ... ... .ot e e -(315) (306) (56)
Other (expense) income, NEL . .. ... ...ttt inennnnnnena. (1,494) 561 - 634
Income before income taxes . .................... e 43,338 35,277 16,542
Provision for income LaXes . . ... ..ot ittt e e 10,432 8,262 4,512
Nt IHCOMIE .« o v vttt e et e e e e e e et e et et e e e $ 32906 $ 27015 § 12,030
Net income per share: ‘
Basic . ... $ 144 % 122 § 058
Diluted . . ... e e e e e e $ 139 % 116 § 055

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

- ’ _Deferred  Accumulated
' Additional Stock- Other
M Paid-In  Retained Treasury Stock Based Cotmprehenslve
Shares Amount Capltal Eornings Shares Amount Compensation (Loss) Income  Total

"

Balance at February 28, 2005

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Change in unrealized gain on investments
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income. . .. .. ..........
Issuance of common stock for business acquisition. .
Stock options exercised . . ... ..., ... ...,
Tax benefit from employee stock plans
Stock-based compensation
Amortization of deferred

stock-based compensation

Purchases of treasury stock ... ... ..........

Balance at February 28, 2006
Impact of initially applying SFAS No. 123(R). . . . .
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ... .......... ... civuivun...
Other comprehensive income
Change in unrealized loss on investments
Foreign cumrency translation adjustment

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income. . .. .......... .,

Adjustment for initially applying SFAS No. 158, net

ofax ...
Issuance of common stock for business acquisition. .
Stock options exercised . . ... ... L 0L
Tax benefit from employee stock plans
Stock-based compensation
Purchases of treasury stock

Balance at February 28, 2007

Comprehensive income:
Netincome ............... ... ovunn
Other comprehensive income: -
Change in pension liability
Change in unrealized loss on.investments
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income. . .. ............

Cumulative-effect adjustments on the adoption of
FINAB. ...

Stock options exercised
Excess tax benefit from employee stock plans. . . . .
Stock-based compensation
Purchases of treasury stock

Balance at February 29, 2008

20,533

2,072
1,219

175

$2,053 $187,854 $100,612

12,030

35,575
17,982
5,693
3,688

{in thousands)

(1.842) $(23.799)

o (3,620

$(1.925) 5 5054  $269849

12080

. 40 40
(7.045) (7,045)

" (7,005)

5025
35,782
i 18,104
- 5693
86

1,592 1,592

(150) (2.162)

(2.162)

162
883

69

$250,792 $112,642
(3.953)

27,015

3,996
14,376
527
10,963

Il ol &a

(1,992) $(25.961)

(253) (6,077)

$(1.951)  $333.969

$(3.953)
3,953

27,015

)
7.568

2)
7.568

1.566
34,581

504)

(504)
4,012
14.464
527
10970

6,077)

25,113

$2,511 $276,701 $139.,657

{2,245) ${32,038)

1,006

74

32,906

1,488

18,280
7.165
14,353

101

[

(1.166) (40.614)

$5111 3391542

32,906

651 651
—_ , 8 8
13,802 13,802

‘L4,461

41,367

1,488
- 1838
. 71,165
10,360
(40,614)

26,193

$2,619 $312,499 $174,051 (3.411)$(72.652)

$19.572  5436,089

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NetINCOME . . ..ottt e $ 32906 % 27015 $ 12,030

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ............... ... ..., 20,370 19,316 . 16,654
Tax benefits from employee stock plans .. .................... —-— - 5,693
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. .. ........... 81 (527) —
In-process research and development charge . .. ................ — — ) 895
Stock-based compensation . ... ... ... e e 8,728 5,530 13,079
Deferred INCOME aXES . . ...\t i et e et e e e e e (3,855) 1,399 323
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment . ................ — (152) —
Other adjustments, net .. ............. e 198 — (157)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business

acquisition impact: .

Accounts receivable . . ... ... . e . (2,613) (6,085) (12,244)

INVEMIOTIES . . ittt et e et e e e e (6,975) (8,520) 3,295

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ... ... .. (3,947) (1,239) 11,517

Deferred income. . . ........... [ 8,015 . (452) 5,423
~ Income taxes receivable and payable....................... . 5,866 167 (4,439)

Other changes, NEE . .. ... .. ettt e i e ineae s 3,521 (1,965) - 1,363
Net cash provided by operating activities ... .................. 61,337 - 36,965 53,432
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures. . ... .. ... i i e (13,263) (26,995) (23,750}
Acquisition of QASIS SiliconSystems Holding AG, net of cash

acquired. .. . ... e — (12,555) (60,084)
Purchases of short-term and long-term investments . .. ... e, (822842) (592,107 (581,659
Sales and maturities of short-term and long-term investments . ..... 822,130 579,440 527,119
Sales of property, plant and equipment . ... ...... ... ... ... — 265 22
Other. ... e {198) — (154)

Net cash used for investing activities. . ........... ... .. ... .. (14,173) (51,952) {138,5006)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. .. . ... .... ... 877 527 —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . . .. ........ ... ..., 18,381 14,464 . 18,104
Purchases of treasury stock. . . .. ..... ... ... ... .o Ll (40,614) (6,071 (2,162)
Repayments of obligations under capital leases and notes payable . . . (2,241) (1,522) (1,953)

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities. . .. ........ (23,597) 7,392 . 13,987
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash '

equivalents. . ... ... ... e 1,819 (82) {1,107
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . .. ... ... 25,386 (7,677) (72,194)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . ............... 36,255 43,932 116,126
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . ... ... ... ... ... $ 61,641 $ 36,255 $ 43,932

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
* . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1." DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Standard Microsystems Corporation (the “Company” or “SMSC") a Delaware i:orporatio'n founded in 1971,
designs and sells a wide variety of silicon-based mtegrated circuits that are primarily utilizing analog or mixed-
signal technologies. The Company’s integrated circuits and systems provide a wide variety of signal processmg
attributes that are incorporated by its globally diverse customers into end products in the Consumer Electronics &
Infotainment, the Mobile & Desktop PC, and Indusirial & Other markets. These products generally provide
connectivity, networking, or input/output control solutions for a variety of high-speed communication, computer
and related peripheral, consumer electronics, industrial control system, or auto infotainment applications. The
market for these solutions is increasingly diverse, and the Company’s various technologies are increasingly used in
various combinations and in_alternative applications. o . . . .

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . .
Pnnctples of Consohdatwn )

o

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on the last day in February. The consolidated financial statemnents include the
accounts of thé Company and its Sl.IbSldlal‘leS (all’ wholly -owned) after elimination of all sngmﬁcant mtercompany
accounts and transacuons : " .

‘ JEF
Reclassifications ' !

Certain items in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
fiscal 2008 presentation. Specifically, the Company had previously included rebates payable on product sales as a
component of Accounts recéivable, net in its Consolidated Balance Sheets. Such rebates are now included as a
component of Accrued expenses, income taxes and other liabilitiés. This change resulted in an increase in each of
these balance sheet captions of $7.4 million as of February 28, 2007. The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the fiscal years ended February 28, 2007 and 2006 have also been conformed to this change in presentation. In
addmon the Company had prevnously included both realized and unrealized foreign currency transaction and
translation gains (losses) W1thm Selling, general and administrative expenses, Such amounts are now included as a
component of Other income {expense), net in the Consolidated Income Statements for all periods presenled

In addition, the Company opted to present its Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows using the indirect
method, beginning with the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2006 (first quarter of fiscal 2007). The Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the fiscal year ended 2006 has been conformed to this presentation. . -

Out-of-Period Adjustments

In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company identified errors totaling $1.3 millien in its fiscal 2007 and
2008 consolidated income tax expense associated with the exercise of incentive stock options, and an additional
$0.4 million (net of tax) related to unrealized foreign exchange losses associated with prior periods going back to
the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The Company corrected these errors in its fiscal 2008 third quarter results; which had
the effect of increasing consolidated income tax expense for the fiscal year ended February 29, 2008 by $1.4 millicn,
increasing other €xpense by $0.5 million and decreasing consolidated net income by $1.5 million. The Company
does not believe that these adjustments were material to the consolidated financial statements for the nine month
period ended November 30, 2007, the fiscal years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007-and thus has not
restated its consolidated financial statements for these periods. :

Use of Esnmates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accountmg prmc;ples generally accepted in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

49




STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION-AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company bases the
estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on various other factors that it believes to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. '

Revenue Recognition

)

The Company recognizés revenue from product sales to OEMs and end-users at the time of shipment, net of
appropriate reserves for product returns and allowances. The Company’s térms of shipment are customarily ex-
works (at SMSC warehouse). Shipping and handling costs are included within costs of goods sold.

Certain of the Company’s products are sold to electronic component distributors under agreements providing
for price protection and rights to return unsold merchandise. Accordingly, recognition of revenue and associated
gross profit on shipments to a majority of the Company’s distributors are deferred until the distributors resell the
products. At the time of shipment to distributors, the Company records a trade receivable for the selling price,
relieves inventory for the carrying value of goods shipped, and records this gross margin as deferred income on
shipments to distributors on the consolidated balance sheet. This deferred income represents the gross margin on the
initial sale to the distributor; however, the amount of gross margin recognized in future consolidated Income
Statements will typically be less than the originally recorded deferred income as a result of price allowances. Price
allowances offered to distributors are recognized as reductions in product sales when mcurred which is generally at
the time the distributor resells the product. "

Shipmcms made by the Company’s Japanese subsidiary to distributors in Japan are made under agreements
that permit limited or no stock return or price protection privileges. Revenue for shipments to distributors in Japan is
recognized as title passes to- such distributors upen delivery.

Revenue recognmon for special intellectual property payments received in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 is
discussed in Note 11. The Company recognizes its other intellectual property revenues upon notification of sales of
the licensed technology by its licensees. The terms of the Company's licensing agreements generally requnre
licensees to give notification to the Company and to pay royalties no later than 60 days after the end of the quarter in
which the sales take place.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of cash in banks, money market account balances or other highly
liquid instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments

The Company typically invests excess cash in a variety of marketable securities, including auction rate
securities. Auction rate securities have long-term underlying maturities, but have interest rates that are reset every
90 days or less, at which time the securities can typically be purchased or sold, in markets that have, unti! recently
been highly liquid. The Company’s general intent is not to hold these securities to maturity, but rather to use the
interest rate reset feature to maximize interest yields while maintaining liquidity. The Company.'s investment in
these securities have provided higher yields than money market and other cash equivalent investments.

Short-term investments consist of financial instruments with maturities of between three and twelve months, at
acquisition, and investments in liquid auction rate securities. All such investments are considered available-for-sale
and so classified in the Company’s Consclidated Balance Sheets. The aggregate cost of short-term investments held

‘as of February 28, 2007 approximated their market values as of that date. There are no mvestments classified as

short-term as of February 29, 2008. |
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Long-tertn investments consist of highly rated auction. rate securities (most of which are backed by
U.S. Federal or state and municipal government guarantees). As of November 30, 2007 and prior period-end
dates, these investments were classified as short-term in nature. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, such
investments became subject to adverse market conditions, and the liquidity typically, associated with the financial
markets for such instruments became restricted as auctions began to fail. Given the underlying terms of these
securities, in most cases where auction fail, the investor is entitled to higher interest rates to compensate for the lack
of liquidity. At present, the Company is earning higher returns on these investments securities as a consequence of
current market conditions. The Company expects such market conditions to be temperary, however has classified its
investments in auction rate securities as long-term in the interim, Considering such determination on market
conditions, the high quality of these investments (and underlying guarantees) and given the Company has adequate
cash, working capital and cash flow from operations to meet current operating needs, management has determined
that impairment of these investments is not other than temporary at this time. Management will continue to monitor
market conditions, and may deem that impairment is other than temporary if market conditions do not improve in
the foreseeable future. The Company is currently liquidating such investments as opportunities arise. As of April 23,
2008, the Company had further reduced its holdings in auation rate securities by $16.0 miilion to $108.4 million,
and has been advised that securities totaling another $5.0 million have been called by the issuer (April 30, 2008 call
date). . .

" The Company classifies all marketable debt and equity securities with remaining maturities of greater than one
year as long-term investments. Most of the Company’s long-term investments had maturities greater than five years.
The Company held approximately $0.1 million of equity securities at February 29, 2008 which were classified as
long-term investments. Investments in such readily marketable, publicly traded equity securities are classified as
available-for-sale and are carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Unrealized gains and temporary
losses on such securities, net of taxes, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income within share-
holders’ equity. The amount of net unrealized gains on such securities, net of taxes, in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006
were $15 thousand, $0 and $32 thousand, respectively. Impairment charges on these investments are recorded if
declines in value are deemed to be other than temporary. : :

The Company bases the C(l)S.L’ of the investment sold onthe speéific identification method. Gross realized ééi'ns
and losses that have been included in earnings in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $1 02 ‘thousand, $20 thousand and
$100 thousand, respecnvely ‘

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to their short
maturities.

Concentrations of Credit Risk “ooe ) ) "

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit nsk consnsl of cash, cash
equivalents, short- term and long-term investments (inchiding auction rate securities) and accounts recelvable The
Company invests its cash in bank accounts and money market accounts with major financial institutions, in
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, and in debt securities of corporations and agencies with high credit quality.
By policy, the Company seeks to limit credit exposure on investments through dwersnﬁcauon and by restricting its
investments to highly rated securities.

The Company’s accounts receivable result from trade credit extended on shipments to original equipment
manufacturers, original design manufacturers and electronic component distributors, The Company can have
individually significant accounts receivable balances from its larger customers. At February 29, 2008, one customer
accounted for more than 10% of net accounts receivable, with balances of $17.2 million, At Febmuary 28, 2007, two
customers each individually accounted for more than 10% of net accounts receivable, with-balances of $7.3 million
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and $7.1 million respectively. The Company manages its concentration of credit risk on-accounts receivable by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limiting the extension of credit
when deemed necessary. In addition, although the Company generally does not request collateral in advance of
shipment, prepayments or staridby letters of credit may be required and have been obtained in certain circum-
stances, and the Company has bought third-party credit insurance policies’ with respect to- certain customers to
reduce credit concentration exposure. The Company maintains an allowance for potential credit losses, taking into
consideration the overall quahty and aglng of the accounts receivable portfolio and specifically 1dent1ﬁed customer
risks. . : : : :

.Iuvento'r;i:es and Costs of Goods Sold ‘

Inventories are valued at the lower of standard cost (which closely approximates values on a first-in, first-out
basis) or market. The Company establishes mventory allowances for estimatéd obsolescence or unmarketable
inventory for the difference betwccn the cost of inventory and estimated reallzable value based upon assumptions
about future demand and market condmons e

Costs of goods sold includes the cost of inventory, shipping and handling costs borne by the Company in
connection with shipments to customers, royalties associated with certain products and depreciation on productive
assets (principally, test equipment and facilities). However, costs of goods sold do not include amortization of
certain intangible assets associated.with the intellectual property used in the design,process, nor does it include
amortization of acquired technologies. -

[

* Warranty Costs ' . '

The Company generally warrants its products against defects in materials -and workmanship and non-
conformance to specifications for varying lengths of time, typically twelve to twenty four months. The majority
of the Company's product warranty claims are settled through the return of the defective product and shipment of
replacement product. Warranty returns are included within.the Company’s allowance for returns, which is based on
historical return rates. Actual future returns could differ from the allowance established. ln addition, the Company
accrues a liability for specific warranty costs expected to be settled other than through product return and
replacement, if a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Product warranty expenses during fiscal 2008,
2007 and 2006 were not material. '

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of buildings and leasehold improvements (2 to 25 years), machinery and equipment (3 to 7 years) and
computer systems and software (2 to 7 years). Upon sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment, the related
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected
currently in the Company’s conqolldated income statements,

'De_preciatio'n expense related to ‘property, plant and equipmerit was $13.7 million, $13.0 million and
$10.9 miltion, for the fiscal years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

' Cost-Basis Invegtmentk' .

‘Equity investments representing an ownership interest of less than 20% in non-publicly traded companies are
carried at cost. Changes in the values of these investments are not recognized unless they are sold, or an impairment
in value is deemed to be other than temporary. ‘
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_ Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that future undiscounted cash flows
expected 1o be generated by an asset’s disposition or use may not be sufficient to support its carrying value. If such
cash flows are not sufficient to support the asset’s recorded value, an impairment charge is recognized upon
completion of such assessment.to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived asset to its estimated fair value,

. , :

«  Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets- ' . ' , .

Goodwill is recorded as the difference, if any, between the aggregate value of consideration exchanged for an
acquired business and the fair value (measured as of the acquisition date) of total net tangible and identified
intangible assets acqmred In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Statement of
Financial Accounllng Standards (“SFAS™)} No. 142, Goodwill and Other lnrangzble Assets (“SFAS 1427), goodwill
and purchased intangibles with indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment on an annual basis or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be
recoverable. Purchased intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and
are reviewed for impairment in value when indicators of impairment, such as reductions in demand, are present. The
Company conducts annual reviews for potential impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. '

Defined Benefit Plans

Effective for fiscal year 2007, the Company'adc')pted the prc;visions of SFAS No. 158, Emp!oyers’ A‘ccounting
Jor Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,
and 132(R) (“SFAS 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires that the funded status of defined-benefit postretirement plans be
recognized on'the company’s consolidated balance sheets, and changes in the funded status be reflected in
comprehensive income. SFAS No. 158 also requires the measurement date of the plan’s funded status to be the same
-as the company’s fiscal year-end. The initial impact of SFAS No. 158 due to unrecognized prior service costs or
credits and.net actuarial gains or-losses as well as subsequent changes in the funded status is recognized as a
component of accimulated comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.

g [ : . - oot

Contingencies

The Company regularly and routinely evaluates risks and exposures, existing in the, business, and either
discloses such matters or records liabilities for such exposures as warranted, following the guidance set forth in
SFAS No. 3, Accounting for Contingencies (“SFAS 5. In connection with any such evaluation, the Compahy also
considers estimated legal fees (if applicable) associated with such matters in determining amounts to be accrued.

Research and Development'

Expenditures for research and development activities are expensed in the period incurred.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred and are not material to the results of operations in a}iy of
the periods presented.

Stock-Based Compensatwn (Share-Based Paymem)

The Company has several stock based compensation plans in effect under whlch mcenuve stock opuons non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock awards (“RSAs”) and stock appreciation rights (“SARs™) are granted to
employees and directors. Stock options and SARs are granted with exercise prices equal to the fair-value of the
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underlying shares on the date of grant. New shares are issued in settling stock option exercises and restricted stock
awards.

Effective March 1, 2006 the Company adopted FASB SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004}, Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123R™). SFAS 123R supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Emplovees (“APB 25”) and related interpretations and amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows.
SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, restricted
stock units and employee stock purchase rights, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their
respective grant date fair values and does not allow the previously permitted pro forma disclosure-only method as an
alternative to financial statement recognition. SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation cost be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required
under previous literature. In March 2005 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 1077), which
provides guidance regarding the interaction of SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulatlons The Company
considered the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS 123R.

The Company elected the modified prospective transition method as -permitted by SFAS 123R. Accordingly,
prior periods have not been revised to reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. Under this transition method, recognized
compensation cost includes: (i) compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted prior to, but not yet fully
vested as of, February 28, 2006 (based on the grant- date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and previously presented in
the pro forma footnote disclosures); and {ii} compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted or modified
subsequent to February 28, 2006 (based on fair values estimated in accordance with the new provisions of
SFAS No. 123R). "

'
b

In connection with-the implementation of SFAS 123R; the Company elected the “long form™ method in
determining our additional paid-in capital pool of windfall benefits and generally uses the straight-line method to
amortize compensation expense over the service period. The estimated value of the Company’s stock-based awards
(including stock options, restricted stock awards and stock appreciation rights), less expected forfeitures, is
amortized over the awards’ respective requisite service period, which is the vesting period. As a result of adopting
SFAS 123R, income from operations and income before income taxes for the twelve month period ended
February 28, 2007 decreased by $5.7 million over what would have been reported on the prior accounting basis.
Net income for the twelve month period ended February 28, 2007 decreased by approximately $3.7 million. Basic
and diluted earnings per share decreased by $.17 and $.16, respectively. The implementation of SFAS 123R
increased cash flows from financing activities by $0.5 million during fiscal 2007. :

Share-based compensation recognized as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), as well as pro forma
disclosures according to the original provisions of SFAS 123 for periods prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), use
the Black-Scholes option pricing model for estimating the fair value of options and SARs granted. The Black-
Scholes model requires certain assumptions, judgments and estimates by the Company to determine fair value,
including expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate, and expected life. The Company based the expected
volatility on historical volatility. Additionally, the Company based the expected life of options, RSAs and SARs
granted on an actuarial model. Share-based compensation related to RSAs is calculated based on the market price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. There were no dividends expected to be paid on the Company s
common stock over the expected lives estimated.

Pro Forma Disclosures under SFAS 123 for Periods Prior to Fiscal 2007

Prior to fiscal 2007, the Company followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123 for stock options. The
Company recognized the cost of SARs and RS As on the basis of current and grant date intrinsic values, respectively.
Pursuant to SFAS 123, for pro forma disclosure purposes only, the estimated fair market value of the Company’s
options is amortized as an expense over the options’ vesting periods. The fair value of each option grant, as defined
by SFAS 123, is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes

54




STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

model, as well as other currently accepted option valuyation models, was developed to estimate the fair value of
freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the
Company’s stock option awards. Because the Company s employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate, exjsting valuation models may not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of employee stock options.

i

The fair value of stock optioas issued has been esllmated at the dates of grant usmg a Black Scholes option-
pricing model with the follow":g weighted average assumptions: :

' Fiscal Year
Ended
February 28,
2006

Dividend yield. .. ... ... ..... S PP —

" Expected volatility. . ................ e SRR PRUUEURR . 58%
Risk-free interest rates . . . . ........vvveeenrenennn.. P e PRUR - 4.68%
Expected lives (in years) . ... ... ... oot e 4.60

The following table presents the pro-forma effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had
applied the fair-value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to all of its share-based compensation awards for the
fiscal year ended February 28, 2006:

Fiscal Year
Ended
February 28,
2006

Net income — as reported . . . ... ..o i e e $ 12,030
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net income, net of taxes — as

L4 1 T . 9352
Deduct: Stock-based compensatmn expense determined using the, falr value method for

all awards, netof taxes. . ... ... .. .. ... i PRI (12,079)
Net income —pro forma, ............ P PN $ 9,303
Basic net income per share — as reported. . . . . e e e I .. % 058
Diluted net income per share — as reported . . . . . . L Ce R P '$ 055
Basnc net income ‘per share—pro forma ... ... . $ .045
Dlluted net mcome per share — pro forma e § 043

Income Taxes ) ) .

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences that arise in the recording of transactions for
financial and tax reporting purposes as well as net operating loss and tax credit carryfowards. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by an appropriate valuation allowance if, in management’s judgment, part of the deferred tax asset will not
be realized. Tax credits are accounted for as reductions of the current provision for income taxes in the year in which
they are eamed. . ' o

* In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN"") No. 48, Accounting for Uncertam!y in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which was adopted by the: Company as of
March 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS-109”). FIN 48
requires that all tax positions be evaluated using a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Differences
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between tax positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements are recorded as’
adjustments to income taxes payable or receivable, or adjustments to deferred taxes, or both. Under FIN 48, benefits
associated with uncertain tax positions are recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements only
when it is determined to be more likély than not that such positions would be sustained upon examination, based on
technical merits. FIN 48 outlines a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. If the
weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not (more than 50% likely) that a tax position would
be sustained on examination (including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any), the associated
tax benefit is then measured as the largest amount that is more, than 50%. likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. FIN 48 also requires expanded disclosure at the end of each reporting period including a tabular
reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits (see Note 10).

In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FIN No. 48-1, Definition of Settlement in FASB
Interpretation No. 48, which is effective retroactively to SMSC to March I, 2007. FSP FIN No. 48-1 provides
guidance on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose of recognizing previously
unrecognized tax benefits. The adoption of FSP FIN No. 48-1 did not have any effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Transiation of Foreign Currencies

The functional currencies of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are their respective local currencies. Assets
and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date. Results of their operations are translated using the average exchange rates during the period. Resulting
translation adjustments are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within share-
holders’ equiity.

Foreign Exchange Contracts

The majority of the Company’s revenues, expenses and capital expenditures are transacted in U.S. dollars.
However, the Company does transact business in other currencies; primarily the Japanese Yen and the euro. From
time to time, the Company has entered into forward currency exchange contracts to hedge against the impact of
currency fluctuations on transactions not denominated in the functional currency of the transacting entity. The intent
of these contracts is to offset foreign currency transaction gains and losses with gains and losses on the forward
contracts, so as to help mitigate the risks associated with currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Company does
not enter into forward currency exchange contracts solely for speculative or trading purposes. Gains and losses on
such contracts have not been significant. As of February 20, 2008, the Company’s wholly-owned. subsidiary in
Japan had two forward contracts initiated in January 2008 for the delivery of $1.4 million (in exchange for Yen), to
cover scheduled payments on intercompany debt due the U.S. parent company. Although these contracts were not
formally designated as hedges, they were intended to lock in the settlement rate on the underlying obligations and,
as such, effectively mitigate the currency exposure on this intercompany debt. An immaterial unrealized gain on
these contracts was recorded in the fourth quarter as a component of Other income {expense}, net.

]

Nét Income per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the sum
of the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period plus the dilutive effect of unvested restricted
stock awards and shares issuable through stock options using the treasury stock method.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
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expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting pronounce-
ments that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this Statement does not require
any new fair value measurements.” In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP™y 157-1,
Application of FASB Statement No. 157 10 FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronountcements That
Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13
(“FSP 157-1") and ‘FSP 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. [57 (“FSP 157-2"). FSP 157-1 amends
SFAS 157 to remove certain leasing transactions from its scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for
all non-financial asséts and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until the beginning of the first quarter of SMSC’s
fiscal year beginning March 1, 2009. The measurement and disclosure requirements related to financial assets and
financial liabilities are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we plan to adopt
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 157
will have on our consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2009 and in fiscal 2010 when it is applied to non-
financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Opn'oﬁ for Financial Assets.and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 permits companies to choose to measure certain financial instruments and
other items at fair value. Thé standard requires that unrealized gains and losses are reported in earnings for items
measured using the fair value option. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007
(SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March 1, 2008). The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the
adoption of SFAS 159 will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations, (“SFAS 141R™). SFAS 141R
establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer shall recognize and measure in its financial statements
the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and goodwill
acquired in the business combination. SFAS 141R is effective for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008
(SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March 1, 2009). The Company is currently determining the impact of implementing
SFAS 141R on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Starements — an Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 establishes and
expands accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effective
for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008 (SMSC’s fiscal year beginning March 1, 2009), The Company is
currently determining the impact of implementing SFAS 160 on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

i

3. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

r

The Company’s comprehensive income consisss of net income, foreign currency translation adjustments from
those subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as their functional currency, unrealized gains and losses on equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, and changes in minimum pension liability adjustments.

L ‘.
i ‘ ' 1
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The components of the Company’s comprehensive income for the fiscal years ended February 29, 2008 and

February 28, 2007 and 2006, were as follows (in thousands): N

12008 2007 2006
Net income . . . . . B DD S $32,906 $27,015  $12,030
Other comprehensive income: . \ '
Change in foreign currency translation adjustments........... 13,802 7,568 (7,045)
Change in unrealized gain on marketable equity securities, net of
BB .+ o e e e e e T S N ) 40
Amortization of transition obligation ..:....... U © 226 — —
Change in actuarial loss . . .. .. PP T A 422 @ — =
Change in prior Service costs . . .....-.... e 3 — —

. SR R $47,367 $34,581 $ 5,025

The components of the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive income as of February 29, 2008 and
Februa;y ‘28, 2007, net of taxes, were as follows (in thousands):

February 29, February 28,
2008 2007

Defined benefit plans:

Transition obligation .............. e $ (160) $ (386)
Actvarial loss. .. ....... ... n I _ .308 (115)
Prior service Costs .. ...... ... O R — 3)
Foreign currency items. . .............. e e 19,437 5,635
Unrealized gains and losses on investments. .. ......... . . (a3 - . 20
lTotal accumulated other comprehensive income .. 0. ool $19.,572 ‘ $5,111

4. NET INCOME PER SHARE

. Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the sum
of the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period plus the dilutive effect of unvested restricted
stock awards and shares issuable through stock options using the treasury stock method. Shares used in calculating

basic and diluted net income per share are reconciled as follows (in thousands):

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, 2008 2007 2006

Average shares outstanding for basic net income per share ... ....... 22,897 22,097 20,783
Dilutive effect of stock options and unvested restricied stock awards . . 726 1,162 1,215
Average shares outstanding for diluted net income per .éhare ...... .. 23623 23259 21998

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, stock options covering 212,000, 682,000 and 1,186,000 common shares,
respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share, because their effects were anti-

dilutive.
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5. BUSINESS ACQUISITION - . .- . . .

On March 30, 2005, SMSC announced the completion of its acquisition of OASIS SiliconSystems Holding AG
and subsidiaries (“OASIS”). Headquartered in Karlsruhe, Germany, OASIS is engaged in the development and
marketing of integrated circuits that enable networking of multimedia devices for automotive infotainment
applications.

$

The transaction was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 141, Business
Combinations (“SFAS 1417), whereby the purchase price for OASIS was allocated to net tangible and intangible
assets acquired, based upon their respective fair values as of March 30, 2005. The results of QASIS” operations
subsequent to March 30, 2005 have been included in the Company’s consolidated results of operations.

SMSC acquired all of OASIS’ outstanding capital stock in exchange for initial consideration of $118.6 million,
including approximately 2.1 million shares of SMSC common stock valued for accounting purposes at $35.8 mil-
lion, $79.5 million of cash, and approximately $3.3 million of direct acquisition costs, including legal, banking,
accounting and valuation fees. The tangible assets of OASIS at March 30, 2005 included approximately
$22.4 million of cash and cash equivalents, resulting in an initial net cash outlay of approximately $60.4 million.
SMSC’s existing cash balances were the source of the cash used in the transaction. For accounting purposes, the
value of the SMSC common stock was determined using the average value of the stock for the two days before and
after the date the terms of the acqulsmon were announced.

The terms of the agreement also provided the former OASIS shareholders the opportunity to eamn up to
$20 million of additional consideration, based upon achieving certain fiscal 2006 performance goals, the amount
earned of which was indeterminable until February 28, 2006. Based upon fiscal 2006 performance and per the
computation completed and submitted on April 28, 2006, the former OASIS shareholders earned approximately
$16.4 million of additional consideration, consisting of approximately 0.2 million shares of SMSC common stock
valued for accounting’ purposes as of May 9, 2006 at $4.0 million, and approximately $12.4 million of cash, all of
which was tendered a'ngi paid ‘during the first quarter of fiscal 2007, SMSC’s existing cash balances were used to
fund the cash portion'of the additional consideration. The fair value of thé shares tendered was approximately
$1.4 million less at the settiement date than had been estimated as of February 28, 2006, resulting in a corresponding
adjustment t6 Goodwill in the nine-month penod ended November 30, 2006. The following table summanzes the
ﬁnal components of the purchase pnce {in m:lhons)

Initial .Cons:deratlon

Cash L e e $ 795

" SMSC common stock (2.1 mllllon shares) .......... ... ... e L .. 358

Transaction costs .. 7.0 .00 L L ' 33

' 118.6

' Additional Consideratio_n ’ .

Cash ..\ e SR celo 124
SMSC common stock (0.2 mllllon ghares) ............ S ..... e .40

TranSaCtion COSES . . . ... e e e __0_2

1 . - , L , 166

Total Consideration and Allocation of Purchase Price ... ... . .vn o o i ... $135.2

[N . "oy 1 oo N -
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price (in millions):

Cash and cash equivalents ....................... P 3 224
Accounts receivable . .. ... .. ... e . AU e e 58
Inventory . . ... e e e 129 |
Oher CUITEN ASSEIS . . o . v v v e e et ee e et e it o n e iiaa e s re e ase s 0.5
Identifiable intangible assets: , } ' L o
Purchased technology . . .. .. ........... e P 124
Customer relationships. .. ............. e T P T
Trademark . .. ... 54
1817 (P R " 0.6
Propertyandequipmem.....:....................... ...... e 2.7
Goodwill . . o o e e b e 67.8
Deferred income tax benefits .. .......... e e e 0.6
Accounts payable. . .. ... ... s I a.mn
Accrued expenses and INCOME LAXES . . .. oo v ovvevevnennronn nns PR - (6.5)
Deferred income tax liabilities ... .......... L. [ U (19.1)
' 0.9

In-process research and development .. ... e e e

[

A substantial portion of OASIS’ net assets, including goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, are Jocated in
Europe, and the functional currency of QASIS’ operations in Europe is the euro. Accordingly, these euro-
denominated net assets are translated into U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates and gains or losses arising from
translation are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 141, OASIS'’ finished goods inventory was valued at estimated
selling prices less the costs of disposal and a reasonable profit allowance for the related selling effort;
work-in-process inventory was valued at estimated selling prices of the finished goods less costs to complete,
costs of disposal, and a reasonable profit allowance for the completing and selling efforts; and raw ‘materials were
valued at current replacement costs. These values initially exceeded OASIS’ historical inventory cost by approx-
imately $1.7 million. This value was included within the $12.9 million of fair value assigned to OASIS’ inventory at
March 30, 2005, and was recorded as a component of costs of goods sold as the underlying inventory was sold
between April 2005 and September 2005. '

The estimated fair value attributed to purchased technology was determined based upon a discounted forecast
of the estimated net future cash flows to be generated from the technologies, using a discount rate of 25%. The
estimated fair value of purchased technology is being amontized over a period of 8 years on a straight-line basis,
which approximates the pattern in which the economic benefits of the technology are expected to be realized.

; -

The estimated fair value attributed to customer relationships was determined based on a discounted forecast of
the estimated net future cash flows to be generated from the relationships, discounted at a rate of 23%. The
estimated fair value of the customer relationships is being amortized over a period of 8 years on a straight-line basis,
which approximates the pattern in which the economic benefits of the customer relationships are expected to be

realized.

OASIS owns certain trademarks related to its multimedia networking technology. The estimated fair value
attributed to these trademarks was determined by calculating the present value of the royalty savings related to the
trademarks using an assumed royalty rate of 1.5% and a discount rate of 23%. These trademarks have indefinite
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lives and are therefore not being amortized. They are subject to an impairment test on an annual basis, or when an
event or circumstance: occurs indicating a possible impairment in value.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the net tangible and intangible
assets dcquired. This acquisition significantly expanded SMSC’s sales of integrated circuits into automotive
infotainment markets, and provides opportunities for expanded revenues into other applications, including
consumer networking. It also added an assembled workforce of approximately 150 employees to SMSC’s
operations. These factors contributed to recognition of goodwill as a component of the purchase price. In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427), goodwill is not amortized
but tested for impairment ‘at least annually, or when an event or circumstance occurs indicating a possible
impairment in value.

The $0.9 million allocated to in-process research and development represented the fair value of purchased in-
process technology for research projects that, as of the March 30, 2005 closing date of the acquisition, had not
reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future uses. This value was based upon discounted cash
flows atiributable to the projects using a discount rate of 28%, the estimated time to complete the projects and the
levels of risks involved. These projects were primarily focused on deployment of certain technology into consumer
applications. The $0.9 million estimated fair value of in-process research and development is reflected within
operating expenses in the fiscal year ended February 28, 2006.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined operating results of SMSC
and OASIS as if the acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of the period presented. Pro forma data is subject to
various assumptions and estimnates, and is presented for informational purposes only. This pro forma data does not
purport to represent or be indicative of the consolidated operating results that would have been reported had the
transaction been completed as described herein, and the data should not be taken as indicative of future consolidated
operating results. Pro. forma financial information for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2006 s as follows (in
millions, except per share dara):

For the Fiscal Year Ended February 28, 2006

REVEMUES . . . Lot i e e e e e $323.3
Netincome ... ... e e e e 5115
Basic net income per share. .. ............. e e e e e $ 055
Diluted net income per share . .. ... .. . e e e e e $ 052

6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company’s March 2005 acquisition of OASIS included the purchase of $42.9 million of finite-lived
intangible assets, an indefinite-lived trademark of $5.4 million, and goodwill of $67.8 million. Some or portions of
these intangible assets are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, and these March 2005 values reflect
foreign exchange rates in effect on the date of the transaction. The Company’s June 2002 acquisition of Tucson,
Arizona-based Gain Technology Corporation included the acquisition of $7.1 million of finite-lived intangible
assets and $29.4 million of goodwill, after adjustments.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment in value
annually, as well as when an event or circumstance occurs indicating a possible impairment in value. The Company
performs an annual goodwill impairment review during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, and completed its
most recent annual review during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, during which no impairment in value was
identified.

All finite-lived intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the pattern in
which the estimated economic benefits of the assets are realized, over their estimated useful lives. Existing
technologies have been assigned estimated useful lives of between six and eight years, with a weighted-average
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useful life of approximately eight years. Customer relationships and contracts- have been assigned useful lives of
between one and ten years, with a weighted-average useful life of approximately eight years.

Intangible assets that are denominated in a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar have been translated
into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect on the reporting date. As of February 29, 2008 and February 28,
2007, the Company’s identifiable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2008 R - 2007

. Accumulated Accumulated -
As of February 29 and 28, . Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
' ' ) {in thousands) ’
Purchased technologies . . . ................. $41,175 $18.680  $38.846 $12,718
Customer relationships and contracts . . . ..... .. 12,396 4,588 10,988 ‘ 2,709
Other .. ..o 851 435 365 _—
Total — finite-lived intangible-assets . .. ... ... 54422 - 23,703 ' 50,199 . 15,427

Trademarks - ........ e e 6,211 . — . 5484 —
‘ ' $60,633  $23.703  $55,683  $15427

Total amortization expense recorded for finite-lived intangible assets was $6.7 million, $6.4 million and
$5.8 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. :

Estimated future finite-lived intangible asset’amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):
1 ' ] . | .

Period . . . Amount
Fiscal 2009 . . ... \rieennnns PR . .. $6173
Fiscal 2010 - ... ........ A A O D e il 85916
Fiscal 2001 oo\ttt e e e $5.916
Fiscal 2002 . .. it e e e e e $5,916
Fiscal 2013 and thereafter . . . ..o oot it it et ettt $6,382

62




STANDARD MICROSYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

7. OTHER BALANCE SHEET DATA ~ . .. R
As of February 29 and 28, ' 2008 " 2007
(iq thousands)
Inventories: .
Raw materials .. .. .. ... L D i e e e v vweie.. B L1400 ¢ $ 2,307
WOrk-IN-Process . .. .. ..von e i i el AP 25,045 - 20,861 .
Finished goods .. ... .. . i i e 32,700 27,705
‘ .o . $ 58,885 ; % 50,873
Property, plant and equipment: : : _ ‘
Land........ e e $ 578 §$. 578
Buildings and improvements . ... ... ... . .. 32,885 32,303
Machinery and equipment . ... .. ... ... Lo L i 119,587 104,281

Construction in PrOZIESS . . ... v vttt i vt et it et ae e — . —
| - 153,050 137,162

less: accumulated depreciation and amortization. . ............ [P 92,503 79,142
| $ 60547 $ 58,020

Accrqed expenses,. income taxes and other liabilities:

Compensation, incentives and benefits . ................. e ) 12,162 11,124
Stock appreciation ights . ... .. ... .. .. . e 4,507 6,125
Supplier financing — current POrtion . . .. . ... oo e et 2,780 2,431
Product rebates payable. . ......... ... ... oo _ 363 7,352
Income taxes. ....... o T, e 1,433 2,613
Foreign exchange contracts payable ............................... 1,369 —
0 = SO ... 6387 6,733

$ 29,001 $ 36,378

Other liabilities: .
Retirement benefits . . . . ... ..o, e $§ 7670 % 7977

INCOmME taXES . . . i e e e e 4313 5,200
Supplier financing — long-term portion . . . ......................... 3.897 3,508
OUREE .« v vttt e e e : 112+ 165

$ 15992 % 16,850

8. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock Repurchase Program

In October 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a common stock repurchase program, allowing
the Company to repurchase up to one:million shares of its common stock on the open market or in private
transactions. In July 2000, the authorization was expanded from one million shares to two million shares. In July
2002 the authorization was expanded from two miilion shares to three million shares: and in November 2007 the
authorization was expanded from three million shares to four million shares.

As of February 29, 2008, the Company has repurchased approximately 3.4 million shares of its common stock
at a cost of $72.7 million under this program, including 1,165,911 shares repurchased at a cost of $40.6 million in
fiscal 2008, 253,300 shares repurchased at a cost of $6.1 million in fiscal 2007 and 150,200 shares repurchascd ata
cost of $2.2 million in fiscal 2006. . o
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Subsequent to year-end and through and including April 18, 2008, the Company repurchased an additional
199,145 shares at an aggregate cost of $5.8 miilion.

9. OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, NET

The componerits of the Company’s other (expense) income, net for the fiscal years ended February 29, 2008
and February 28, 2007 and 2006, were as follows (in thousands):

2008 12007 2006
Realized and unrealized foreign currency transaction gains (losses). ... .. $(1,945) $322 3631
Gain on sale of EPCO bankruptey claim . ....... .. ..ot 316 — —
Gains (losses) on disposal of property ....... ... .. ... .. oo 18 151 €}
Other miscellaneous INCOME . ... .o oo ittt iii e e e e 117 88 10

$(1,494) $561 ~ $634

10. INCOME TAXES

Income before income taxes consists of (in thousands):

2008 2007 2006
Income from domestic OPErations. . .. ..........ovvennnnnann $43.621  $26,313  $10,463
Income {loss) from foreign operations . .............. .. ..., (283) 8,964 6,079

$43,338  $35,277  $16,542

The provision for income taxes included in the accompanying consolidated Income Statements consists of the
following (in thousands): '

For The Years Ended February 29 and 28, 2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal ... .... e e e e e et e e s $13,171  $4346  § 7,067

20 3T A T 282 3408 5,358

Lo 77 205 260 172
13,658 8,014 12,597

Deferred. . ... ..o e e e e (3,226) 248 (8,085)

$10,432 $8,262 § 4,512

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which was adopted by the Company as of
March 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s
financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). FIN 48
requires that all tax positions be evaluated using a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to-be taken in a tax return. Differences
between tax positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements are recorded as
adjustments to income taxes payable or receivable, or adjustments to deferred taxes, or both. :

‘The Company adopted FIN 48 effective March 1, 2007 (beginning of fiscal 2008), and also included
$1.5 million of previously unrecognized tax benefits which was accounted for as an increase to the opening
balance of retained earnings. At adoption the company’s total unrecognized tax benefits was stated at $3.3 million
which included $0.6 million of interest. g
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The Company continues to accrue interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits in income
tax expense in its Consolidated Income Statements. The expense for interest and penalties reflected in the

Consolidated Income Statements for the year ended February 29, 2008 was approximately $0.3 million. The total
accrued interest and penalties reflected as of March 1, 2007 and February 29, 2008 are $0.9 million.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at March 1, 2007 (upon adoption) .. ............................. S .$2’757
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year. .. ......... ... .......... 1,329
Additions for tax positions of prior years ......... ... ... .o oL 484
Reductions for tax positions of prior years ... ......... ... ... ... ... ... . R —
Reductions for tax positions due to lapse of statutes of limitations. . .. ................ . (162)
Settlements . . . e [ ' -
Balance at February 29,2008 .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... . $3,808

As of March 1, 2007 the unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties, that would affect the
effective tax rate if recognized would have been $2.7 million; and at February 29, 2008 the amount would be
$2.5 million.

The company’s primary tax jurisdiction is the United States. Tax returns open for examination are for FY 2005
and subsequent years. It is reasonably expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next
12 months, but we do not expect that change to have a significant impact on our financial position or results of
operations. : Y : . ' .

The tax rate for the second quarter of 2007 was reduced by a change in German tax law that was enacted in
August and included a reduction in the German income tax rate. As a result of the change, the Company adjusted the
value of its deferred tax assets in Germany and recorded a benefit to the Tax Provision in the amount of $2.2 million.

The items accounting for the difference between the provision for (benefit from) income taxes computed at the
U.S. federal siatutory rate and the Company’s provision for (benefit from) income taxes are ‘as follows (in
thousands):

*

For The Years Ended’ February 29 and 28, . 2008 2007 2006
Provision for income taxes computed at U.S. federal stawtory tax ’ T "
O ... §$15,168 $12,347 . $ 5,780
State taxes, net of federal benefit ................... ... S 133 169 159
Differences between foreign and U.S. income tax rates ........... (1,989) . 743 988
Tax-exempt incomf; ............................ e 2,271y (1,485 © (892)
Tax benefit from export deductions. . .. ................. e (499) (741) 31
"Adjustments to prior years’ taxes P e (1,405 (25%) .93
Tax credits. . . . . .. PR R (1,605) .(2,326), (1,725)
Equity-based compensation. . ... ... ... ... o i . 185 (447) —
Nondeductible executive compensation . ., .. ... L s S | . 728 844 ' —
Net operating loss utilized . . . o e U e - (706) -
Unrecognized tax benefits and related interest. .. .. ..... et (LOT) - — —

Other. ... .. e e D e P, 251 113 78
' ' ' $10432° $ 8262 $4512
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The
components of the Company’s deferred income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

As of February 29 and 28, : : 2008 2007
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible for income tax purposes . . . .. $24974  $ 22,010
Inventory valiation. . . . ..uv vt o 1,620 3,061
Intangible asset amortization. .. ... .. ... .. .. i i i e (11,582) '(114,7'88)
ReSIIUCIUTING COSS . . v v v et c e i i a e [, 1,865 1,908
Purchased in-process technology . . .. ... ... i e 455 576
Property, plant and equipment depreciation ... ........ .. ..o (1,225) 250
Research & development tax credit carryforwards ..................... 3,713 4,366
Other, Met. . . o e e e 1,108 823
v D S 20928 18,206
Less valuation allowance . ... ... ... ...ttt (2,045) {1,900)
Net deferred tax assets . ..... e e e e e $18,883 § 16,306

The Company has net New York State tax credit carryforwards in fiscal 2008 and 2007 of $1.4 million and
$1.7 million and valuation allowances of $0.3 million and $0.7 million respectively. The credit carryforwards expire
at various dates from fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2023. The company also has various net state tax credit
carryforwards in fiscal 2008 of $2.4 million with a valuation allowance of $1.8 million. These credit carryforwards
expire at various dates from fiscal 2021 through fiscal 2023 and certain credits can be utilized without limitation.

As of February 29, 2008 income considered to be permanently reinvested in certain foreign subsidiaries total
approximately $3.2 million. Deferred income taxes have not been provided on this income, as we do not plan to
initiate any action that would require the payment of income taxes. The Company currently intends to reinvest these
earnings in operations outside the U S.

11. TECHNOLOGY AND PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENTS WITH INTEL CORPORATION

In 1987, the Company and Intel Corporation (“Intel”) entered into an agreement providing for, among other
things, a broad, worldwide, non-exclusive patent cross-license, covering manufacturing processes and products,
thereby providing each company access to the other’s current and future patent portfolios.

In September 2003, the Company and Intel announced that they had enhanced their intellectual property and
business relationship. The companies agreed to collaborate on certain future Input/Output (1/0) and sensor
products, and Intel agreed to use the Company’s devices on certain current and future generations of Intel
products. In addition, the Company agreed to limit its rights, under its 1987 patent cross-license with Intel, to
manufacture and sell Northbridge products and Intel Architecture Microprocessors on behalf of third parties. The
companies also terminated an Investor Rights Agreement between them, which had been entered into in connection
with Intel’s 1997 acquisition of 1,543,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Under this agreement, Intel had
certain information, corporate govemance and other rights with respect to the activities of the Company.

In respect to this relauonshlp, Intel agreed to pay to the Company an aggregate amoum of $75 mllllon of which
$20.0 million and $2.5 million was received and recognized as intellectual property revenue, and pa1d in the third
and fourth quarters of fiscal 2004, respectively, $2.5 million was received and recognized as intellectual property
revenue, and paid, in each quarter of fiscal 2005 and in each of the first three quarters of fiscal 2006, and $2.8 million
was received and recognized as intellectual property revenue, and paid, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. In fiscal
2007, $2.8 million was received and recognized as intellectual property revenue, and paid, in each of the first three
quarters of fiscal 2007, and $3.0 million was received and recognized as intellectual property revenue, and paid, in
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the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, $3.0 million was received and recognized as intellectual property
revenue in each fiscal quarter. The remaining $9.0 million due under this agreement is receivable in equal
$3.0 million installments due in the first, second and third quarters of fiscal 2009. Such amounts are subject to
possible reduction, in a manner and to an extent 1o be agreed by the parties, based upon the companies’
collaboration and sales, facilitated by Intel, of certain future new products of the Company.

12. BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING

In November 2001, the Company exited the PC chipset business. This reorganization was implemented to
redirect the Company’s resources towards higher growth, higher margin businesses. All obligations under this
restructuring were satisfied and reconciled in periods prior to fiscal 2006, with the exception of long-term non-
cancelable lease obligations, which are being paid over their respective terms, through August 2008.

Thé following table provides a summary of the Company’s reserve for this restructuring for the three years
ended February 29, 2008 (in thousands):

. . Non-Cancelable

Lease
. Obligations

Business restruclurlng reserve at February 28,2005, .. ....... ... ... ... .. ... $ 527
Cashpayments. . ). ... ... ... . ... . .. e _(204)
Busmess restructuring reserve at February 28,2006. .. ....................... _ 323
Cash PAYMEDLS . . . ... ] ' ﬂ)
Business restructuring reserve at February 28,2007........ P T _ 194
Cash payments, ... ... .. . i e e e e _(122)
Business restructuring reserve at February 29, 2008 . . . . . e /)

13. .BENEFIT AND INCENTIVE PLANS (INCLUDING SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS)

Employee and Director Stock Option Plans
T

Under the Company's various stock option plans, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is
authorized to grant options to purchase shares of common stock. The purpose of these ptans is to promote the
interests of the Company and its shareholders by providing officers, directors and key employees with additional
incentives and the opportunity, through stock ownership, to better align their interests with the Company’s and
enhance their personal interest in its continued success. Options under inducement plans may only be offered to new
employees. Options are granted at prices not less than the fair market value on the date of grant. As of February 29,
2008, 519,000 shares of common stock were available for future grants of stock options, of which 430,000 shares
can also be issued as restricted stock awards. The grant date fair values of stock optioris are recorded as
compensation expense ratably over the vesting period of each award. Option awards generally. vest over four
or five-year periods, and expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

Compensation expense recognized for stock options was $7.9 million in fiscal 2008 and $8.9 million in fiscal
2007. Prior to fiscal 2007, the Company accounted for stock option grants in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board (“APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25"} and accordingly recognized
no compensation expense for the stock option grants.
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Stock optlon plan activity is summarized below (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted Weighted

. Average Average Average

Fiscal Exercise Fiscal Exercise Fiscal Exercise
2008 Price 2007 Price 2006 Price

Shares per Share Shares per Share Shares per Share
Options outstanding, beginning of year. . 4,302  $20.81 5,086  $19.32 4,352  $17.26

Granted. . . . ... it i i 309 $33.24 569  $26.50 2,163 %21.03
Exercised . ....oo vt iii it (1,007) $18.29 (883) $l1645 (1,226) $14.88
Canceled, forfeited or expired . ... ... . (191) $22.52 (470) $19.80 (203) $20.26
Options outstanding, end of year . .. ... 3413 $2258 4302 $20.81 - 5,086 $19.32
Options exercisable, end of year ...... 1,54i $20.10 1,752 %1842 1,670 $16.61

The following table summarizes information relating to currently outstanding and exercisable options as of
February 29, 2008 (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Remaining Options Exercise Options Exercise

Range of Egercise Prices Lives QOutstanding Prices Exercisable Prices
$ 6.75-%17.62 5.6 - 1,236 $15.92 608 $14.85
$17.69 - $22.35 5.1 737 $20.74 580 $20.68
$22.38 - $29.70 7.7 798 $26.74 241 $26.57
$30.12 - $35.61 8.5 612 $32.16 113 $31.49
$36.13 - $36.13 9.7 , 30 $36.13 — —
6.5 3413 $22.58 1,542 $20.10

As of February 29, 2008, the weighted average remaining contractual life of stock options outstanding was
6.5 years and the aggregate intrinsic value was $22.5 million. As of February 29, 2008, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of stock options exercisable was 5.0 years and their aggregate intrinsic value was
$13.1 million. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based
on the Company’s closing stock price of $28.35 at February 29, 2008, which would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value was $15.56 per share for options granfed during the twelve months
ended February 29, 2008, $13.84 for options granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and
$11.69 for options granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $17.1 million for the twelve months ended February 29,
2008, $10.7 million for options exercised during the twelve' months ended February 28, 2007, and $21. 6 million for
options exerc1sed during the twelve momhs ended February 28, 2006.

Total fair value of optlons vested was $9.5 mllllon for the twelve months ended February 29, 2008, $8.5 million
for the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and $17.4 million for the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.

The total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to SMSC'’s employee and director stock option
plans is $20.1 million as February 29, 2008. The weighted average ‘period over which the cost is expected to be
recogmzed is 1.51 years.

The Company recognizes compensation expense for options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
‘The Black-Scholes model requires certain assumptions, judgments and estimates by the Company to determine fair
value, including expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate, and expected life. The Company based the
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expected volatility on historical volatility. Additionally, the Company based the expected life of options granted on
an actuarial model. There were no dividends expected to be paid on the Company’s common stock over the expected
lives estimated.

The weighted average fair values per share of stock options granted in connection with the Company’s stock
incentive plans have been estimated utilizing the following assumptions:

Twelve Months ° ‘Twelve Months

Ended Ended
© February 29, ~  February 28,

_ ' 2008 ) 2007
Dividend yield . . ....... .. ... ... o i il e T — —
Expected volatility . .. ................ b e 52% T 59%
Risk-free interest Tates .. ... ..o vvevrnennennenn. P 2.55%-4.59% 4.59%-5.06% -
Expectedlives(ilnyears).........................' ......... 4.46 442

Restricted Stock A;vqrds

The Company provides common stock awards to certain officers and key employees. The C(;mpany grants
these awards, at its discretion, from the shares available under its 2001 and 2003 Stock Option and Restricted Stock
Plans and its 2005 Inducement Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan. The shares awarded are typically earned in
25%, 25% and 50% increments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the award, respectively, and are
distributed provided the employee has remained employed by the Company through such anniversary dates;
otherwise the unearned shares are forfeited. The grant date fair value of these shares at the date of award is recorded
as compensation expense ratably as vested over the three-year periods from the respective award dates, as adjusted
for forfeitures of unvested awards. Compensation expense for these awards was $2.3 million, $1.8 million and
$1.6 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Restricted stock activity for the twelve months ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 is set forth
below (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Fiscal 2008 Grant-Date Fiscal 2007 Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Restricted stock shares outstanding, beginning of . )

VEAL o ettt e e 231 $22.71 255 $20.65
Granted ...... ... ... ... . i, . 83 $35.25 91 $25.63
Canceled orexpired ...................... 9 $26.83 (22) $23.87
Vested .. .. ... (95) $22.68 93) ) $19.64
Restricted stock shares outstanding, end of year. . glg $27.52 231 $22.71

The weighted-average grant-date fair value was $35.25 per share for RSAs granted during the twelve months
ended February 29, 2008, $20.42 for RSAs granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and $20.33
for RSAs granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.

The total pretax intrinsic value of restricted stock shares vested was $3.2 million for the twelve months ended
February 29, 2008, $2.6 million for restricted stock shares vested during the twelve months ended February 28,
2007, and $1.5 million for restricted stock shares vested during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.

The total fair value of restricted stock shares vested was $2.2 million for the twelve months ended February 29,
2008, $1.8 million for restricted stock shares vested during the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and
$1.0 million for restricted stock shares vested during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.
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Based on the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock of $28.35 on February 29, 2008, the total
pretax intrinsic value of all outstanding restricted stock shares was $6.0 million. \

The total unrecognized compensation cost related to SMSC'’s restricted stock plans is $4.3 million as of
February 29, 2008. The weighted average period over which the cost is expected to be recognized is 1.52 years,

Stock Appreciation Rights Plan

In September 2004 and September 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved Stock Appreciation
Rights (SAR) Plans {the “Plans™), the purpose of which is to attract, retain, reward and motivate employees and
consultants to promote the Company’s best interests and to share in its future success. The Plans authorize the
Board’s Compensation Committee to grant up to four million SAR awards to eligible officers, employees and
consultants, Each award, when granted, provides the participant with the right to receive payment in cash, upon
exercise, for the appreciation in market value of a share of SMSC common stock over the award’s exercise price. On
July 11, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 2006 Director Stock Appreciation Rights Plan. The
Company can grant up to 200,000 Director SARs under this plan. On April 9, 2008, the Board of Directors
authorized an increase in the number of SARs issuable pursuant to this plan from 200,000 to 400,000. The exercise
price of a SAR is equal to the closing market price of SMSC stock on the date of grant. SAR awards generally vest
over four or five-year periods, and expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

The Company recognizes compensation expense for SARs using a graded vesting methodology, adjusting for
changes in fair value from period to period. Compensation expense also includes adjustments for any exercises of
SARs to record any differences between total cash paid at settlement and previously recognized compensation
expenses. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recognized compensation expense for SARs based on
the excess of the award’s market value over its exercise price over the term of the award. The Company recognized
$5.0 million of compensation expense from these awards during fiscal 2008, $2.0 million of benefit for these awards
during fiscal 2007, and $13.0 million of compensation expense for these awards during fiscal 2006.

Activity under the Stock Appreciation Rights Plan is summarized below (shares in thousands):

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Fiscal 2008 Prices Fiscal 2007 Prices Fiscal 2006 Prices
SARs per Share SARs per Share SARs per Share

SARs outstanding, beginning of year... 2,775  $25.54 1,544 $1878 1459 $17.10
Granted .......... .. ... 382 . $35.04 1,563 $30.73 249  $27.51
Exercised.......... ..o, (359) $19.10 (227 $17.16 (111)  $17.10
Canceled orexpired ... ............ (87) $27.74 (105) 32145 (53) $17.18
SARs outstanding, end of year ....... 2,711 $27.66 2775 $25.54 1,544  $18.78
SARs exercisable, end of year. . . ..... 672  $2498 315  $19.40 203 $18.28

As of February 29, 2008, the weighted average remaining contractual life of SARs outstanding was 8.1 years
and their aggregate intrinsic value was $8.7 million. As of February 29, 2008, the weighted average remaining
contractual life of SARs exercisable was 7.5 years and their aggregate intrinsic value was $3.2 million. The
aggregate intrinsic value of SARs exercisable represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the Company’s
closing stock price of $28.35 at February 29, 2008, which would have been received by all SARs holders had they
exercised their SARs as of that date.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value was $10.12 per share for SARs granted during the twelve months
ended February 29, 2008, $13.73 for SARs granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and $14.39
for SARs granted during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006,
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Total fair value of SARs vested was $5.1 million for the twelve months ended February 29, 2008, $5.1 million
for the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and $2.7 million for the twelve months ended February 28, 2006.

Total cash paid in connection with SARs was $6.6 million for the twelve months ended February 29, 2008,
$3.4 million during the twelve months ended February 28, 2007, and $1.5 million during the twelve months ended
February 28, 2006.

The total unrecognized compensation cost related to SMSC'’s stock appreciation rights plan'is $10.7 million as
of February 29, 2008. The weighted average period over which the cost is expected to be recognized is 1.71 years.

The Company recognizes compensation expense for SARs using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
Black-Scholes model requires certain assumptions, judgments and estimates by the Company to determine fair
value, including expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate, and expected life. The Company based the
expected volatility on historical volatility. Additionally, the Company based the expected life of SARs granted on an
actuarial model. There were no dividends expected to be paid on the Company’s common stock over the expected
lives estimated.

The weighted average fair values per share of stock appreciation rights granted in connection with the
Company’s SAR incentive plans have been estimated utilizing the following assumptions:

Twelve Months Twelve Months Twelve Months

Ended Ended Ended
February 29, February 28, February 28,
2008 2007 ] 2006
Dividcndyield.........._ ................ — — —
Expected volatility . ............... ... cee 52% 59% 58%
Risk-free interest rates . . . e 1.97%-487% 4.68% -4.97% 4.68% .

Expected lives (inyears). . ................. 1.04 - 4,44 2.01 -4.54 4.6

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Effective March 1, 2006 the Company adopted SFAS 123R, which requires all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, restricted stock units and employee stock purchase rights,
to be recognized in the financial statements based on their respective grant date fair values (in the case of SARs,
current fair values) and does not allow the previously permitted pro forma disclosure-only method as an alternative
to financial statement recognition.
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The following table summarizes the stock-based compensation expense for stock options, restricted stock
awards and stock appreciation rights included in our income from operations (in thousands):

Fiscal
_ _ . 2008 2007

Costs of goods SO0 . . .. ..\ttt $ (1,444)  $ (506)
Research and development . . . .. ... ... .. ... . i (6,682) (3,916)
Selling, general and administrative . . ... ......... ... ..., .. e A (7.021) (4,304)
Stock-based compensation under SFAS 123R, before income tax benefit . . . .. (15,147) - (8,726)
Tax benefit . ... .. e L. e e e e e e 5453 ¢ 3,141 '
Stock-based compensation under SFAS 123R, after income tax benefit . . . . .. $ (9.694) $(5,585)
Effect of SFAS 123R — Basic loss per share .. ... .. e e $ (0.42) $ (0.25
Effect of SFAS 123R — Diluted loss pershare. . ...................... $ 04 $ (0.249)
Weighted average common shares outstanding: ., N

BasiC. ... ..o e P 22,897 22,097
Diluted .............. e e e 23,623 23,259

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Company maintains an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) to provide senior
management with retirement, disability and death benefits. The SERP’s retirement benefits are based upon the
participant's average compensation during the three-year period prior to retirement.

The following tables summarize changes in the SERP’s benefit obligation, the SERP’s plan assets and the
SERP’s components of net periodic benefit costs, including key assumptions. The measurement dates for the
SERP’s plan assets and obligations were February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 (dellars in thousands}).

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, ‘ , 2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation: ,

Beginning of year. . .. .. .. .. e PR $7083 %6463
Service cost — benefits carned during the year ... .............. ... e 474 245
INEErest COSt. . .ottt i e e e 395 353
Benefit payments . . . .. ... ... (507) {294)
Actuarial (gain) JOSS. . ... L i e e (716) 316
End of year .. ... . e $6729 $7,083
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .......................... 5§ — 5 —
Employer contribution . . ... ... ..t e e e 507 204
Benefits paid . . . .. ... .. e (507) (294)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year . ... ... ... ..., $ — & —

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position:

Current Habilities . . ... ... e $ (635) $ (507)
Non-current Habilitles. . . . ..ottt e e et e e e {6,094) (06,576)
Pension liability atend of year . . .. ... .. ... . . $(6,729) $(7,083)
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- For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28,

Components of net periodic benefit costs:
Service cost — benefits earned during the year .
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations
Amortization of net obligation
Recognized net actuarial loss

Net periodic pension expense

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Transition obligation

Net loss

Total amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive (income)

closs L el

2008 T2007 0 2006
.................... $ 474 3245 §114
.................... 395 - 353 373
.................... 245 245 245
.................... $1,114 $843  §$732
.................... $ 245 5490
.................... (592) 124
.................... $(347) $614

The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for the plan at February 29, 2008 and

February 28, 2007 was as follows; "

As of February 29 and 28,

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

As of February 29 and 28,

2008 2007
......................... $6,729  $7,083
......................... $5,642  $6,037
008 2007 2006

Assumptions used in determining actuarial present value of benefit

obligations:
Discount rate

Weighted average rate of compensation increase

6.74% 5.79%
5.00% 5.00%

5.55%
4.00%

Assumptions used to calculate periodic pension cost:

Discount rate

Weighted average rate of compensation increase

5.79% 5.55%
5.00% 4.00%

5.59%
4.00%

The discount rate used in the Plan’s measurement is based upon the yield curve spot rate published for the

Citigroup pension index as of the measurement date.

increased in fiscal 2008 to better reflect management’

The weighted average rate of compensation increase was
s current expectations of future compensation trends.

Although the Plan is unfunded, the Company is the beneficiary of life insurance policies that have been
purchased as a method of partially financing benefits. The cash surrender value of these policies was approximately
$1.6 million and $1.5 million at February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 respectively.’

Annual benefit payments under this plan are expected to be approximately $0.6 million, $0.6 million,

$0.5 ‘million and $0.5 million in fiscal 2009 through

fiscal 2012, respectively, and approximately $2.7 million

cumulatively in fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2017. The Company expects contributions for.the Plan (consisting of
benefits paid) in fiscal 2009 to be approximately $0.6 million,
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost, before taxes, were as follows (in thousands):

. o208 2007
Transition obligation. . . ... ... .. .. i i i $245  $490
Netloss ............... ... ...... e e e (592y 124
PriOr SEIVICE COSL . . . .ottt e i e =
U] - Y [ OO - $(347) 3614

The estimated portion of transition obligations of the plan to be amortized during the next fiscal year is $245
thousand. :

Retirement Plan — SMSC Japan .

One of the Company’s subsidiaries, SMSC Japan, also maintains an unfunded retirement plan, which provides
its employees and directors with separation benefits, consistent with customary practices in Japan. Benefits under
this defined benefit plan are based upon length of service and compensation factors.

The following tables summarize changes in the plan’s benefit obligation, the plan assets and components of net
periodic benefit costs, including key assumptions. The measurement dates for the plan assets and obligations were
February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 {dollars in thousands):

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, . 2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation: '
Beginming of Year. . .. . ... oo $1,488 31,149
Service cost — benefits earned during the year ... ..... ... ... ... ...... .. 275 210
TREETESE COSE. o v v vttt e e e e e e e e e et et et e e e 27 19
Amendments/settlements/curtailments . .. ... ....... ... . o (211) —_
Benefitpayments . ... e (26) I(130)
01T P e 195 240
End of year ... ... e $1,748 51488
Change in plan assets:
.Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . ............... ... ... ... $8 — $ —
Employer contribution . . .. ..:........ e i e - 26 - 130
Benefits paid . . v vttt e (26) (130)
“ Fair value of plan assets at end of year . . .. ........... e $ 0 3 0

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position: . ' . .

Current liabilities . . . . .. I $ (260) $ @D
Non-current Habilities. . . ... ... oo i e e (1,488) (1,401)
Pension liability atend of year . .. ......... ... vt S © $(1,748)  $(1,488)
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For the Fiscal Yéalls Ended February 29 and 28, ' - 2008 2007 2006
Components of net periodic benefit costs: .
Service cost — benefits earned during the year. . . ... ... ... ..l $275 $210 %212
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations . ........ ... ... .. .., 27 19 17
Net amortization and deferral ... ... ... .. .. i i 20 15 L4
Net periodic penelon EXPENSE. o« o v vaneanns P $322 5244 5243
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive Ioss '
Transition obligation . .. ... .. ...t e $§ 1 %13

Net loss ..... e e e e e, . 9 66

PLIOr SEMVICE COSL . o vt v vt e e et e e e m s cmm et aa e s — 5

‘Total amount recognizcd in accumulated other comprehensive loss . .. ... .. $10 3184

The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for the plan at February 29, 2008 and
February 28, 2007 was as follows:

As of February 29 and 28, ' 2008 2007
Projected benefit obligation. .. ... .. ... .. i $1,748  $1.488
Accumulated benefit obligation. . ... ... ... . . i i $1,687 $1,211
As of February 29 and 28, - 2008 2007 2006
Assumptions used in determmmg actuarlal present value of benefit

obligations:" : !
DISCOUNE TG « . o vttt ittt vt e e e e e it e s e e e e 1.75% 1.75% 1.15%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase . . ......... ... ... ... 3.00% 3.00% 2.00%
Assumptions used to calculate periodic pension cost: ) '
DIiSCOMnt rate . . ..o oo oot e e e e 175% 175% 1.75%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase . ... ................ ... 2.00% 200% 2.00% .

The discount rate used in the Plan’s measurement is based upon an average of hlgh-quahty long-term
investment yields in Japan. The weighted average rate of compensanon increase was mcreased for fiscal 2008 to
better reflect management’s current expectations of future compensation trends.

There are no benefit payments expected to be made by the plan in fiscal 2009. However, the plan as it pertains
to non-director employees will be transitioned to a defined contribution plan over the next four years, and SMSC
Japan intends on funding $1.0 million of the accrued pension cost over the next four years and transferring such
amounts ‘to the non-director employees defined ‘contribution plan. Accrued benefits relating to non-director
employees were fixed in amou:u as of February 29, 2008 and shall not be increased.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost, before taxes, were as follows:

008 2007
Transition obligation . .. .. ... .. e $1 3113
EA =L 1 - 9 66
o B0 ST 1 T =B o -1 G - 3

' ' | $184

|

Total .o o e S . $10
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The estimated portion of met losses and transition obligations of the plan to be amortized during the next fiscal
year is insignificant.

14, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries lease certain facilities and equipment under operating ieases. The facility
leases generally provide for the lessee to pay taxes, maintenance, and certain other operating costs of the leased

property.

At February 29, 2008, future minimum lease payments for non-cancelable lease obligations are as follows (in
thousands):

Minimum

Lease

» . Payments

2010.......... e e e ettt 3,054
2000 L e . 2,461
1. 0 1 3 2,394
2013 and thereafter . . . . .. .. . e P 9,599
Total minimum lease payments . ... ... ..ot $20,933

For all operating leases, the total rent expense was $3.6 mllllon $3 1 mllhon and $3.5 million in fiscal 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Open Purchase Orders

As of February 29, 2008, the Company had approximately $11.0 million in obligations under open purchase
orders. Open purchase orders represent agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally
binding and that specify all significant terms, including quantities to be purchased, pricing provisions and the
approximate timing of the transactions. These obligations primarily relate to future purchases of wafers from
foundries, assembly and testing services and manufactunng and de51gn equipment.

Supplier Financing

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the:Company acquired $4.1 million and $6.9 million, respectively, of software
and other tools used in product design, for which the suppliers provided payment terms through fiscal 2010.

At February 29, 2008, future supplier‘ financing obligations are as follows (in thousands):

2000 . . e e e e e e $2,779
2000 . e e e e 2,511
0 1,386
Total supplier financing obligations . . ... ... .. ... . .. ... e $6,676

The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include the current portion of these obligations within Accrued
expenses, income taxes and other liabilities, and the long-term portion within Other liabilities.
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United States Customs Liability Payment ‘ - ‘ '

On July 6, 2006 SMSC made a prior disclosure to the United States Commissioner of Customs (“Customs”)
pursuant to 19 C.ER. § 162.74 related to SMSC’s learning that in certain cases it has not declared the full value or
costs of assists provided by SMSC to its foreign suppliers. SMSC conducted a comiprehensive review of its customs
entries over the past five years and determined the amount of the additional fees. SMSC filed with Customs ‘on
October 4, 20006 an updated disclosure, and tendered to Customs approximately $0.4 million which relates to prior
periods.

Litigation

From time to time as a normal incidence of doing business, various claims and litigation may be asserted or
commenced against the Company. Due to uncertainties inherent in litigation and other claims, the Company can
give no assurance that it will prevail in any such matters, which could subject the Company to significant liability
for damages and/or invalidate its proprietary rights. Any lawsuits, regardless of their success, would likely be time-
consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert management’s time and attention, and an adverse outcome of
any significant maiter could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or
cash flows in the quarter or annual period in which one or more of these matters are resolved.

Oni July 3, 2007, OPTi, Inc. (“OPTi") filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District
of Texas against the Company, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., Atmel Corporation, Broadcom Corporation, Renesas
Technology America, Inc., Silicon Storage Technotogy, Inc., STMicroelectronics, Inc., and Via Technology, Inc.
OPTi's Complaint alleges that the Company’s Low Pin Count products infringe two patents and seeks unspecified
damages (including treble damages for willful infringement), attorneys fees and injunctive relief. On September 5,
2007, the Company answered the Complaint, denying OPTi’s allegations and asserting counterclaims for declar-
atory judgments of invalidity, unenforceability and noninfringement of the two patents-in-suit. The Court has set a
claim construction hearing for July 30, 2009, and a trial to begin on November 2. 2009. The Company intends to
vigorously defend against the atlegations of OPTi’s Complaint. . ,

15. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES

- The Company acquired $4.1 million, $6.9 million and $0.2 million of design tools in fiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, through long-term financing provided by suppliers. The Company made cash payments for
federal, state and foreign income taxes payable of $7.9 million; $10.7 million and $2.9 mllllon in ﬁscal 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectwely . ' S

L]

16. INDUSTRY SEGMENT, GEOGRAIPHI('I, CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER INFORMATION |

Industry Segment

As a consequence of the Company’s focus on developing products that can address multiple end markets and
market demand for products that contain more than one element of SMSC’s technology solutions, and the impact
{that these trends have had on the management of the Company’s business and internal reporting, since the quarter
ending November 30, 2005 the Company has concluded that it operates and reports as a single busmess segment —
the design, development, and marketing of semiconductor integrated circuits. This change had no impact on the
Company’s disclosure because it previously aggregated the results of operating segments into’ one reportable
segment under the aggregation criteria set forth in SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of anaEnlerpr:se
and Related Information”. : -
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Sales and Revenues by Geographic Region

The Company s sales by country are based upon the geographic tocation of the customers who purchase the
Company ] products For product sales to electronic component distributors, their countries may be different from
those of the end customers, The information below summarizes sales and revenues to unaffiliated customers by
country (in thousands):

For the Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28 2008 2007 2006

Taiwan. .. ... .. $103,661 $132,972 $149.153
China. ... ... 94,200 52,136 14,423
Japan. . ... ... .. 52,132 70,720 54,293
United States . . .......... .. i 34,531 34,937 37,390
Germany ... ..o e e e 35,650 46,717 35,124
Other....... ... .. i i e 57,675 33,112 28,735

$377,849  $370.594  $319,118

Significant Customers

From period to period, severai key customers can account for a significant portion of the Company’s sales and
revenues. Sales and revenues from significant customers for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, stated as percentages of
total sales and revenues, are surmmarized as follows:

For Fiscal Years Ended February 29 and 28, : ) 2008 2007 2006
Yosui Industrial & Sertek ........... P 24%  ** **
Yosun In'dustr‘ial ........ e e e e e e e ** * 10%
Semtek . .. e e e e ** * 15% -
Tech-Com Computer ... ...... .. ...t e 1% * *
Wintech ... ... ... .. e e e * * 1%

* Less than 10%
** Not applicable

The Company’s contracting sales counterparty may vary as a result of the manner in which it goes to market,
the structure of the semiconductor market, industry consolidation and customer preferences. In many cases the
Company’s products will be designed into an end product by an OEM customer who will then contract to have the
product manufactured by an ODM. In such cases, the Company will sell its products directly to the selected ODM,
who becomes the Company’s contracting counterparty for the sale, In other cases, the OEM or ODM may design the
product and be the contracting counterparty. In some cases the Company or the ODM may wish to have a distribuior
as the direct sales counterparty. As a result of changing relationships and shifting market practices and preferences,
the mix of customers can change from peried to period and over time,

Two customers accounted for more than 10% of total sales each, and jointly a combined 35% of total sales and
revenues for fiscal 2008. In addition to the above factors, this was partly a result of the acquisition of one large
distributor (Sertek) by another large distributor (Yosun) in March 2007.

All of the customers lilsted in the table above are distributors of SMSC products in Asia and in turn resell the
Company’s products to many different end users.

. The Company continues to expect that a small number of larger customers will continue to account for a
significant portion of its sales and revenues in fiscal 2009 and for the foreseeable future. The Company does not
believe that the change in identity of the customers from 2006-2008 represents a fundamental change in its business,
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rather the change in top customers, in part, is due to the shifting nature of OEM preferences for where they have their
product designs manufactured, industry consolidation or ODM customers changmg the dlstnbutor from whom they
purchase the' Company’s products.

Long-Lived Assets by Geographic Region

The Company’s long-lived assets include net property and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets,
deferréd income ‘taxes ‘and various long-lived financial instruments. Net property, plant and equipment by
geographic area consists of the fol]owmg (in thousands):

As of February 29 and 28, C T 008 2007

United States, . .. ...... R S 59,420 56,854
GEIMANY . . . . v 984, 693
Japan and Other Asia Pacific. .. .. .. P R e, 143 473

. .$60,547 . $58,020

Significant Suppliers

The Company does not operate a wafer fabrication facility. Four independent semiconductor wafer foundries
in Asia and Europe currently supply substantially ail of the. Company’s devices in current production. In addition,
substannall) all of the Company’s products are assembled by. five 1ndcpcndcnt subcontractors in Asia and Europe.

‘

17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS g . - !

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Compziny puu::hased $2.4 miltion, $4.1 million dnd $0.7 million of test
equipment, services and supplies in the ordinary course of business from Delta Desngn Inc., a wholly -owned
sub51d|ary of Cohu, Inc., whose Pres:dent and Chlef Executwe Off' icer serves on SMSC s Board of Directors,

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On Apnl 9, 2008 the Board of Directors ‘approved an amendment for the 2006 Directors Stock Appreciation
Rights Plan, mcreasmg the number of units issuable under the plan from 200,000 to 400, 000

Subsequent to yeau‘-end.and through and including April 18, 2008, the Company rcpurchasad an additional
199,145 shares at an aggregate cost of $5.8 million. o

" On Apnl 22,2008, lhe Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up'to an additional one million shares of
common, stock, bnngmg the total authorlzed to five mllllOll shares, pursuant to the common stock repurchase
program initiated in October 1998.

L ! .
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19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) - :

(in rhousana's except per share data; the sum of the net income per share amounts may not total due to
rounding)

Fiscal 2008
' Quarter Ended

May 31 Aug. 31 Nov. 30 Feb. 29
Sales and TEVEOUES . .. . oo v e i e $81,546  $97,522 $104,678 $94,103
Income from operations ......... e e $ 2794 § 8081 % 14236 312411
NELINCOME .. .. ovvierine i, $3202 $9281 $ 8708 $11,715
Basic net income per share . . . . . . ST $ 014 $ 040 $ 038 §$ 052
Diluted net income per share . .................. $ 0613 % 038 §$§ 036 3 050
Average shares outstanding:
Basic net income per share , .. .. ... ... ...... ... 22,790 23,097 23,041 22,747
Diluted net income pershare ................... 23,445 23,845 23,878 23,407

During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company identified errors of $1.3 million in its fiscal 2007 and 2008
consolidated income tax expense associated with the exercise of incentive stock options and an additional
$0.4 million, net of tax, related to unrealized foreign exchange losses.associated with prior periods going back
to the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The Company corrected these errors in the November 30, 2007 results, which had
the effect of increasing consolidated income tax expense in the three and nine month periods ended November 30,
2007 by $1.1 million, increasing other expense by $0.6 million and decreasing consolidated net income by
$1.7 million. The Company does not believe that these adjustments are material to the consolidated financial
statements for the three and nine month periods ended November 30, 2007, to the fiscal years ended February 29,
2008 and February 28, 2007, or to any prior periods going back to the first quarter of fiscal 2007, and as a result, has
not restated its consolidated financial statements for these periods.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company determined that its application of the treasury method to
compute common stock equwalents for diluted net income per share purposes had not been properly calculated
following the adoption of SFAS 123R on March 1, 2006 (first quarter of fiscal 2007). Specifically, the computation
did not include unamortized compensation costs relating to stock options and incorrectly calculated the tax benefits
on outstanding options as assumed proceeds. The effect was to understate the computed net income per diluted
share. The Company deemed the impact on quarterly and annual net income per diluted share for all reported
periods in fiscal 2008 and 2007 to be immaterial. In order to present accurate data for each of the quarterly periods in
fiscal 2008, weighted average diluted shares outstanding and corresponding net income per diluted share have been
revised for all quarterly periods in fiscal 2008, as shown in the table above. '
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Fiscal 2007
Quarter Ended
May31l  Aug. 31 Nov. 30 Feb. 28
Sales and revenues . . .. ...ttt e $86,144  $96,663 $98,064  $89,723°
Income (loss) from operations. .. ................. $10690 §$ 7412 $ 5814 $ 6,732
Net income . .................. A $ 8633 §$5727 $4819 § 7836
Basic net income pershare. .. ............... ... $ 040 $ 026° S 022 $ 035
Diluted net income pershare .. .................. $ 037 $ 025 § 021 $ 033
Average shares outstanding: : .
' Basic net income per share . . . . . . . . P 21824 21,904 22,133 22,500
Diluted net income per share . ................... 23,147 22,784 © 23,368 123,634

Operating results include approximately $0.4 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and $0.5 million in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 of expenses relating to prior periods for certain United States Customs related
charges and employee benefits, respectively.

]|



Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
T For the Three Fiscal Years Ended February‘29, 2008

Balance at Charged Charged to Balance
Beginning to Costs Other at End of
g of Period and Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
. {in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended 'February 29, 2008 .
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ... . . . . . .. $ 438 $ — $— $ — § 438
Reserve for Product Reums . . ............ $ 293 $613 $— $(361)b) §$ 345
Valuation Allowance on Net Deferred Taxes ..  $1,900 $145 $— $ — $2,045
Fiscal Year Ended February 28, 2007
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts . . .. ... ... $ 536 30 $— $(98)a) $ 438
Reserve for Product Returns . ... .......... $ 155 3675 $— $(537)(b) $ 293
Valuation Allowance on Net Deferred Taxes ..  $2,544 5 — $— $(644) $1,900
Fiscal Year Ended February 28, 2006
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.......... $ 438 $ 98 §— $ — $ 536
Reserve for Product Returns . ... . ... ... ... % 158 $373 $— $(376)b) $ 155
$ — $— $ (5 $2.544

Valuation Allowance on Net Deferred Taxes ..  $2,549

(a) Represents adjustment of reserve balance based upon evaluation of accounts receivable collectability.

(b) Represents sales value of expected returns of product from customers based on historical experience and recent

trends.
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10.1*
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10.3*

10.4*
10.5*

10.6*
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10.8*

10.9*

10.10*
10.11*
10.i2%
10.13*
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10.15*%
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description ‘ : i

Certificate of Incorporation of Standard Microsystems Corporauon as amended and restated,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 t0 thc reglslrams Form IO—Q for the quarter ended
August 31, 2006.

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Standard Microsystems Corporation, mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on September 25, 2007.

Rights Agreement with ChaseMellon Shareholder Services L.L.C., as Rights Agent, dated January 7,
1998, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the registrant’s Registration | Slatement on Form 8-A
filed Januvary 15, 1998.

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement with ChaseMellon Shareholder Services L. L C., as Rights
Agent, dated January 23, 2001, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 2 to the registrant’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2001.

Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement with ChaseMellon Shareholder Services L.L. C., as Rights

Agent, dated April 9, 2002, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the registrant’ s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A/A filed April 25, 2002.

Employment Agreement with Steven J. Bilodeau, dated March 19, 2007, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2007,

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with David S. Smith, dated March 19, 2007,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2007.

Indemnity Agreement with Steven J. Bilodeau, Peter Dicks, Timothy P. Craig, Ivan T. Fritsch, James A.
Donohue, Andrew M. Caggia, Walter Slegel David S. Smith and Joseph S. Durko, mcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2006

Letter Agreement with Walter Siegel dated March 19, 2007 incorporated by refercnce to Exhibit 10.4 to
the registrant’s Form 10-K filed on April 30, 2007.

Letter Agreement with Joseph S. Durko dated March 27,2006 incorporated by reference to ) Exhibit 10.5
to the registrant’s Form 10-K filed on April 30, 2007.

Letter Agreement with Aaron L. Fisher dated March 19, 2007, filed herewith.

1994 Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated May 31, 1995.

2001 Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated July 11, 2001,

Amendment to the 2001 Director Stock Option Plan, dated April 4, 2002, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2002.
Amendment to the 1994 Director Stock Option Plan, adopted July 14, 1998, incorporated by reference
to information appearing on page 11 of the registrant’s Proxy Statement dated June I, 1998.

Retirement Plan for Directors, mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the registrant’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 28, 1995,

Amendment to the Retirement Plan for Directors, mcorporated by referencc o Exhlbll 10.11 to the
registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2002.

1993 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
registrant’s Proxy Statement dated May 25, 1993,

2005, Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2005
mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants’ Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2007,

Standard Microsystems Corporation Severance Plan amended and restated as of August 11, 1999
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the registrant’s Form 10-K filed on April 30, 2007.

Amendment Number 1 to the Standard Microsystems Corporation Severance Plan incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2007,

Resolutions adopted October 31, 1994, amending the Retirement Plan for Directors and the Executive
Retirement Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended February 28, 1995.
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10.31*
10.32%
10:33*
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Description -

1994 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
reglstrant s Proxy Statement dated May 26, 1994.

Resolutions adopted January 3, 1995, amending the 1994, 1993 and 1989 Stock ‘Option Plans and the
1991 Restricted Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the regntrant s Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 28, 1995.

1996 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
registrant’s proxy statement dated June 21, 1996 for Officers and Key Employees.

1998 Stock Optmn Plan for Officers and Key Employees, mcorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
registrant’s Proxy Statement dated June 1, 1998.

1999 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
registrant’s Proxy Statement dated June 9, 1999.

2000 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
registrant’s Proxy Statement dated June 6, 2000.

2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan for Officers and Key Employees, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit C to the registrant’s Proxy Statement dated June 11, 2001,

Resolutions adopted April 7, 2004, amending the 1999 and 2000 Stock Option Plans and the 2001 and
2003 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended August 31, 2004.

Plan for Deferred Compensation in Common Stock for Qutside Dlreclors dated March 7, 1997, as
amended, incorporated by reference to Exhrblt 10.23 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2002.

Amendment to the Plan for Deferred Compensanon in Common Slock for Out51de Directors, dated

~July 10, 2002, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended February 28, 2003. ;

Amendment to the Plan for Deferred Conipensation in Common Stock for Qutside Directors, dated
April 7, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended May 31, 2004,

2002 Inducement Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the reglstrant s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2003,

2003 Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the reglstrant s Proxy
Statement dated July 9, 2003,

2003 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan, 1nc0rporaled by reference to Exhibit B to the registrant’s
Proxy Statement dated July 9, 2003.

2003 Inducement Stock Option Plan, 1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the registrant’s
Form S-8 filed September 15, 2003.

2004 Employee Stock Apprec1at10n Rights Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October -1, 2004.

2004 Inducement Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the registrant’s Form S 8
filed on July 17, 2005,

2005 Director Stock Appreciation nghts Plan, 1ncorp0rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on October 11, 2005.

2005 Inducement Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan of Standard Microsystems Corporation, as
amended on September 9, 2005, mcorporated by reference to Exhibit [0.2 to the registrant’s Form 8-K
filed on October 26, 2005.
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Exhibit No
10.37*

10.38*
10.39*
10.40*

10.41*

10.42*
10.43*

10.44

10.45

21

231
311

312

32.1

Description

The amendment of the 1993 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, 1994 Stock Option
Plan for Officers and Key Employees, 1996 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, 1998
Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, 1999 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key
Employees, 2000 Stock Option Plan for Officers and Key Employees, 2001 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Plan of Standard Microsystems Corpoeration, 2003 Stock Option and Restricted
Stock Plan and 2005 Inducement Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan of Standard Microsystems
Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on
December 21, 2007.

Standatd Microsystems Corporation 2006 Directors Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, as adopted on July
11, 2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s 8-K filed on July 14, 2006.

Amendment to Standard Microsystems Corporation 2006 Directors Stock Appreciation Rights Plan,
dated April 9, 2008, filed herewith.

2006 Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, as adopted on September 1, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2006.

April 9, 2007 Amendment to the 2005 Inducement Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan of Standard

. Microsystems Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the registrant’s Form 10-K

filed on April 30, 2007.

Resolution adopted to modify compensation provided to non-employee directors, dated December 21,
2004, incorporated by reference to Item 1.01 in the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2004.

Description of fiscal year 2008 Management Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K and Exhibit 10.1 thereto filed on April 27, 2007.

Agreement and Plan of Merger among Standard Microsystems Corporation, SMSC Sub, Inc., and Gain
Technology Corporation, dated April 29, 2002, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
registrant’s Form 8-K filed on June 19, 2002.

Share Purchase Agreement by and among Standard Microsystems Corporation, SMSC GmbH and the
Shareholders of OASIS Silicon Systems Holding AG, dated March 30, 2003, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.1 to the registrant’s Form 8-K filed on April 5, 2005.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to the registrant’s Form 10-K filed
on April 30, 2007.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, filed herewith,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
filed herewith.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
filed herewith.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

* Indicates a management or compensatory plan or arrangement,
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